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Sales Network $§ 8 47 4%

An Extensive Network Capturing Growing Opportunities in

China

The Group’s sales points span the whole nation, with footprints in all major cities such as Beijing, Shanghai,
Chonggqing, Tianjin, Guangzhou, Hong Kong and Macau. Such an extensive network enables the Group to

efficiently respond to customer needs and deepen its market penetration in China.

As at 31 December 2012, the Group had a total of 2,121 retail outlets, comprising 1,932 concessionary

counters and 189 retail shops in Mainland China, Hong Kong and Macau.
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Chairman’s Statement

e
Wy
/

Mr. Cheng Man Tai
Chairman of the Group

To All Shareholders,

It is my great pleasure to present the audited annual results of Embry Holdings Limited for the year
ended 31 December 2012 on behalf of the Board of Directors.

In 2012, the global economy endured numerous obstacles. The pace of recovery in developed
economies slowed measurably, while growth in emerging economies also decelerated. In addition,
China’s economic development was affected by uncertainties arising from changes in the political
landscape in Europe and North America, with the
slowest growth recorded over the past 13 years.
This resulted in inevitable impacts on the business
environment.

On the back of a global economic slowdown,
growth in China’s domestic consumption also
slowed. In 2012, the total retail sales of consumer
goods increased by 14.3% year-on-year to RMB
20,716.7 billion, nonetheless 2.8 percentage points
slower than the growth registered a year ago. In
view of economic changes, consumers turned
cautious about spending, exerting pressure on the
retail sector. However, the continuous rise of income
levels and the acceleration of urbanisation continued
to lend support to China’s domestic consumption,
and therefore the retail sector was able to grow at a
relatively fast pace.
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Chairman’s Statement (continued)

As one of the leading lingerie retailers in China, Embry continued to achieve satisfactory
performance and seized opportunities arising from the market crises by leveraging its brand
awareness, proprietary product design, superior quality, flexible business strategies, and
nationwide retail network.

In 2012, the Group’s turnover recorded a double-digit growth for the sixth consecutive year since
its listing. Net profit grew to HK$183,562,000 in 2012 from HK$160,283,000 recorded for the
preceding year. To reward and thank our shareholders for their long-term support, the Board of
Directors recommends the payment of a final dividend of HK7.00 cents per share and a special
dividend of HK2.00 cents per share.

Both brand building and development serve as the key to the ongoing, healthy development of the
Group. They also play an important role in helping the Group withstand external impacts and
pursue its business goals. During the year, the Group made continuous efforts in promoting its
brands. Besides consolidating its existing brand advantages, the Group also launched a new brand
to meet the changing market needs. The Group also continued to actively upgrade its own
branded products, flexibly formulate marketing and promotional plans, and strategically expand its
retail network, with a view to further consolidating its top-notch niche in the domestic lingerie
market.

Amid a fast-paced business environment, the Group successfully demonstrated its resilience in
responding to changes occurring in the market. By optimising its brand resources, the Group’s
brand advantages became more apparent. EMBRY FORM and FANDECIE, the Group’s two
major brands, continued to be adored by consumers and recorded satisfactory sales, evidenced
by its leading position in the brand ranking. EMBRY FORM, our flagship brand, was awarded “The
Best-Selling Lingerie Products in the Industry in China in terms of Volume, Sales, Market
Share” for the seventeenth consecutive year. EMBRY FORM has also retained the honour as
both the “Signature Brand of the Industry in China” and the “Hong Kong Top Brand”.
Meanwhile, FANDECIE was awarded the “Top 10 Best Sellers in the Industry in China” for the
seventh consecutive year.

In addition, COMFIT, LIZA CHENG and E-BRA, continued to meet consumers’ growing demand
across all market segments, recording a satisfactory performance during the year. Over the last
two years of development, E-BRA, the fifth brand of the Group, has successfully established its
market presence and brand image. By focusing on what consumers need, the Group will
constantly adjust its development directions, marketing and brand building strategies and product
design in order to cater for the taste of customers and support our business growth. We are also
pleased to announce that the sixth brand IADORE was officially launched in December 2012,
attracting a group of price-conscious consumers as well as capturing opportunities arising from the
improvement in the purchasing power of second- and third-tier cities. We strongly believe that the
development of new brands will drive the Group’s long-term business growth.

In view of uncertainties clouding the market environment, the Group became more prudent about
expanding its sales network. In addition to efforts to meet the rising market demand, the Group
was also able to maintain its operational efficiency. During the year, the number of the Group’s
outlets recorded a net increase of 45. As at 31 December 2012, the total number of the Group’s
outlets was 2,121, with a network coverage stretching across more than 200 cities in China.

4 EMBRY HOLDINGS LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2012



Looking into the future, given the debt issues plaguing European countries and the US, it will be
difficult for the economic outlook to attain a significant improvement in short term. To cope with a
number of market risks, the Group will prudently monitor and analyse market trends, step up risk
management efforts, and formulate and put into practice development strategies in a pragmatic
and cautious manner, so as to cope with the challenge posed by market changes and capture the
valuable opportunities arising from the steady economic development in China.

In 2013, the Group will strengthen its multi-brand strategy. By exploring the potential value of the
existing brands, the Group will strive for a greater market share. In consideration of the huge
demand for affordable products from consumers, the Group has already unveiled E-BRA and
IADORE, which will continue to be the development focus this year. Meanwhile, the Group adopts
the one-step-at-a-time approach, and will launch a men’s underwear brand IVU for the first time.
As the seventh brand, we are confident that IVU will be the first important step before branching
out into markets other than lingerie. In line with the promotion of new brands, the Group weighed
the potential risks in the business environment, and decided to maintain a prudent approach in
planning the development of its sales network. The Group plans to open approximately 150 outlets
across the country, and continues to infiltrate into second- and third-tier cities, which will further
explore markets with potential and increase the penetration rate of the nationwide sales network.

To put abovementioned strategies into practice, the Group will proactively engage in promotional
campaigns in hopes of gaining the long-term support from its customers. The Group will also
continue its efforts to seek for product innovations. With various exclusive patented technologies,
the Group will develop more proprietary products in order to optimise its product mix and boosts
the healthy development of its business. The Group is actively planning to increase its production
capacity. Apart from getting prepared for the commencement of the second phase development
works of Shandong plant within the year, the Group is also preparing for the construction of a new
production plant in Changzhou in order to ensure an expanded production capacity that satisfies
the growing demand from consumers.

| would like to take this opportunity to thank all of our employees for their contribution to the Group
over the past year. Their contribution has helped Embry achieve fruitful results. | would also like to
express my heartfelt gratitude to our shareholders for their enduring support to the Group and for
their recognition of the Group’s aspirations and strategy for its future development. To show
appreciation to our shareholders for their trust, all of us will make unwavering efforts to enhance
the performance of the Embry Group as a whole. We will closely collaborate with our shareholders,
business partners and customers to build a brighter future.

Cheng Man Tai
Chairman

Hong Kong, 25 March 2013
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Management Discussion

and Analysis
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Business and Operations Review

In 2012, the global economy and political landscape remained uncertain, continuing to overshadow
the market outlook. Economic growth slowed down constantly in China, with uncertainties looming
over the short-term outlook for the economy, these negative factors weighed on the retail sector
and their impact was even stronger in the second half of the year. According to China’s National
Bureau of Statistics, the 2012 Gross Domestic Product (GDP) amounted to RMB51,932.2 billion,
representing a year-on-year increase of 7.8%. Total retail sales grew a slower 14.3% year-on-year
to reach RMB20,716.7 billion, 2.8 percentage points slower than the growth registered a year ago.
It is evident that the slowdown in retail sales reflects a decline in consumer sentiment. Among
various consumer goods categories, sales of daily consumer goods such as clothing exhibited a
relatively fast growth.

The difficult business environment prompted retailers to promote and offer more discounts to
stimulate purchase initiatives, which inevitably intensified competition across the retail sector in the
second half year. Faced with an uncertain business environment, the Group moved forward into
the second half of the year maintaining the due and cautious development strategy adopted in the
first half of the year yet more vigilant with plans to solidify its business foundation. During the year,
the Group flexibly adopted a multi-brand strategy and introduced a new brand JADORE at the end
of the year. The new brand is positioned as affordable pricing, which has further broadened the

EMBRY HOLDINGS LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2012 7



Management Discussion and Analysis (continued)

Group’s brand portfolio of which in return helped reach more customers. Meanwhile, the Group
also consolidated and optimised its sales network to improve the performance of its stores, aiming
to maintain a sustainable and healthy growth in the longer run. To cope with the challenges brought
about by the market environment, the Group stepped up its efforts in promotions and advertising in
order to mitigate the adverse effects on sales caused by the economic slowdown in the second
half. With these measures in place, the Group’s business continued to perform satisfactorily.

For the year ended 31 December 2012 (the “Current Year”), the Group’s revenue grew by 17.72%
over that of the year ended 31 December 2011 (the “Prior Year”) to HK$1,995,356,000. The
increase in selling and distribution expenses during the year approximated that of revenue, up by
18.95%. Profit attributable to owners of the Company was HK$183,562,000, which increased by
14.52% compared against that of the Prior Year. Earnings per share amounted to HK44.38 cents
(2011: HK39.15 cents), representing an increase of 13.36%.

The Board of Directors of the Company resolved to declare a final dividend of HK7.00 cents per
share (2011: HK7.00 cents) and a special dividend of HK2.00 cents per share (2011: HK2.00
cents) for the Current Year. Together with the interim dividend of HK4.00 cents per share (2011:
HK®S.00 cents) distributed, the dividend on an annual basis was HK13.00 cents per share,
representing an increase of 8.33% over the Prior Year.

8 EMBRY HOLDINGS LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2012
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Brand management

In 2012, on the back of slower economic growth, consumers became more cautious with their
spendings, and more sensitive to product prices. However, in wake of the emerging urbanisation,
income of China’s residents in the second- and third-tier cities continued to increase which
gradually released their purchasing power. To cope with the market changes, the Group continued
to leverage its multi-brand strategy, made better use of its resources, and focused on promoting
high-potential brands with low penetration rate, such as COMFIT and E-BRA. As a result of these
efforts, both brands attained satisfactory growth during the year.

To seize the opportunities arising from the stronger purchasing power in the second- and third-tier
cities, the Group officially launched a new brand IJADORE in December 2012. The number of
brands operated by the Group has increased to six: EMBRY FORM, FANDECIE, COMFIT,
E-BRA, IADORE and LIZA CHENG. IADORE boasts a fresh and fashionable image that appeals
to the customer group with increasing purchasing power. The debut of the brand has gained
positive market response. The Group intends to further improve its brand portfolio through this new
brand.

EMBRY HOLDINGS LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2012 9



Management Discussion and Analysis (continued)

Publicity and promotion are integral parts of brand management. During the year, the Group
actively promoted and advertised its brands and products through various channels in attempts to
enhance the brand equity. For instance, the Group organised a number of promotional and
marketing campaigns during the year, including “EMBRY FORM'’s Fashion Brings Transformation &
Appreciation Salon” ([ Z 175 B =4 & « BRBEMEL) )R ), “FANDECIE’s Magic Pioneer Party”
(T30 E5 B ) 588 R ¥ 1), “COMFIT’s Revolutionary Body-Sculpting Lingerie City Tour” ([ COMFIT
MK EEFHE S M KRE D), and “E-BRA’s Beauty Hunting School Function” ([ E-BRA = 3 # i &8
AR EES) ). All these activities enabled us to enhance market penetration and brand awareness.
It also strengthened the relationship between the Group and distributors as well as customers
across the country, thus further boosting product sales.

Sales network

The Group cautiously expanded its sales network during the year to optimise the risk-return
balance amid a changing market environment. During the Current Year, the number of retail outlets
of the Group registered a net increase of 45 to 2,121 retail outlets as at 31 December 2012.
Among them were 1,932 and 189 concessionary counters and stores respectively.

Product design and research and development

The Group continued to invest resources in design, research and development of new products.
Through constant optimisation in the application of patented designs, the value of our products
was enhanced and the need of the Group’s customers at different levels was satisfied. During the
Current Year, the Group rolled out a variety of new collections, including EMBRY FORM'’s
“Couture Romance Collection” ([ R85 %% |) and “Leopard Embroidery Series” ([ Rl #5940 %
%1|]), FANDECIE's “Party Princess Series” ([ k¥ /2% £35] ]) and “LUCIE Spring and Summer

1 0 EMBRY HOLDINGS LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2012



Series” ([LUCIEZEE %75/ ]), COMFIT’s “Super Skin Comfort U3 Series” ([ #2847 & U3 %%/ ]) and
“CARE FOR MISS Series” (CARE FOR MISS & 7%1]), and E-BRA’s “Paris’ Night Series” ([ & 5232
%% ]) and “Wonderful Florescence Series” ([ 210 E81 %] |) and others.

As of 31 December 2012, the Group had 2 invention patents, 28 utility model patents, and 13
appearance design patents, which were registered in China and/or other parts of the world.

Production capacity

Currently, the Group has three production bases located in Shenzhen, Jinan and Changzhou
respectively. The Group closely monitors the changes in the demand of the consumer market.
Through regular review of the capacity allocation and flexible deployment of workshop manpower
and machine capacity, the Group actively responded to the impact of the instability of the global
economic situation, so as to achieve better operational efficiency.

Awards

In the Current Year, EMBRY FORM was honoured as the “The Best-Selling Lingerie Products
in the Industry in China in terms of Volume, Sales, Market Share” by the China Industrial
Information Issuing Centre (the “Issuing Centre”) (FF BI7T 2 (b 212 B2 F 0. The Group has
been awarded this honour for seventeen consecutive years. The Group was also awarded with the
honour of “The Most Trusted Consumer Brand in 2012". FANDECIE, another brand of the
Group, was also awarded the “Top 10 Best Sellers in the Industry in China” for the seventh
consecutive year by the Issuing Centre. In addition, EMBRY FORM was not only recognised by
the China Brand Research Institute as the “Signature Brand of the Industry in China” (# &
97T EEAZEEME SRR, but also was rated as the “Hong Kong Top Brand” by the Hong Kong Brand
Development Council and the Chinese Manufacturers’ Association of Hong Kong for six
consecutive years.

EMBRY HOLDINGS LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2012 1 1



Management Discussion and Analysis (continued)

Human resources

The robust labour market in China has resulted in a continuous rise in wage pressures. Quality
human resources are the core value of the Group. The Group endeavored to enhance staff loyalty
through the organization of training courses and cultural activities and improvement in employee
benefits. In order to further improve the overall production and operational efficiency, the Group
fine-tuned its productivity plan and expanded the sales network. In line with this, the number of
employees of the Group was slightly reduced to approximately 8,430 (2011: approximately 8,500).
Total staff costs (including wages and basic salaries, commissions, bonuses, contributions to the
retirement benefits scheme and equity-settled share option expense) for the Current Year was
HK$535,792,000 (2011: HK$499,971,000).

Financial Review

Revenue

By sales channel and region

During the Current Year, revenue was HK$1,995,356,000, representing growth of 17.72% when
compared with the Prior Year. The growth in revenue was mainly attributable to the success of the
Group’s multi-brand strategy and the steady growth in the overall customer demand amid the
volatile market conditions.

During the Current Year, revenue from the retail sales was HK$1,681,051,000, accounting for
84.25% of the Group’s total revenue and representing an increase of 19.29% over the Prior Year.
This was in line with the conditions of the retail and consumer market in China. Revenue of the
wholesale business increased by 3.96% from HK$244,990,000 to HK$254,694,000, accounting
for 12.76% of the total revenue. The wholesale business’s growth slowed down significantly, mainly
reflecting the uncertainties over the economic outlook during the period. Wholesalers were more
cautious when placing orders and the Group also prudently limited their shipment. Thus, the orders
placed by wholesalers were affected. The export business for this year accounted for an
insignificant proportion of the Group’s total revenue with revenue amounted to HK$6,755,000,
accounting for 0.34% of the total revenue. During the Current Year, income derived from the
Group’s direct online sales channels recorded an increase, and generated a revenue contribution
of HK$52,856,000, representing growth of 93.51% as compared against the Prior Year. This
reflected the better use of online sales by the Group as the sales platform.

The Mainland China market is the main source of income for the Group. During the Current Year,
revenue from the Mainland China market amounted to HK$1,888,591,000, accounting for 94.65%
of the Group’s total revenue and representing an increase of 18.76% over the Prior Year.

By brand and product line

At present, the Group operates six brands: EMBRY FORM, FANDECIE, COMFIT, E-BRA,
IADORE and LIZA CHENG for customers of different age groups and purchasing power. During
the Current Year, sales growth was attained for each of the six brands of the Group. EMBRY
FORM, our signature brand, is the main source of income for the Group with a sales increase of
15.77% to HK$1,036,824,000, accounting for 51.96% of the total revenue for the year.
FANDECIE contributed to 9.14% growth, with revenue increasing to HK$635,229,000, accounting
for 31.83% of the total revenue for the year. COMFIT achieved better performance, revenue of
which grew by 69.00% over the Prior Year to HK$150,662,000, accounting for 7.55% of the total
revenue for the year. E-BRA recorded revenue growth of 40.84% over the Prior Year to
HK$153,196,000, accounting for 7.68% of the total revenue for the year. In respect of LIZA
CHENG, revenue for the Current Year increased by 104.35% to HK$12,120,000. IADORE

¢
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remained at the infant stage, thus accounting for an insignificant proportion of the Group’s total
sales. All brands’ respective proportion in the revenue mainly reflected the results from the adjusted
development focus of all brands by the Group based on market development.

Lingerie has always been the core product line of the Group. During the Current Year, sales of
lingerie were HK$1,796,283,000, accounting for 90.02% of the Group’s revenue and representing
an increase of 20.25% over the Prior Year. Sleepwear recorded a growth of 7.29%, whereas sales
of swimwear maintained stable level, with an increase of 0.26%. Sales of sleepwear and swimwear
for the Current Year were HK$97,261,000 and HK$90,772,000 respectively, accounting for 4.87%
and 4.55% of the Group’s revenue respectively. The two product lines will help extend the
development of the Group’s product diversification.

Gross profit

During the Current Year, the Group recorded a gross profit of approximately HK$1,620,139,000,
representing growth of about 16.19% over the Prior Year. Gross profit margin was approximately
81.20%, down modestly from the Prior Year. Despite rising labour costs which have led to
increasing pressures on labour cost, the Group’s business expansion has further enhanced
economies of scale. Coupled with the enhancement of brand equity, the Group’s gross profit
margin remained at a stable level.

Other income and gains

Other income decreased slightly by 0.41% to HK$57,287,000 in the Current Year. Subsidy Income
for the Current Year was about HK$26,898,000. This income represented the subsidies received
by the Group from the local municipal government. As property prices in Hong Kong and Mainland
China surged, the Group recorded capital appreciation of HK$11,177,000 from the changes in the
fair value of its investment properties, representing an increase of HK$261,000 over the Prior Year.
In addition, exchange gains amounting to HK$6,956,000 was also recorded for the Current Year.
These gains were derived from the appreciation of Renminbi arising from business operations in
the Mainland China. The Group’s interest income increased by 199.77% to HK$2,557,000 during
the Current Year. The increase was due to increase in cash balances at banks arising from the
operating income for the Current Year.

Operating expenses

During the Current Year, selling and distribution expenses increased by 18.95% to
HK$1,209,822,000 (2011: HK$1,017,100,000), representing 60.63% (2011: 60.01%) of the
Group’s revenue.

Selling and distribution expenses generally increased at the same pace as revenue, and the
ongoing increases in contingent rents of the retail outlets and staff costs as well as increasing
expenses incurred from the advertising and counter decoration continued to exert upward pressure
on operating costs. Contingent rents of the retail outlets rose by 19.31% to HK$492,312,000,
accounting for 24.67% (2011: 24.34%) of the Group’s revenue.

Administrative expenses decreased by 0.66% to HK$193,786,000, accounting for 9.71% of the
Group’s revenue, compared with 11.51% in the Prior Year.

Tax

The Group’s effective tax rate was 29.57% in the Current Year, compared to 30.69% in the Prior
Year.
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Management Discussion and Analysis (continued)

Net profit

Profit attributable to owners of the Company was HK$183,562,000 in the Current Year,
representing an increase of 14.52% over the Prior Year. Increase in profit attributable to owners of
the Company was mainly attributable to the sustained growth in revenue, which was partially offset
by the increased operating costs. Net profit margin decreased slightly from 9.46% in the Prior Year
10 9.20%.

Liquidity and financial resources

The Group generally finances its operations with internally generated cash flows. Financial position
of the Group remained sound and healthy during the Current Year. As at 31 December 2012, the
Group's cash and cash equivalents amounted to approximately HK$382,796,000 (2011:
HK$179,607,000). As at 31 December 2012, the Group’s borrowings amounted to
HK$178,500,000 (2011: HK$211,500,000). During the Current Year, the Group did not pledge any
assets to secure bank loans. Gearing ratio of the Group was approximately 12.42% as at 31
December 2012 (2011: 16.61%).

Capital structure

As at 31 December 2012, the total issued share capital of the Company was HK$4,166,000 (2011:
HK$4,113,000), comprising 416,661,000 (2011: 411,324,000) ordinary shares of HK$0.01 each.
The increase in the number of issued shares was due to the exercise of the share options granted
under the share option scheme by certain directors and employees of the Group.

Details of the above are set out in note 31 to the financial statements.

Significant investment held, material acquisitions and disposals of subsidiaries
and associated companies

During the Current Year, the Group was neither involved in any significant investment, nor any
material acquisitions or disposals of any subsidiaries or associated companies.

Capital expenditure
The capital expenditure of the Group during the Current Year amounted to HK$25,613,000 (2011
HK$53,259,000).

Charge on the Group’s assets
As at 31 December 2012, the Group did not pledge any assets.

Foreign currency exposure

The Group carries out its trading transactions mainly in Hong Kong dollars and Renminbi. The
Group does not use derivative financial instruments to protect against the volatility associated with
foreign currency transactions and other financial assets and liabilities created in the ordinary course
of the business.

Contingent liabilities

A subsidiary of the Company was enquired by certain government bodies regarding the compliance
of relevant foreign exchange rules in the PRC in relation to the remittance and use of funds in the
course of purchase of the Embry Tower in Shanghai in 2009 and 2010. In the opinion of the
directors, based on the legal advice from the Group’s legal counsels, since the enquiry process is
not yet concluded, whether or not the relevant company will be subject to any punishment and, if
s0, the amount of the ultimate liabilities (if any) cannot be measured with sufficient reliability,
therefore no provision has been made at this time.
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Save as disclosed above, the Group has no other significant contingent liabilities, nor any litigation
or arbitration of material importance.

Event after the reporting period

Subsequent to the end of the reporting period, on 20 February 2013, the Group entered into a
construction contract with an independent third party (the “Contractor”), pursuant to which the
Contractor is to provide certain construction services to the Group for Shandong Factory Phase I
development at the consideration of RMB83,000,000 (equivalent to approximately
HK$103,750,000). Further details of this construction contract were disclosed in the Company’s
announcement dated 20 February 2013.

Prospect

Looking into 2013, global economic outlook remains uncertain, and there are many uncertain
factors hovering over the macroeconomic environment. In addition, the debt crisis in Europe, the
sluggish US economy, as well as the continued slowdown in China’s economy, will likely paint a
bleak picture, which may dampen consumer confidence and therefore bring more challenges to
the retail market.

As the market leader in the lingerie industry in China, the Group constantly maintains a prudent but
positive attitude over its business development. Meanwhile, the Group closely monitors the market
conditions and adopts flexible and healthy development strategies. Faced with the complicated
market environment, the Group will continue to capitalise on the advantages of its multi-brand
strategy, and proactively cater to the consumer needs in the markets. While fostering new brands,
the Group continues to sharpen the competitive edges of its core brands. In the second half year,
the Group plans to roll out men’s underwear brand IVU as the first step to tap into the men’s
underwear market.

In view of the currently affected market environment, the Group will exercise precaution over the
expansion and optimisation of its sales network. Striking a balance between speed and efficiency
of network expansion, the Group plans to increase additional retail outlets of approximately 150 for
2013, while vigorously enhancing the performance of its stores. To cope with the business
expansion and the development of new brands, the Group will inject additional capital to scale up
its production capacity this year. In 2013, the Group will initiate the second phase development of
Shandong plant with its preliminary stage expected to be in operation by the end of 2013. Also, the
Group will commence the preparation for construction of a new production plant in Changzhou.

Despite a changing business environment, the persistent economic growth in China as well as the
continued urbanisation will keep elevating national income and living standards of consumers in
China. As a result, the Group believes there remains to be enormous potential in the underwear
market in China. The Group will leverage its powerful multi-brand edges as well as sound and
pragmatic development strategies, and constantly optimise its sales network and develop an
enriched diversity of innovative product portfolio in order to fortify the Group’s leading position in
the retail market, thereby fostering long-term and steady business growth and creating satisfactory
returns for our shareholders.
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These awards illustrated that the Group
has carved cut a leading niche and a
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EMBRY FORM was accredited as The 2012 Best-Selling Lingerie Products in the
Industry in China by the China Industrial Information Issuing Centre. It has been the
seventeenth consecutive year for EMBRY FORM to rank the first in volume, sales and
market share

EMBRY FORM was also named as The Most Trusted Consumer Brand in 2012 by the
China Industrial Information Issuing Centre

FANDECIE was accredited as the Top 10 Best Sellers in the Industry in China from 2006
to 2012 by the China Industrial Information Issuing Centre

EMBRY FORM received the Hong Kong Top Brand (2007-2012) award from the Hong Kong
Brand Development Council and The Chinese Manufacturers’ Association of Hong Kong

EMBRY FORM was awarded the Quality Tourism Services Scheme Certification Mark
(2012) by the Hong Kong Tourism Board

Embry (China) Garments Ltd. received the Chinese Women Charity Award —
Contribution Award from the All-China Women'’s Federation and China Women'’s
Development Foundation and was named as a Role Model of Women’s Charitable Causes
in China by the China Women’s Development Foundation

EMBRY FORM received the Achievement Award for the Underwear Industry (2011-2012)
in the 2012 China International Underwear Culture Week

EMBRY FORM was accredited by the China Brand Research Institute as the Signature Brand
of the Industry in China

Embry (China) Garments Ltd. was awarded a certificate of Top 10 Enterprises in the
Knitting Industry in China in terms of Competitiveness for the year 2011/2012 by the
Department of Statistics of the Federation of China Textile Industry and the China Knitting
Industrial Association

Embry Holdings Limited was honoured as The Listed Company with the Best Brand
Value at the Golden Bauhinia Awards Presentation which was organized by Ta Kung Pao
together with key securities institutions in Hong Kong and Mainland China
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As a leading lingerie brand and retail enterprise in China, Embry always adheres to the integrated
values of maintaining a balance among social, economic and environmental development. The
Group has been upholding this principle when fulfilling its social responsibility for more than 30
years. In 2012, the Group continued to contribute to society by working for the causes of women’s
affairs, the common good and environmental protection under the theme “Love and Care”.

Care for Women

Embry spares no effort to commit itself to the charitable causes for women. In 2012, the Group
organized a charity sales event named “Let’s Fight against Breast Cancer” with the Hong Kong
Breast Cancer Foundation to promote breast care again in Hong Kong. Embry donated part of the
proceeds from customers’ purchase between the first and the thirtieth day of November at its
Hong Kong stores to Hong Kong Breast Cancer Foundation.

During the year, the Group jointly organized the “Love in Full Bloom” charitable donation activity
with the China Women’s Development Foundation for the sixth time. Embry made a donation of
RMB7.04 million in kind to the Foundation to help women of ethnic minorities in remote areas in
the Mainland and promote care for women’s well-being. In November, Embry’s lingerie specialists
teamed up with the staff of All-China Women'’s Federation and China Women’s Development
Foundation and visited Qinghai and Inner Mongolia to promote knowledge about women’s health
and help women to foster a sense of self-confidence by way of holding health seminars and
making donations in kind. Embry has been committed to charitable causes for women in the
country for many years, and its outstanding contribution won it an award of “Role Model of
Women’s Charitable Causes in China” from the China Women’s Development Foundation in 2012.
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Employee Participation

The “Walk for a Million” is a popular annual large-scale fund-raising event of The Community Chest
of Hong Kong which has drawn huge support and attention from the public over the years. This
year, Embry participated in this meaningful fund-raising event again and its staff in Hong Kong also
got involved in the “Love Teeth Day” event enthusiastically. Their concerted efforts in contributing
to charity work and the good of society echoed the theme of “Love and Care”.

Concern for Environmental Protection

As a responsible enterprise, Embry has been actively allocating resources to projects that prevent
environmental pollution and restore the environment for years in order to strike a balance between
corporate development and environmental protection.

Both of Embry’s products and production processes comply with the highest national
environmental standards. Back in 2002, Embry pioneered a green lingerie production chain by
utilising environmental-friendly production techniques. Embry was the first lingerie enterprise in the
industry which was awarded the “Ten-Ring Certification” ([ +3&1Z3% ]). The accreditation proved
that its products met the highest green and eco standards. Integrating the use of ecologically
authenticated textiles in its products with its own patented technologies, Embry brings intimate
comfort and health protection for women.

In addition, the Group’s eco-industrial park in Shandong has been carrying out a green project in
the name of “Beauty Project” ([ £ T2 ]) where environmental-friendly construction facilities
such as renewable energy technology of geothermal heat pumps, energy-saving insulation walls
and natural lighting in the production areas are utilised. These facilities help to achieve energy-
saving and lower carbon emission, in order to promote sustainable development in the eco-
industrial park, thus further reducing the impact on the environment caused by production
processes.
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Directors and
Senior Management

Executive Directors

Mr. Cheng Man Tai, aged 83, is the Chairman and founder of the Group, and an Executive Director of the Company. He is
also a director of certain subsidiaries of the Company. Mr. Cheng is in charge of the Group’s corporate strategy. He has over
37 years of experience in the lingerie industry. Mr. Cheng graduated from Beijing Agricultural Engineering University (now
known as China Agricultural University) with a Bachelor’s degree. He is an Honorary Professor of China Agricultural
University. Mr. Cheng obtained the World Outstanding Chinese Award and Honorary Doctorate of Business Management
from Armstrong University in July 2006. He was awarded Honorary Fellowship and admitted as Honorary Professor by
Canadian Chartered Institute of Business Administration and Lincoln University respectively in September 2009. He was also
awarded Senior Fellowship by the Asian College of Knowledge Management in January 2013. Mr. Cheng is also a
shareholder and director of Harmonious World Limited (a substantial shareholder of the Company), the spouse of Madam
Ngok Ming Chu and the father of Ms. Cheng Pik Ho Liza.

Madam Ngok Ming Chu, aged 76, is an Executive Director and a director of certain subsidiaries of the Company. Madam
Ngok is in charge of the Group’s business planning. She joined the Group in 1980 and has over 32 years of experience in
the lingerie industry. Madam Ngok graduated from and is currently an Honorary Professor of Beijing Agricultural Engineering
University (now known as China Agricultural University). She is also a shareholder and director of Harmonious World Limited
(a substantial shareholder of the Company), the spouse of Mr. Cheng Man Tai and the mother of Ms. Cheng Pik Ho Liza.

Ms. Cheng Pik Ho Liza, aged 50, is the Chief Executive Officer of the Group, an Executive Director and a member of both
the Remuneration Committee and Nomination Committee of the Company. She is also a director of certain subsidiaries of
the Company. Ms. Cheng is responsible for the day-to-day management of the businesses of the Group. Ms. Cheng joined
the Group in 1993 and has over 20 years of experience in the lingerie industry. She obtained a Bachelor’s degree in Business
Administration from the University of Southern California and a Master of Business Administration (Executive) degree from the
City University of Hong Kong. Ms. Cheng was awarded the prize for Young Industrialist in Hong Kong in 1999 and was
appointed as Vice Chairman of Shanghai Garment Trade Association in 2008. She obtained the World Outstanding Chinese
Award and Honorary Doctorate of Business Administration from International American University in March 2009, and was
awarded Fellowship and admitted as Visiting Professor by Canadian Chartered Institute of Business Administration and
Lincoln University respectively in September 2009. Furthermore, Ms. Cheng was elected the first President of Shenzhen
Underwear Association in August 2012. She is currently a member of the Jinan Committee of the Chinese People’s Palitical
Consultative Conference in Shandong, a member of the Yangpu Committee of the Chinese People’s Political Consultative
Conference in Shanghai, a member of the China Trade Advisory Committee of Hong Kong Trade Development Council, the
Vice Chairman of China Knitting Industrial Association and the Vice Chairman of The Hong Kong General Chamber of Textiles
Limited. Ms. Cheng is also a director of Harmonious World Limited (a substantial shareholder of the Company), and the
daughter of Mr. Cheng Man Tai and Madam Ngok Ming Chu.

Independent Non-Executive Directors

Mr. Lau Siu Ki, alias, Kevin Lau, aged 54, is an Independent Non-Executive Director, the Chairman of the Audit
Committee and a member of both the Remuneration Committee and Nomination Committee of the Company. Mr. Lau is
currently running his own management consultancy firm, Hin Yan Consultants Limited. Mr. Lau has previously worked at an
international accounting firm for over 15 years. He graduated from the Hong Kong Polytechnic in 1981. Mr. Lau is a member
of both the Association of Chartered Certified Accountants (“ACCA”) and the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants. He was a member of the worldwide Council of ACCA from May 2002 to September 2011. Mr. Lau is currently
the company secretary of Yeebo (International Holdings) Limited and an independent non-executive director of Binhai
Investment Company Limited, COL Capital Limited, Comba Telecom Systems Holdings Limited, Foxconn International
Holdings Limited, Samson Holding Ltd. and TCL Communication Technology Holdings Limited, the shares of which are
listed on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”). He had been an independent non-executive
director of Greenfield Chemical Holdings Limited, Proview International Holdings Limited and Carry Wealth Holdings Limited,
the shares of which are listed on the Stock Exchange, until his resignation on 11 June 2010, 24 August 2010 and 13 July
2011 respectively. In addition, he had been the Company Secretary of Times Ltd., the shares of which were formerly listed
on the Stock Exchange. Mr. Lau joined the Company in November 2006.
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Mr. Lee Kwan Hung, aged 47, is an Independent Non-Executive Director, the Chairman of the Remuneration Committee
and a member of both the Audit Committee and Nomination Committee of the Company. Mr. Lee received his LL.B
(Honours) degree and Postgraduate Certificate in Laws from the University of Hong Kong in 1988 and 1989 respectively. He
was then admitted as a solicitor in Hong Kong in 1991 and the United Kingdom in 1997 and is a practising lawyer. Mr. Lee is
currently an independent non-executive director of Yuexiu REIT Asset Management Limited (the manager of Yuexiu Real
Estate Investment Trust), NetDragon Websoft Inc., Asia Cassava Resources Holdings Limited, Futong Technology
Development Holdings Limited, Walker Group Holdings Limited, Newton Resources Ltd, Tenfu (Cayman) Holdings Company
Limited, Far East Holdings International Limited and China BlueChemical Ltd., the shares of these companies and the units
of the said trust are listed on the Stock Exchange. He had been an independent non-executive director of New Universe
International Group Limited, the shares of which are listed on the Stock Exchange, until his resignation on 18 July 2012. Mr.
Lee joined the Company in November 2006.

Prof. Lee T. S., alias, Lee Tien-sheng, aged 64, is an Independent Non-Executive Director, the Chairman of the
Nomination Committee and a member of both the Audit Committee and Remuneration Committee of the Company. Prof.
Lee is currently a Professor and the Vice-President (Academic and Research) of Hang Seng Management College. He was
the Dean of the Faculty of Business Administration of The Chinese University of Hong Kong from 2002 to 2008. Prof. Lee
obtained his PhD in Business Administration and Master’s degree in Business Administration from the University of Missouri-
Columbia, the US in 1982 and 1978 respectively. He also holds a Master’s degree in Management Science and a Bachelor’s
degree in Electronic Engineering from the National Chiao Tung University of Taiwan. Prof. Lee’s research and teaching
interests include supply chain management, quality management and business process reengineering. He has published his
research in many academic journals. Prof. Lee joined the Company in November 2006.

Senior Management

Ms. Fung Kam Lai Katie, aged 46, is the Group’s Chief Financial Officer. Ms. Fung is responsible for the supervision and
management of the Group’s overall financial matters and investor relations. She joined the Group in March 2007 as the
Internal Audit Director and was appointed to the present position in July 2010. Ms. Fung obtained a Master’s degree in
Business Administration (Executive) from the City University of Hong Kong. She is a member of the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants and the American Institute of Certified Public Accountants. Ms. Fung has over 23 years of
experience in auditing, financial accounting, corporate investment and financing, as well as management.

Ms. Lu Qun, aged 59, is the Assistant General Manager (Strategic Management) of Embry (China) Garments Ltd. and also a
director of a subsidiary of the Company. She is responsible for the functions of strategic management and project
management in Mainland China. Ms. Lu obtained a Master’s degree in Business Administration from Beijing University of
Aeronautics and Astronautics in 2001. She also obtained an undergraduate diploma in international trade from University of
International Business and Economics in 1992. Ms. Lu obtained the International Project Management Professional
Certification in 2002 and has over 33 years of experience in management and administration. She joined the Group in April
2003.

Mr. Ma Rui, aged 42, is the Assistant General Manager (Marketing) of Embry (China) Garments Ltd. He is responsible for the
functions of sales planning and marketing management in Mainland China. Mr. Ma graduated from Changsha University with
a diploma in applied computer science in 1992, and is at present studying a master of business administration programme
offered by the Shanghai University of Finance and Economics. Mr. Ma has been engaged in various posts in sales and
marketing since joining the Group in October 1998. He possesses over 19 years of practical experience in sales and
marketing management.

¢
EMBRY HOLDINGS LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2012 21



Corporate
Governance Report

The Board and the management of the Company are committed to the maintenance of good corporate governance
practices and procedures. The Company believes that good corporate governance provides a framework that is essential for
effective management, a healthy corporate culture, sustainable business growth and enhancing shareholders’ value.

The Company has adopted the Corporate Governance Code (the “CG Code”) (formerly the “Code on Corporate Governance
Practice”) as contained in Appendix 14 to the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong

Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) (the “Listing Rules”) as its own code of corporate governance practices.

The Company complied with the code provisions under the CG Code so far as they are applicable and a majority of the
recommended best practices under the CG Code throughout the year ended 31 December 2012 (the “Review Period”).

GOVERNANCE STRUCTURE

Board of Directors
(3 Executive Directors
and 3 Independent
Non-Executive Directors)

Remunerathn C.ommlttee Audit Committee Nomlnatlon Colmmlttee
(1 Executive Director (1 Executive Director
(8 Independent
and 3 Independent Non-Executive Directors) and 3 Independent
Non-Executive Directors) Non-Executive Directors)

Internal Audit Information T_echnology
Audit

(Assistant Director —

Internal Audit) (Assistant Director —

Information Technology Audit)

Directors

Board Composition

The Directors place great emphasis on the fiduciary nature of the Board’s responsibilities and strive to be accountable to the
shareholders of the Company as a whole.

The Board currently comprises three Executive Directors, namely Mr. Cheng Man Tai (Chairman), Ms. Cheng Pik Ho Liza
(Chief Executive Officer) and Madam Ngok Ming Chu; and three Independent Non-Executive Directors, namely Mr. Lau Siu
Ki, Mr. Lee Kwan Hung and Prof. Lee T. S. The number of Independent Non-Executive Directors represents more than one
third of the Board. The biographical details of and relationships among the members of the Board are disclosed under the
section headed “Directors and Senior Management” on pages 20 to 21 of this annual report.

The Directors believe that the composition of the Board reflects the necessary balance of skills and experience appropriate
for the requirements of the business development of the Group and for effective leadership as all the Executive Directors
possess extensive experience in management and the design, production and marketing of lingerie products while the three
Independent Non-Executive Directors possess professional knowledge and broad experience in finance, law and
management respectively. The Directors are of the opinion that the present structure of the Board can ensure the
independence and objectivity of the Board and provide a system of checks and balances to safeguard the interests of the
shareholders and the Company.
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Appointment, Re-election and Removal of Directors

Article 108 (A) of the articles of association of the Company provides that one-third of the Directors for the time being, or, if
their number is not three or multiple of three, then the number nearest to but not less than one-third shall retire from office by
rotation provided that every Director shall be subject to retirement at least once every three years at the Company’s annual
general meeting and shall be eligible for re-election. Under Article 105, the office of a Director of the Company is liable to be
vacated in certain circumstances and the Company may remove any Director of the Company by an ordinary resolution at a
general meeting as prescribed in Article 114.

The appointment of new Directors and nomination of Directors for re-election at annual general meetings are first considered
by the Nomination Committee. The recommendations of the Nomination Committee will then be put to the Board for
decision. New Directors appointed by the Board are subject to re-election by shareholders at the next following annual
general meeting pursuant to the articles of association of the Company. In considering the appointment of new Directors, the
Nomination Committee will assess the candidate according to the criteria set out in Rules 3.08 and 3.09 of the Listing Rules.
In the case of a candidate for an Independent Non-Executive Director, he/she should also meet the independence criteria set
out in Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules.

Executive Directors

Each of the Executive Directors has respectively entered into a service agreement with the Company for a fixed term of three
years with effect from 1 December 2012. Each Executive Director is entitled to a basic salary plus a guaranteed year-end
bonus equivalent to the amount of the then monthly salary of the Executive Director at the time of payment of such bonus. In
addition, each Executive Director is entitled to a discretionary management bonus provided that the aggregate amount of the
bonuses payable to all the Executive Directors for any financial year of the Company shall not exceed 8% of the audited
combined or consolidated audited net profit of the Group (after taxation and minority interests and payment of such bonuses
but before extraordinary or exceptional items) for that financial year of the Company. An Executive Director shall not vote on
any resolution of the Directors regarding the amount of the management bonus payable to him/her.

Independent Non-Executive Directors

Each of the Independent Non-Executive Directors was appointed for an initial term of two years commencing from 25
November 2006 with a formal letter of appointment setting out the key terms and conditions of his appointment. All of them
were re-appointed for a further term of two years commencing from 25 November 2012 after the expiry of the third term.

Save for the directors’ fees and the share options granted under the Share Option Scheme (as defined on page 38 of this
annual report) to each of them, none of the Independent Non-Executive Directors is expected to receive any other
remuneration for holding his office as an Independent Non-Executive Director.

The Company annually assesses the independence of each Independent Non-Executive Director during his term of
appointment. In February and March 2013, the Company received from each of the Independent Non-Executive Directors a
written confirmation of his independence pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules. Based on such confirmations, the
Company considers that all the Independent Non-Executive Directors are independent.

Proceedings of Board Meetings and Board Committee Meetings

The Board considers that all meetings should be legally and properly convened. With the assistance of the Company
Secretary, the Chairman of the Board takes the lead to ensure that Board meetings and Board committee meetings are
convened in accordance with the requirements set out in the articles of association of the Company, the terms of reference
of the respective Board committees and the Listing Rules.

In convening Board meetings, the Chairman is responsible for drawing up and approving the agenda for each meeting after
consultation with all the Directors and the Company Secretary. Prior notice of each regular Board meeting is given to all the
Directors at least 14 days in advance and the Directors are invited to include matters for discussion in the agenda. Agenda
and accompanying Board papers are sent to all the Directors at least 3 days (or such other period as agreed) prior to
meetings.
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Corporate Governance Report (continued)

Board meetings are held at least four times a year. In addition, special Board meetings are held when necessary. Such
Board meetings involve the active participation, either in person or through other electronic means of communication, of all
the Directors.

Dates of regular Board meetings are scheduled in advance to provide sufficient notice to give all the Directors an opportunity
to attend. For special Board meetings, reasonable notice is given.

The Directors have access to the advice and services of the Company Secretary to ensure that Board procedures and all
applicable rules and regulations are followed.

The minutes of Board meetings record in sufficient detail the matters considered by the Board, including all concerns raised
by the Directors and dissenting views expressed. The minutes of all Board meetings and Board committee meetings are
available for inspection by any Director, auditors or any relevant eligible parties who can have access to such minutes.

Directors’ Attendance Records
The record of attendance of individual Directors at the Board meetings, Board committee meetings and annual general

meeting held during 2012 is set out in the following table:

Number of Meetings Attended/Held

Annual
Audit Nomination Remuneration General
Directors Board Committee  Committee = Committee Meeting
Executive Directors
Cheng Man Tai (Chairman) 5/5 N/A N/A N/A 1/1
Cheng Pik Ho Liza (Chief Executive Officer) 5/5 N/A 11 3/3 1/1
Ngok Ming Chu 5/5 N/A N/A N/A 1/1
Independent Non-Executive Directors
Lau Siu Ki 5/5 3/3 11 3/3 1/1
Lee Kwan Hung 5/5 3/3 11 3/3 1/1
LeeT.S. 5/5 3/3 11 3/3 1/1
Average Attendance Rate 100% 100% 100% 100% 100%

In addition, the Chairman met once with all the Independent Non-Executive Directors without the presence of the Executive
Directors during the Review Period.

Directors’ and Officers’ Liability Insurance

The Company has subscribed an insurance policy since December 2006 with an aim to indemnify its Directors and senior
executives from any losses, claims, damages, liabilities and expenses arising from, including but not limited to, any
proceedings brought against them during the performance of their duties pursuant to their respective service agreements
entered into with the Company.

Securities Transactions by Directors

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (“Model Code”) (with
certain modifications but on terms no less exacting than the required standard set out in the Model Code) as set out in
Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules as its own code (“Securities Dealing Code”) to regulate the securities dealings by all the
Directors and relevant employees of the Group.
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The Company made specific enquiry of all the Directors who confirmed that they complied with the Securities Dealing Code
during the Review Period.

Continuous Professional Development

Relevant materials on legislative and regulatory updates were circulated to all Directors during the Review Period as to keep
them abreast of any changes to the regulations and disclosure obligations. Ms. Cheng Pik Ho Liza, Mr. Lau Siu Ki, Mr. Lee
Kwan Hung and Prof. Lee T. S. also attended relevant training courses on management, duties and responsibilities of a
director and/or other topics organized by external professional bodies during the Review Period to develop and refresh their
knowledge and skills.

Procedure for Seeking Independent Professional Advice by Directors

There is a written procedure agreed by the Board to enable Directors, upon reasonable request, to seek and be provided
with independent professional advice in appropriate circumstances, at the Company’s expense in order to assist them to
discharge their duties to the Company.

Functions of the Board

Distinctive Roles of the Chairman and the Chief Executive Officer

To avoid concentration of power in any one individual, a clear division of responsibilities between the Chairman and the Chief
Executive Officer is crucial to the effective running of the Board and the day-to-day management of the Group’s businesses.
The positions of the Chairman and the Chief Executive Officer of the Company are held by two different Executive Directors,
namely Mr. Cheng Man Tai and Ms. Cheng Pik Ho Liza respectively. Their roles and duties are segregated, with a clear
division of responsibilities. Mr. Cheng Man Tai, the Chairman, is to provide leadership for the Board and ensure that the
Board works effectively while Ms. Cheng Pik Ho Liza, the Chief Executive Officer, is answerable to the Board for the
operations of the Group. Mr. Cheng is the father of Ms. Cheng.

Distinctive Roles of the Board and the Management
While at all times the Board retains full responsibility for guiding and monitoring the operations of the Group, in discharging its
duties, certain responsibilities are delegated to:

° the standing Board committees of the Company namely: the Audit Committee, the Nomination Committee and the
Remuneration Committee. Each committee’s constitution, powers and duties are clearly defined by its terms of
reference, and the committees are accountable to the Board. Ad hoc Board committees may also be established as
required from time to time by the Board;

° the Chief Executive Officer, being delegated with the day-to-day management of the businesses of the Group, is
accountable to the Board; and

° the senior management team of the Group, being delegated with the responsibilities to deal with daily operational
functions, is answerable to the Executive Directors.

The Board believes that effective delegation of authority can ensure that the Board is provided with sufficient and timely
information of the Group’s businesses which is, in particular, relevant to the Group’s performance, financial position and
operating results, in order that the Board is able to make an informed assessment of matters put before the Board for
approval. During the Review Period, each Executive Director had frequent meetings with operational managers in order to
maintain an effective feedback system and enable the Company to react to changes or problems quickly and effectively.
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The functions reserved to the Board are formalized in writing and include:
° any matters relating to the formulation of the Company’s strategy and direction;
o any matters relating to financial controls, compliance and risk management;

° any changes in corporate structure such as the changes relating to the Company’s capital structure, including
reduction of share capital, share buy-back or issue of new securities;

° major appointments such as appointments to the Board, after taking into account the recommendations of the
Nomination Committee; the appointment of the Chairman and the Chief Executive Officer; recommendations to the
shareholders on the appointment or removal of external auditors after taking into consideration the recommendations
of the Audit Committee; and the appointment or removal of the Chief Financial Officer and the Company Secretary;

° any matters determined by the Board to be material, including dividend policy, significant changes in accounting
policies, material contracts, major financing arrangements and major investments; and

o the corporate governance functions set out in code provision D.3.1 of the CG Code.

With respect to the corporate governance functions, the Board has reviewed and monitored the Company’s corporate
governance policies and practices, the training and continuous professional development of directors and senior
management, the Company’s policies and practices on compliance with legal and regulatory requirements, and the
Company’s compliance with the CG Code and disclosure in this Corporate Governance Report.

The Board regularly reviews its arrangement for delegation of authority to ensure that such delegation is appropriate in view
of the Company’s prevailing circumstances and that appropriate reporting systems are in place.

Board Committees

A total of three Board committees, namely the Audit Committee, the Nomination Committee and the Remuneration
Committee, have been formed, each of which is delegated with specific roles and responsibilities by the Board. All the Board
committees follow the same principles and procedures as those of the Board. The Board receives the minutes of each
committee meeting on a regular basis, including their decisions and recommendations.

Audit Committee
The Company has established an Audit Committee with written terms of reference. At present, the Audit Committee consists
of three Independent Non-Executive Directors, namely:

Mr. Lau Siu Ki (Chairman)
Mr. Lee Kwan Hung
Prof. Lee T. S.

Members of the Audit Committee are appointed by the Board amongst the Independent Non-Executive Directors only and
the committee consists of not less than three members. The Board considers that each Audit Committee member has broad
commercial experience and together form a suitable mix of expertise in the legal and accounting fields and that the
composition and members of the Audit Committee comply with the requirements under Rule 3.21 of the Listing Rules. The
Board, after consultation with the chairman of the Audit Committee, provides sufficient resources to the Audit Committee to
enable it to discharge its duties.
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The Audit Committee has the responsibilities and powers set forth in its terms of reference. To maintain its independence,
the Audit Committee is required to have at least one meeting with the external auditors without the presence of Executive
Directors within a financial year. The function of the committee is to provide assistance to the Board in fulfilling its oversight
responsibilities to shareholders, potential shareholders, the investment community and other stakeholders relating to:

° the integrity of accounts and financial reporting process of the Company;

° the assessment of the external auditors’ qualifications and independence; and

° the performance of the Company’s internal audit function and the performance of the external auditors.

The terms of reference of the Audit Committee are available for inspection on the Company’s website and the Stock
Exchange’s website.

During 2012, the Audit Committee held three meetings including one meeting with the external auditors without the presence
of the Executive Directors and the management. The record of attendance of individual Directors at the committee meetings
is set out on page 24 of this annual report.

The following is a summary of the work performed by the Audit Committee during the Review Period:

(i) review of the annual report and results announcement of the Company for the year ended 31 December 2011, with a
recommendation to the Board for approval;

(i) review of the external auditors’ independence and their report, with a recommendation to the Board for the re-
appointment of the external auditors by the shareholders of the Company at its 2012 annual general meeting;

(i)  review of continuing connected transactions;

(iv)  review of the interim report and results announcement of the Company for the six months ended 30 June 2012, with a
recommendation to the Board for approval;

(v)  review of quarterly financial reports of the Company prepared by the Finance and Accounts Department;
(vi)  consideration of audit and non-audit services provided by the external auditors;
(vii)  review of the effectiveness of the system of internal control of the Company and its subsidiaries;

(viii)  review of periodic reports prepared by the Internal Audit Department and the Information Technology Audit
Department;

(ix)  review of the adequacy of resources, qualifications and experience of staff of the Company’s accounting and financial
reporting function, and their training programmes and budget;

(x)  review of the revised terms of reference of the Audit Committee, with a recommendation to the Board for approval;

(xi)  review of a whistleblowing policy whereby employees of the Company can raise concerns about the possible
improprieties in financial reporting, internal control or other matters, with a recommendation to the Board for approval;
and

(i) review of the audit fees payable to the external auditors for the year ended 31 December 2012, with a recommendation
to the Board for approval.
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Auditors’ Remuneration
The Audit Committee has reviewed the remuneration paid/payable to Messrs. Ernst & Young, the external auditors of the
Company, for the following services provided during the Review Period:

Remuneration

Services Rendered Paid/Payable
Audit services HK$2,700,000
Non-audit services HK$595,000
Total: HK$3,295,000

The Audit Committee has expressed its views to the Board that the level of fees paid/payable to the Company’s external
auditors is reasonable. There has been no major disagreement between the external auditors and the management of the
Company during the Review Period.

Nomination Committee
The Company has established a Nomination Committee with written terms of reference. At present, the Nomination
Committee has four members comprising one Executive Director and three Independent Non-Executive Directors, namely:

Prof. Lee T. S. (Chairman)*
Ms. Cheng Pik Ho Liza*
Mr. Lau Siu Ki

Mr. Lee Kwan Hung

*

In compliance with the new requirement under code provision A.5.1 of the CG Code, Prof. Lee T. S. has been appointed as the
Chairman of the Nomination Committee in place of Ms. Cheng Pik Ho Liza with effect from 1 March 2012. Ms. Cheng remains as a
member of the Nomination Committee.

The main functions of the Nomination Committee are to review the structure, size and composition of the Board, to identify
individuals who are suitably qualified to become Directors, and to assess the independence of the Independent Non-
Executive Directors. After considering the independence and qualifications of nominees, the Nomination Committee makes
recommendations to the Board so as to ensure that all nominations are fair and transparent. The Nomination Committee is
also responsible for reviewing the succession planning of Directors, in particular the Chairman and the Chief Executive
Officer. The Board, after consultation with the chairman of the Nomination Committee, provides sufficient resources to the
Nomination Committee to enable it to discharge its duties.

The Nomination Committee met once in 2012. The record of attendance of individual Directors at the committee meeting is
set out on page 24 of this annual report.

The following is a summary of the work performed by the Nomination Committee during the Review Period:

(i) review of the revised terms of reference of the Nomination Committee, with a recommendation to the Board for
approval;

(i) recommendation to the Board on the appointment of the new Chairman of the Nomination Committee;

(i) assessment of the independence of the Independent Non-Executive Directors;
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(iv)  recommendation to the Board on the re-election of Directors; and
(v)  review of the existing structure, size and composition of the Board.

As a good corporate governance practice, Nomination Committee member (being also the Independent Non-Executive
Director) abstained from assessing his own independence.

The terms of reference of the Nomination Committee are available for inspection on the Company’s website and the Stock
Exchange’s website.

Remuneration Committee

The Company has established a Remuneration Committee with written terms of reference. The Board has delegated
authority to the Remuneration Committee to review and recommend to the Board the compensation scheme of the
Company’s Directors and senior management.

The Remuneration Committee at present has four members comprising one Executive Director and three Independent
Non-Executive Directors, namely:

Mr. Lee Kwan Hung (Chairman)*
Ms. Cheng Pik Ho Liza*

Mr. Lau Siu Ki
Prof. Lee T. S.
* In compliance with the new requirement under Rule 3.25 of the Listing Rules, Mr. Lee Kwan Hung has been appointed as the

Chairman of the Remuneration Committee in place of Ms. Cheng Pik Ho Liza with effect from 1 March 2012. Ms. Cheng remains as
a member of the Remuneration Committee.

The main functions of the Remuneration Committee are to assist the Board in establishing a formal and transparent
procedure for setting policy on Directors’ and senior management’s remuneration and to make recommendation to the
Board on the packages (which include benefits in kind, pension rights and compensation payments) of individual Executive
Directors and senior management (i.e. the model described in code provision B.1.2(c)(i) was adopted) as well as on the
remuneration of Non-Executive Directors. The Board, after consultation with the chairman of the Remuneration Committee,
provides sufficient resources to the Remuneration Committee to enable it to discharge its duties.

In recommending the remuneration of the Directors, the Remuneration Committee makes reference to companies of
comparable business or scale, and the nature and volume of work in order to compensate the Directors reasonably for their
time and efforts spent. The Remuneration Committee regularly reviews and makes recommendations to the Board on the

remuneration of Directors and senior management.

The Remuneration Committee held three meetings in 2012. The record of attendance of individual Directors at the committee
meetings is set out on page 24 of this annual report.

The following is a summary of the work performed by the Remuneration Committee during the Review Period:

(i) review of the salary increment for 2012 of Executive Directors, and staff in Mainland China and Hong Kong, with a
recommendation to the Board for approval;

(i)  consideration of the payment of bonuses to the senior management staff in Mainland China and Hong Kong, with a
recommendation to the Board for approval;
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(i)  recommendation to the Board on the vesting of share options under the Share Option Scheme to selected employees;
(iv)  consideration of the payment of discretionary bonuses to Executive Directors and the senior management in respect of
the final results of the Company for the year ended 31 December 2011 and the interim results of the Company for the

six months ended 30 June 2012, with a recommendation to the Board for approval;

(v)  review of the revised terms of reference of the Remuneration Committee, with a recommendation to the Board for
approval;

(vi)  recommendation to the Board on the appointment of the new Chairman of the Remuneration Committee;

(vi)  review of the new service agreements between the Company and the Executive Directors, with a recommendation to
the Board for approval;

(viii)  review of the letters of re-appointment of the Independent Non-Executive Directors, with a recommendation to the
Board for approval; and

(ix)  review of the remuneration package of the former Company Secretary & Legal Counsel with a recommendation to the
Board for approval.

The terms of reference of the Remuneration Committee are available for inspection on the Company’s website and the Stock
Exchange’s website.

Pursuant to code provision B.1.5 of the CG Code, details of the annual remuneration of the members of the senior
management by band for the year ended 31 December 2012 is as follows:

Number of

employees

HK$1,500,001 to HK$2,000,000 1
HK$2,000,001 to HK$2,500,000 1
HK$2,500,001 to HK$3,000,000 1
3

Details of the remuneration of each director for the year ended 31 December 2012 are set out in note 10 to the financial
statements.

Financial Reporting

The Board acknowledges its responsibility for the preparation of the financial statements for each financial period, which shall
give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the Company. During the Review Period, the Board was not aware of any
material uncertainties relating to events or conditions that might cast significant doubt upon the Company’s ability to
continue in business. Accordingly, the Board has prepared the financial statements of the Company on a going concern
basis.
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All the Directors acknowledged their responsibility for preparing the financial statements of the Company for the year ended
31 December 2012.

The statement of the external auditors of the Company about their reporting responsibilities on the financial statements of the
Group is set out in the Independent Auditors’ Report on pages 83 to 84 of this annual report.

The Company announces its interim and annual results as soon as reasonably practicable after the end of the relevant
financial period and the financial year respectively pursuant to the requirements of the Listing Rules, disclosing all such
information as would enable the Company’s shareholders to assess the performance, financial position and prospects of the
Company.

Internal Control

The Board is responsible for the internal controls of the Group and reviewing their effectiveness. The Board acknowledges
that the objectives of internal control are to safeguard the Company’s assets against unauthorised use or disposition and to
ensure that the Company’s accounting records are properly maintained and all the financial information is accurate and
reliable.

The Internal Audit Department and the Information Technology Audit Department of the Group conduct reviews of the
effectiveness of the Group’s internal control system. They carry out the financial, operational, and information security control
reviews according to the yearly plan reviewed and endorsed by the Audit Committee. In addition to the agreed schedule of
work, the departments conduct other reviews and work as and when required. The findings and recommendations have
been reviewed by the members of the Audit Committee and the Board who are of the view that the internal control system of
the Group has been effective without the occurrence of any significant failure.

The Internal Audit Department and the Information Technology Audit Department of the Group continued to provide
independent assurance to the Board and management on the adequacy and effectiveness of internal controls for the Group
during the Review Period. The Assistant Director — Internal Audit and the Assistant Director — Information Technology Audit
report functionally to the Audit Committee and administratively to the Chief Executive Officer.

The Board undertakes to periodically review the internal control and risk management systems of the Group to ensure their
effectiveness and efficiency.

The Board reviewed the adequacy of resources, qualifications and experience of staff of the Company’s accounting and
financial reporting function, and their training programmes and budget during the Review Period and considered that the
Group had adequate staff resources with the competence, qualifications and experience necessary for the effective
performance of its accounting and financial reporting function.

Company Secretary

Ms. So Ka Man of Tricor Services Limited, external service provider, has been engaged by the Company as its Company
Secretary. The primary contact person at the Company, whom Ms. So can contact, is Ms. Fung Kam Lai Katie, the Chief
Financial Officer of the Company.

During the year ended 31 December 2012, Ms. So has taken no less than 15 hours of relevant professional trainings to
update her skills and knowledge.
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Investor Relations and Communication with Shareholders

Since 2006, the Company has engaged a professional public relations consultancy company to organise various investor
relations programs (including regular briefing meetings with the media and analysts) aiming at increasing the transparency of
the Company, enhancing communication with shareholders and investors, increasing their understanding of and confidence
in the Group’s businesses and promoting market recognition of and support to the Company.

The Company recognises the importance of maintaining on-going communications with its shareholders and encourages
them to attend shareholders’ meetings to stay informed of the Group’s businesses and convey any concerns they may have
to the Directors and senior management.

Shareholders’ Rights

Convening an Extraordinary General Meeting of the Company by Shareholders

In accordance with Article 64 of the articles of association of the Company, an extraordinary general meeting can be
convened on the requisition of one or more shareholders holding, at the date of deposit of the requisition, not less than one
tenth of the paid up capital of the Company having the right of voting at general meetings. Such requisition shall be made in
writing to the Directors or the Company Secretary for the purpose of requiring an extraordinary general meeting to be called
by the Directors for the transaction of any business specified in such requisition.

Procedures for Sending Enquiries to the Board
Enquiries by shareholders to be put to the Board can be sent in writing to the Company’s Company Secretarial Department
at the principal place of business in Hong Kong.

For share registration related matters, such as share transfer and registration, change of name or address, loss of share
certificates or dividend warrants, the Company’s registered shareholders can contact the Company’s branch share registrar
in Hong Kong, Tricor Investor Services Limited. For other enquires or requests, the Company’s investors can contact iPR
QOgilvy Limited, the Company’s public relations consultancy company. Detailed contact information is available on the
Company’s website at www.embrygroup.com.

Procedures for Making Proposals at Shareholders’ Meetings

If a shareholder of the Company wishes to nominate a person to stand for election as a Director, the following documents
must be validly sent to the Company’s principal place of business in Hong Kong or the Company’s branch share registrar in
Hong Kong, Tricor Investor Services Limited, namely (i) his/her notice of intention to propose a resolution at the general
meeting; and (i) a notice executed by the nominated candidate of the candidate’s willingness to be appointed. The period for
lodgment of the notices of (i) and (ii) above will commence no earlier than the day after the despatch of the notice of the
general meeting and end no later than seven days prior to the date of such meeting.

To put forward proposals other than the above at a general meeting, shareholders of the Company should submit a written
notice of those proposals with their detailed contact information to the Company Secretary at the Company’s principal place
of business in Hong Kong. The notice period to be given to all the shareholders for consideration of the proposal raised by
the shareholders concerned at general meetings varies according to the nature of the proposal.

During the Review Period, the Company has not made any changes to the articles of association of the Company. An up-to-
date version of the articles of association of the Company is available on the websites of the Company and the Stock
Exchange. Shareholders may refer to the articles of association of the Company for further details of the rights of
shareholders.
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Report
of the Directors

The directors present their report and the audited financial statements of the Company and of the Group for the year ended
31 December 2012.

Principal Activities

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding. Details of the principal activities of the subsidiaries are set out in
note 23 to the financial statements. There were no significant changes in the nature of the Group’s principal activities during
the year.

Results and Dividends
The Group’s profit for the year ended 31 December 2012 and the state of affairs of the Company and of the Group at that
date are set out in the financial statements on pages 85 to 182.

An interim dividend of HK4 cents per ordinary share was paid on 3 October 2012. The directors recommend the payment of
a final dividend of HK7 cents and a special dividend of HK2 cents per ordinary share in respect of the year, to shareholders
on the register of members on 29 May 2013. Details are set out in note 15 to the financial statements.

Summary Financial Information

A summary of the results and of the assets and liabilities of the Group for the last five financial years, as extracted from the
published audited financial statements and restated as appropriate, is set out below. The amounts for each year in the five
year financial summary have been adjusted for the effects of the retrospective changes in the accounting policy affecting
deferred tax on investment properties, as detailed in note 2.2 to the financial statements.

Results
Year ended 31 December

2012 2011 2010 2009 2008
HK$°000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$000
(Restated) (Restated) (Restated) (Restated)
REVENUE 1,995,356 1,694,987 1,349,846 1,176,089 973,342
PROFIT BEFORE TAX 260,614 231,268 185,684 167,709 95,103
INCOME TAX EXPENSE (77,052) (70,985) (58,814) (63,191) (23,375)
PROFIT FOR THE YEAR 183,562 160,283 126,870 114,518 71,728

Attributable to:
Owners of the Company 183,562 160,283 126,870 114,518 71,728
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Summary Financial Information (continueq)
Assets and Liabilities

As at 31 December
2012 2011 2010 2009 2008
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
(Restated) (Restated) (Restated) (Restated)

TOTAL ASSETS 1,901,395 1,757,214 1,639,245 1,186,274 1,029,173

TOTAL LIABILITIES (464,159)|  (483,988)  (427,242)  (190,387)  (119,423)

1,437,236 1,273,226 1,112,003 995,887 909,750

The above summary does not form a part of the audited financial statements.

Property, Plant and Equipment and Investment Properties
Details of movements in the property, plant and equipment, and the investment properties of the Group during the year are
set out in notes 17 and 18 to the financial statements, respectively.

Share Capital and Share Options
Details of movements in the Company’s share capital and share options during the year are set out in notes 30 and 31 to the
financial statements, respectively.

Pre-emptive Rights
There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the Company’s articles of association or the laws of the Cayman Islands
which would oblige the Company to offer new shares on a pro-rata basis to existing shareholders.

Purchase, Redemption or Sale of Listed Securities of the Company
Neither the Company, nor any of its subsidiaries purchased, redeemed or sold any of the Company’s listed securities during
the year.

Reserves
Details of movements in the reserves of the Company and of the Group during the year are set out in note 32(b) to the
financial statements and in the consolidated statement of changes in equity, respectively.
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Distributable Reserves

At 31 December 2012, the Company’s reserves available for distribution, calculated in accordance with the Companies Law,
Chapter 22 (Law 3 of 1961, as consolidated and revised) of the Cayman Islands, amounted to HK$653,224,000, of which
HK$37,499,000 has been proposed as final and special dividends for the year after the reporting period. The amount of
HK$653,224,000 includes the Company’s share premium account and contributed surplus of HK$750,892,000 in aggregate
at 31 December 2012, which may be distributed provided that immediately following the date on which the dividend is
proposed to be distributed, the Company will be in a position to pay off its debts as and when they fall due in the ordinary
course of business.

Charitable Contributions
During the year, the Group made charitable contributions totalling HK$8,707,000.

Major Customers and Suppliers
In the year under review, sales to the Group’s five largest customers and purchases from the five largest suppliers accounted
for less than 30% of the total sales and purchases for the year, respectively.

None of the directors of the Company or any of their associates or any shareholders (which, to the best knowledge of the
directors, own more than 5% of the Company’s issued share capital) had any beneficial interest in the Group’s five largest
customers or suppliers.

Directors
The directors of the Company during the year were:

Executive Directors

Mr. Cheng Man Tai (Chairman)

Ms. Cheng Pik Ho Liza (Chief Executive Officer)
Madam Ngok Ming Chu

Independent Non-Executive Directors
Mr. Lau Siu Ki

Mr. Lee Kwan Hung

Prof. Lee T. S.

In accordance with article 108(A) of the Company’s articles of association, Mr. Lau Siu Ki and Mr. Lee Kwan Hung will retire
by rotation and, being eligible, will offer themselves for re-election at the forthcoming annual general meeting.

The Company has received annual confirmations of independence from Mr. Lau Siu Ki, Mr. Lee Kwan Hung and

Prof. Lee T. S. pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) (the “Listing Rules”), and as at the date of this report, still considers them to be independent.
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Directors’ and Senior Management’s Biographies
Biographical details of the directors of the Company and the senior management of the Group are set out on pages 20 to 21
of the annual report.

Directors’ Service Contracts

Each of the executive directors has entered into a service agreement with the Company for an initial term of three years
commencing on 1 December 2006 and the service agreements have been renewed for a further term of three years
commencing on 1 December 2012 after the expiry of the second term. Each of the independent non-executive directors has
been re-appointed for an initial term of two years commencing on 25 November 2006, and they have been re-appointed for
a further term of two years commencing on 25 November 2012 after the expiry of the third term.

Under the service agreement, after each complete year of service, the remuneration payable to each of the executive
directors may, subject to the discretion of the Company’s board of directors, be increased by not more than 10% and the
executive directors are entitled to a discretionary management bonus provided that the total amount of bonuses payable to
all the directors for that year shall not exceed 8% of the audited consolidated profit after tax of the Group.

Apart from the foregoing, no director proposed for re-election at the forthcoming annual general meeting has a service
contract with the Company which is not determinable by the Company within one year without payment of compensation,
other than statutory compensation.

Emolument Policy and Directors’ Remuneration

The Group’s emolument policy is formulated based on the performance of individual employees and is reviewed regularly.

Subject to the Group’s profitability, the Group may also provide discretionary bonuses to its employees as an incentive for
their contribution to the Group. The primary goal of the emolument policy with regard to the remuneration packages of the
Group’s executive directors is to enable the Group to retain and motivate executive directors by linking their compensation
with performance as measured against corporate objectives achieved.

The principal elements of the Group’s remuneration packages include basic salaries, discretionary bonuses and housing
benefits.

The directors’ fees are subject to shareholders’ approval at general meetings. Other emoluments are determined by the
Company’s board of directors with reference to directors’ duties, responsibilities and performance and the results of the
Group.

Directors’ Interests in Contracts

Save for transactions as disclosed in note 13 to the financial statements, no director had a material interest, either directly or
indirectly, in any contract of significance to the business of the Group to which the Company, its holding company or any of
its subsidiaries was a party during the year.
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Directors’ Interests and Short Positions in Shares and Underlying Shares

At 31 December 2012, the interests and short positions of the directors in the share capital and underlying shares of the
Company or its associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the Securities and Futures Ordinance (the “SFO”)),
as recorded in the register required to be kept by the Company pursuant to Section 352 of the SFO, or as otherwise notified
to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed
Issuers (the “Model Code”), were as follows:

Long positions in ordinary shares of the Company:

Number of

Percentage of
the Company’s

Capacity and Shares/equity shares/equity issued share
Name nature of interest derivatives derivatives held capital
Mr. Cheng Man Tai Interest of controlled Ordinary shares 276,679,557 66.40
corporations (Note 1)
Beneficial owner Ordinary shares 4,431,000 1.06
Beneficial owner Share options 35,000 0.01
(Note 2)
Ms. Cheng Pik Ho Liza Beneficial owner Ordinary shares 20,685,848 4.96
Beneficial owner Share options 1,460,000 0.35
(Note 2)
Madam Ngok Ming Chu Interest of controlled Ordinary shares 276,679,557 66.40
corporations (Note 1)
Beneficial owner Ordinary shares 2,302,000 0.55
Beneficial owner Share options 60,000 0.01
(Note 2)
Mr. Lau Siu Ki Beneficial owner Ordinary shares 768,000 0.18
Beneficial owner Share options 100,000 0.02
(Note 2)
Mr. Lee Kwan Hung Beneficial owner Ordinary shares 618,000 0.15
Beneficial owner Share options 100,000 0.02
(Note 2)
Prof. Lee T. S. Beneficial owner Ordinary shares 648,000 0.16
Beneficial owner Share options 100,000 0.02

(Note 2)
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Directors’ Interests and Short Positions in Shares and Underlying Shares
(continued)

Long positions in shares of an associated corporation:

Percentage of

the
associated
Name of Relationship Shares/ Capacity and  corporation’s
associated with the equity Number nature of issued share
Name corporation Company derivatives of shares interest capital
Mr. Cheng Man Tai Harmonious Ultimate  Ordinary shares  57.91 shares of Directly 59.09
World Limited holding US$1 each beneficially
(“Harmonious company owned
World”)
Madam Ngok Ming Chu Harmonious Ultimate  Ordinary shares ~ 40.09 shares of Directly 40.91
World holding US$1 each beneficially
company owned
Notes:
1. These shares are held as to 275,408,367 shares by Harmonious World and as to 1,271,190 shares by Fairmout Investments

Limited (“Fairmout Investments”). Harmonious World is owned as to 59.09% by Mr. Cheng Man Tai and as to 40.91% by Madam
Ngok Ming Chu. Fairmout Investments is owned as to 50% by Mr. Cheng Man Tai and as to 50% by Madam Ngok Ming Chu.

2. These represent the number of shares which will be allotted and issued to the respective directors upon the exercise of the share
options granted to each of them under the share option scheme adopted on 18 December 2006 (the “Share Option Scheme”).

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2012, none of the directors had registered an interest or short position in the
shares, underlying shares of the Company or any of its associated corporations that was required to be recorded pursuant
to Section 352 of the SFO, or as otherwise notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code.

Directors’ Rights to Acquire Shares or Debentures

Save as disclosed in the section “Directors’ interests and short positions in shares and underlying shares” above and in the

section “Share option scheme” below, at no time during the year were rights to acquire benefits by means of the acquisition
of shares in or debentures of the Company granted to any of the directors or their respective spouses or minor children, or

were any such rights exercised by them; or was the Company, its holding company or any of its subsidiaries a party to any

arrangement to enable the directors to acquire such rights in any other body corporate.

Share Option Scheme
The Company adopted a share option scheme on 18 December 2006. Details of the scheme are set out in note 31 to the
financial statements.

Details of the share option movements during the year are separately disclosed in note 31 to the financial statements.
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Substantial Shareholders’ and Other Persons’ Interests in Shares and
Underlying Shares

At 31 December 2012, the following interests of 5% or more of the issued share capital of the Company (other than the
interests of the directors of the Company as disclosed above) were recorded in the register of interests required to be kept
by the Company pursuant to Section 336 of the SFO:

Long positions:

Percentage of

Number of the Company’s

Capacity and ordinary issued share

Name nature of interest shares held capital
(Note)

Harmonious World Directly beneficially owned 275,408,367 66.10

FIL Limited (formerly known as Investment manager 25,011,000 6.00

“Fidelity International Limited”)

Note:  The relationship between Harmonious World and Mr. Cheng Man Tai and Madam Ngok Ming Chu is disclosed under the heading
“Directors’ interests and short positions in shares and underlying shares” above.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2012, no person, other than the directors of the Company, whose interests are
set out in the section “Directors’ interests and short positions in shares and underlying shares” above, had registered an
interest or short position in the shares or underlying shares of the Company that was required to be recorded pursuant to
Section 336 of the SFO.

Sufficiency of Public Float
Based on the information that is publicly available to the Company and within the knowledge of the directors, at least 25% of
the Company’s total issued share capital was held by the public as at the date of this report.

Continuing Connected Transactions
During the year, the Group had the following continuing connected transactions, details of which are disclosed in compliance
with the requirements of Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

(1) Purchase of furniture
The Company and certain subsidiaries of the Group had entered into a services agreement with related companies
controlled by a son of a director of the Company, pursuant to which the Company and these subsidiaries agreed to
purchase furniture and provide services of decoration for their counters and shops as well as different type of moulds
from the related companies. The services agreement expired on 31 December 2011 and the Company therefore
entered into a new services agreement (the “2012 Agreement”) with the related companies on 21 December 2011.
Under the 2012 Agreement, the Group agreed to purchase furniture, services of decoration and different type of
moulds from the related companies for a period of three years starting from 1 January 2012. The continuing connected
transactions contemplated under the 2012 Agreement would only be subject to the reporting, annual review and
announcement requirements and are exempt from the independent shareholders’ approval requirement under the
Listing Rules.
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Report of the Directors (continued)

Continuing Connected Transactions (continued)

(@)

Lease of industrial complex

On 27 November 2007, a subsidiary of the Company had entered into a tenancy agreement with the related company
controlled by a director of the Company and two sons of a director of the Company in relation to the lease of an
industrial complex in Changzhou for a period of three years starting from 1 January 2008. The tenancy agreement has
been renewed for a term of three years commencing on 1 January 2011. The continuing connected transaction under
the new tenancy agreement constitutes a de minimis transaction under the Listing Rules and is exempt from the
reporting, annual review, announcement and independent shareholders’ approval requirements under the Listing
Rules.

Lease of warehouse

A subsidiary of the Company has been leasing a warehouse in Hong Kong from a director of the Company. The
continuing connected transaction under the tenancy agreement also constitutes a de minimis transaction under the
Listing Rules.

Details of these continuing connected transactions of the Group are set out in notes 13(a)(i), (i) and (ii)) to the financial
statements.

Pursuant to Rule 14A.37 of the Listing Rules, the independent non-executive directors have reviewed the continuing
connected transactions disclosed in (1) above and confirmed that these continuing connected transactions have been
entered into:

U

(i)

(i)

in the ordinary and usual course of business of the Group;

on normal commercial terms or terms no less favourable to the Group than terms available to or from independent
third parties; and

in accordance with the relevant agreement governing them on terms that are fair and reasonable and in the interests of
the shareholders of the Company as a whole.

The total amount in respect of the continuing connected transactions disclosed in (1) above during the year under review has
not exceeded the annual cap for the transactions.

In respect of the continuing connected transactions disclosed above, the directors confirm that the Company has complied
with the disclosure requirements in accordance with Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules during the year under review.
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Continuing Connected Transactions (continued)

The Company has also received a letter from Ernst & Young, the Company’s auditors, to report on the Group’s continuing
connected transactions in accordance with Hong Kong Standard on Assurance Engagements 3000 Assurance
Engagements Other Than Audits or Reviews of Historical Financial Information and with reference to Practice Note 740
Auditor’s Letter on Continuing Connected Transactions under the Hong Kong Listing Rules issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants. Ernst & Young have issued the letter containing their findings and conclusions in
respect of the continuing connected transactions disclosed in (1) above by the Group in accordance with Rule 14A.38 of the
Listing Rules and stating that:

(i) the transactions have received the approval of the Company’s board of directors;

(i) the transactions have been entered into and conducted in accordance with the relevant agreement governing the
transactions; and

(iy  the total amount of the transactions for the year under review has not exceeded the cap disclosed in the

announcement of the Company dated 21 December 2011.

Event after the Reporting Period

Details of the significant event of the Group after the reporting period are set out in note 39 to the financial statements.

Auditors

Ernst & Young retire and a resolution for their reappointment as auditors of the Company will be proposed at the forthcoming
annual general meeting.

On behalf of the Board

Cheng Man Tai
Chairman

Hong Kong, 25 March 2013
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To the shareholders of Embry Holdings Limited
(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Embry
Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (together, the
“Group”) set out on pages 85 to 182, which comprise the
consolidated and company statements of financial position as at 31
December 2012, and the consolidated income statement, the
consolidated statement of comprehensive income, the consolidated
statement of changes in equity and the consolidated statement of
cash flows for the year then ended, and a summary of significant
accounting policies and other explanatory information.

Directors’ Responsibility for the
Consolidated Financial Statements

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of
consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in

accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards issued by

the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants and the
disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance,
and for such internal control as the directors determine is necessary
to enable the preparation of consolidated financial statements that
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditors’ Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated
financial statements based on our audit. Our report is made solely to
you, as a body, and for no other purpose. We do not assume
responsibility towards or accept liability to any other person for the
contents of this report.

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards
on Auditing issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants. Those standards require that we comply with ethical
requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements are
free from material misstatement.
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Auditors’ Responsibility (continued)

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence
about the amounts and disclosures in the consolidated financial
statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditors’
judgement, including the assessment of the risks of material
misstatement of the consolidated financial statements, whether due
to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditors
consider internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation of
consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in
order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on
the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. An audit also includes
evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of accounting estimates made by the directors, as
well as evaluating the overall presentation of the consolidated financial
statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

Opinion

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and
fair view of the state of affairs of the Company and of the Group as at
31 December 2012, and of the Group’s profit and cash flows for the
year then ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards and have been properly prepared in accordance with the
disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

Ernst & Young

Certified Public Accountants
22/F CITIC Tower

1 Tim Mei Avenue

Central, Hong Kong

25 March 2013
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Consolldated Income Statement

o I 2%

Year ended 31 December 2012 = -2 Lo+ —F=+-—QltEE

2012 2011
—E— —ET——F
Notes HK$’000 HK$’000
HtaF FET FET
(Restated)
(&%)
REVENUE Ik &5 ) 1,995,356 1,694,987
Cost of sales SHE R (375,217) (300,615)
Gross profit EF 1,620,139 1,394,372
Other income and gains H b U A R Uz 6 57,287 57,520
Selling and distribution expenses HENDHEX (1,209,822) (1,017,100)
Administrative expenses ITBRHX (193,786) (195,077)
Other expenses HApZ 7 (9,298) (6,205)
Finance costs BhE Bk AN 8 (3,906) (2,242)
PROFIT BEFORE TAX RRBE AR T 9 260,614 231,268
Income tax expense Fris i 12 (77,052) (70,985)
PROFIT FOR THE YEAR AAREE AES
ATTRIBUTABLE TO FERF
OWNERS OF THE COMPANY 14 183,562 160,283
EARNINGS PER SHARE RATEE AEMN
ATTRIBUTABLE TO BREF
OWNERS OF THE COMPANY 16
— Basic (HK cents) — B (B 44.38 39.15
— Diluted (HK cents) —#5E (B4L) 44.17 38.64
Details of the dividends are disclosed in note 15 to the financial % BRI IR B TSR R HIE 15 ©
statements.
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Consolidated Statement of (Comprehensive Income

r o2 [z 7R

Year ended 831 December 2012 B2 B~ _F+=—A=1+—HILFE

2012 2011
—EF—= —F——%F
HK$’000 HK$000
FET FEIT
(Restated)
(&%)
Profit for the year FEHA 183,562 160,283
Other comprehensive income: HEmEKA -
Revaluation surplus EHAHK 1,063 -
Deferred tax debited to asset revaluation REEEGHBHEINR
reserve ZIBRIERRIE (266) -
Exchange differences arising on translation MHEIBINESBIEEZEHZRE
of foreign operations 11,038 23,564
TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE INCOME AATBEEANELEE
FOR THE YEAR ATTRIBUTABLE TO 2HEIRAHAEE
OWNERS OF THE COMPANY 195,397 183,847
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Conso]ldated Statement of Fmanma] POSltlon

JJ LG LT

31 December2012 e —— o — = ‘f‘—.E

31 December 31 December 1 January
2012 2011 2011
—E-CF —E——F —T——F
+=ZA=+-B +=-A=+—H =F=[
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
Hiat FET FET FET
(Restated) (Restated)
(&%) (&2%1)
NON-CURRENT ASSETS FREBEE
Property, plant and equipment mE - BB R 17 502,435 541,260 518,923
Investment properties BEME 18 296,321 249,805 217,224
Prepaid land lease payments B A EHRE 19 39,784 35,521 35,020
Deferred tax assets ERERIBEE 29 27,512 23,586 11,197
Deposits b 22 5,869 6,826 5,497
Total non-current assets FEREBEELE 871,921 856,998 787,861
CURRENT ASSETS REBEE
Inventories 55 20 522,172 601,293 441617
Trade receivables U E 5 BR 21 79,898 62,675 64,838
Prepayments, deposits and BNRIE - B2k
other receivables H b fE U R IE 22 44,608 56,641 49,839
Cash and cash equivalents Be KB EEY 24 382,796 179,607 195,090
Total current assets RBEERE 1,029,474 900,216 751,384
CURRENT LIABILITIES REBEE
Trade and bills payables ERE SRR RENERE 25 39,019 44,087 63,955
Interest-bearing bank borrowings  sHESRITIER 26 56,750 48,000 20,000
Tax payable FERFRIE 13,398 18,148 11,105
Other payables and accruals Hofth FEAS 3018 R FE 5T 50IR 27 175,009 149,591 223,306
Total current liabilities TBAGERE 284,176 259,826 318,366
NET CURRENT ASSETS RBEETE 745,298 640,390 433,018
TOTAL ASSETS LESS BEERRBEE
CURRENT LIABILITIES 1,617,219 1,497,388 1,220,879
NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES ¥ REBI&E
Interest-bearing bank borrowings B RTTER 26 121,750 163,500 65,000
Deferred liabilities BEEE 28 4,037 4,234 3,471
Deferred tax liabilities EEFHIBEAE 29 31,233 33,745 18,523
Other payables Hib R FE 27 22,963 22,683 21,882
Total non-current liabilities FRBEERE 179,983 224,162 108,876
Net assets BEFE 1,437,236 1,273,226 1,112,003

RRFERBERAT FR 2012
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Consolidated Statement ofiFinancial Position (Continued)

B S R DL (AT

31 December 2012 = Z——f#+_-_H=+—H

31 December 31 December 1 January
2012 2011 2011
ZE-CF —T——% —T——%
t=A=+t-B +ZA=t-H —A—H
Notes HK$°000 HK$000 HK$'000
i FET FHET FHET
(Restated) (Restated)
(27)) (E%)
EQUITY e
Equity attributable to owners A FHEE A
of the Company PE(L RS
Issued capital BEITRA 30 4,166 4,113 4,067
Reserves &t 32(a) 1,433,070 1,269,113 1,107,936
Total equity B 1,437,236 1,273,226 1,112,003

Cheng Man Tai
SR
Director

EF
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

G RES TR

Year ended 31 December 2012 BZ—EF+_H=+—HALEE

Attributable to owners of the Company

AAREEAEL
Reserves
R
Enterprise
expansion
and
Share Asset  statutory  Exchange Share
Issued  premium Contributed  revaluation reserve  fluctuation Goodwill option  Retained Total Total
capital account surplus reserve funds reserve reserve reserve profits reserves equity
B&f Kt BEEff LRERR  EARE BiRE

[ie aEE  RER# AR tEERE f#E  HEEE @ REER EL L
Notes HK8'000 HK$:000 HK8:000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK8'000 HK8'000 HK8'000 HK8'000 HK$:000
it TET FiET FET T T T T TET TET TET TEL

[0t 326) 10t 326) (0e326)
(Wit 22m) (Hitsm) (Wits0e)

At1 January 2012 R-F-—%-F-B

As previously reported Br2g 4113 359,070 122,610 2,539 33,765 95,609 (3,168) 17,416 637972 1,265813 1,269,926

ffect of changes in accounting policy SHpEUEIYE 22 - - - - - - - - 3,300 3,300 3,300

As restated 2 4,118 359,070 122,610 2539 33,765 95,609 (3,168) 17,416 641,212 1,269,113 1,213,226
Revaluation surplus EfiRH 17 - - - 1,083 - - - - - 1,063 1,063
Deferred tax debited to asset revaluation ~ REEBREEEHR

reserve ba il 2 - - - (266) - - - - - (266) (266)
Profi for the year FREF - - - - - - - - 183,562 183,562 183,562
Exchange difierences arising on TEENEEHEL

ranslation of foreign operations EizE - - - - - 11,038 - - - 11,038 11,038
Total comprehensive income for the year ERZENAEE - - - 97 - 11,038 - - 183,562 195,397 195,307
Issue of shares B 0p) 5 10,574 - - - - - (2,889) - 7685 7,738
Ecuity-setled share option amangements LA ft 2 BRkiER kil - - - - - - - 14,690 - 14,690 14,690
Share options lapsed BRELN - - - - - - - (458) 458 - -
2011 final and special dividends ERRZA-F R

deckred and paid RESRE [ - - - - - - - - (T )
2012 intein dividend —3-—EhRs 1 - - - - - - - - (65T (658 (1657
Trangfer from retained profits BAREET - - - - 18433 - - - (18,433) - -
At 31 December 2012 BN-BF-—E+-f=1t-H 4,166 369,644 122,610 3,336 52,198 106,647 (3,168) 28,759 753,044 1433070 1,437,236
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Consolidated Statement ofiChanges in Equity (Continued)

HOMREER ()
Year ended 31 December 2012 BZ—F—_&F+_H=1T—ALLFE

Attributable to owners of the Company

ANREEAES
Reserves
R
Enterprise
expansion
and
Share Asset  statutory  Exchange Share
Issued  premium Contributed  revaluation reserve  fluctuation Goodwill option  Retained Total Total
capital account surplus reserve funds reserve reserve reserve profits  reserves equity
B&f7 kit BEEff ORERR  EARE BRE

[ie EE  RER# BE tEERE fEE  HEEE @ REEH AR £
Notes HKS000  HKBOOD  HKSOOD  HKSOOO  HKSOO0  HKBOOO  HKSOO0  HKSOOD  HKSOOO  HKSOO0  HKSO000
i3 TEn TET FET TEn THn TEn 1 T T T T

(ote326) 1ot 326) (oo 326)
(Hit22m) (Hitam) (Wits06)

At1 January 2011 RZE—%-A-A

As previously reported Br2g 4,067 346,713 122,610 2539 20,606 72,045 (3,168) 7,556 536,704 1106605 1,109,672

ffect of changes in accounting policy SHHRNE YE 22 = = = = = = = = 2331 2331 2331

As restated 2] 4,067 346,713 122,610 2539 20,606 72,045 (3168 7,556 53903 1107936 1,112,003
Proft for the year as restated) FEE(ES) - - - - - - - - 160283 160283 160283
Bxchange diferences arising on FERMEEMEEL

tranglation of foreign operations EXER - - - - - 23,564 - - - 23564 23564
Total comprehensive income for the year ENZENALE - - - - - 23564 - - 160,283 183,847 183,847
Issug of shares BRH 306) 46 12,357 - - - - - (5,102) - 7,55 7,301
Equity-setled shre opfion aangemens  JhERS i 2 BRiER 5 kil = = = = = = = 15,183 = 1,183 1,183
Share options lapsed BREEN - - = = = = = (221) 21 = -
2010 final and special dvidends SRRIA-5-5AH

declared and paid RiEsIRE 15 - - - - - - - - (32,803 (32,803 (32,803
2011 interim diidend “E—FhiRe 15 = = = = = = = = (12,308) (12,309) (12,309)
Transfer from retained profts BEREER - - - - 13,159 - - - (13,159 - -
At 31 December 2011 RE-——%+zA=t-R 4118 359,070 122,610 2539 33,765 95,609 (3,168) 17416 641272 1269113 1273226
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"-'Consolldated Statement of Cash Flows

SEHEREER

Year ended 31 December 2012 &=

_$<:$+:a*+,g¢¢§

2012 2011
—EF—= —F——%F
Notes HK$’000 HK$’000
Btax FET FET
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING &K=& XK HERE
ACTIVITIES
Profit before tax B 5% AT g A 260,614 231,268
Adjustments for: FEE
Finance costs [ERE DN 8 3,906 2,242
Bank interest income HRITH B LA 6 (2,557) (853)
Depreciation e 9 38,338 34,285
Amortisation of prepaid land AN T HEERE
lease payments 5y 9 789 770
Loss on disposal/write-off of items HE MEME  BEK
of property, plant and equipment REIEEB 2 E1E 9 591 6
Impairment/(write-back of Y B B RRFORE,CRlE
impairment allowance) of trade B g )
receivables 9 (179) 448
Provision/(write-back of provision) REFER S,/ (BERD) -
for obsolete inventories, net FEE 9 26,492 (5,720)
Changes in fair value of REWMFENTEZS
investment properties 9 (11,177) (10,916)
Equity-settled share option expenses  LAR&#E 2 1~ 2 B IR 22 B =2 31 14,690 15,183
331,507 266,713
Decrease/(increase) in inventories FERLD,/(3#Em) 52,629 (153,956)
Decrease/(increase) in FEWE SRR A (3 n)
trade receivables (17,044) 1,715
Decrease/(increase) in prepayments,  FEfTFRIE ~ ¢ K H ith B B
deposits and other receivables B () 13,090 (8,108)
Decrease in trade and bills payables  fE{~HE 5 Bk 20 M e~ =48R (5,068) (19,868)
Increase in other payables H e~ FRIE K EET R IE G N
and accruals 25,418 28,582
Increase/(decrease) in EE B EE I CRd)
deferred liabilities (197) 763
Cash generated from operations KEFBR S 400,335 115,846
Hong Kong profits tax refunded/(paid) iE[E], (2 1+) FHFISH (551) 391
Overseas tax paid BATEINSEIE (88,032) (62,789)
Net cash flows from AT 2 R MAFRE
operating activities 311,752 53,448
zasamaRan sg2012 |
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Year ended 31 December 2012 ﬁﬁ—g——ﬂi‘k H '|' ElltiFE J L

2012 2011
—E— —E——4F
Notes HK$’000 HK$’000
Btax FET FET
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ®REZFEH2ESRE
ACTIVITIES
Interest received B U F & 2,557 853
Purchases of items of property, BEYE BRELKXEEER
plant and equipment other than (EBmERIN)
a property in Shanghai 17, 33 (25,613) (23,605)
Payment for acquisition of a Wb % 2 5RIE
property in Shanghai 33 - (131,951)
Additions to prepaid land lease BANTE R L EFUB
payments — land use rights in — BN L b (E A RE
Changzhou (4,705) -
Proceeds from disposal of items of HEWE  MENLKREER
property, plant and equipment Z T8 F08 72 29
Increase in a non-pledged time deposit B A B R ilJﬁﬂ BAEZR=EA
with original maturity of more than 2 IR E BT g N
three months when acquired (3,704) -
Net cash flows used in WEEB R ML FRE
investing activities (31,393) (154,674)
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING BETHBELSRE
ACTIVITIES
Proceeds from issue of shares R&1D BT 1S A 30 7,738 7,301
New bank borrowings IR ITRER 26 25,000 160,000
Repayment of bank borrowings BEIBITER 26 (58,000) (33,500)
Dividends paid B S 15 (53,815) (45,108)
Interest paid BAFE (3,906) (2,242)
Net cash flows from/(used in) MEESH/ERA R ) F5m
financing activities (82,983) 86,451
NET INCREASE/(DECREASE) IN BRE&RBESZEEYW
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS zZ#hn, (R4 ) B5 197,376 (14,775)
Cash and cash equivalents at FUzBReMREEED
beginning of year 179,607 195,090
Effect of foreign exchange EREB) 22 FHE
rate changes, net 2,109 (708)
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS S AXZBHERESZEEY
AT END OF YEAR 379,092 179,607

¢
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Congsolidated.Statement of Cash'Flows (Continued)

HAEREREE ()

Year ended 31 December 2012 BZ—_F——Ft+-HA=1T—HILLFE

2012 2011
2= —ET——%F
Notes HK$’000 HK$’000
Btax FET FET
ANALYSIS OF BALANCES RERBEEEWRERZDN
OF CASH AND
CASH EQUIVALENTS
Cash and bank balances Be MIRITER 24 379,092 179,607
Time deposit TEBRER 24 3,704 -
Cash and cash equivalents as stated 4R A BRI RRTHI 2 IR & K&
in the consolidated statement of REEEY
financial position 382,796 179,607
Less: Non-pledged time deposit with & : REEARRIHE A% R
original maturity of more than =8 A 2 EEAE BT
three months when acquired (3,704) -
Cash and cash equivalents as stated RiGERERERMIIZEL R
in the consolidated statement of REZEEY
cash flows 379,092 179,607

FREERERAT £82012 o)



Statement of Fmancml Position

MR R

31/December 2012 —E——F+=H=+=8"

2012 2011
—E——F —EF——%F
Notes HK$°000 HK$'000
HfaF FET FET
NON-CURRENT ASSETS FREBEE
Investments in subsidiaries T EENGIR 23 689,670 739,912
CURRENT ASSETS REBEE
Prepayments, deposits and TENRIR -« ke &
other receivables H ith fE U B 22 43 237
Cash and cash equivalents RERIFCEEY 24 2,024 792
Total current assets MEEERE 2,067 1,029
CURRENT LIABILITIES REEE
Other payables and accruals HE M FRIE R
FEst A 27 5,588 7,036
NET CURRENT LIABILITIES REBAEFE (3,521) (6,007)
Net assets BEFE 686,149 733,905
EQUITY =
Issued capital BT A 30 4,166 4,113
Reserves i 32(b) 681,983 729,792
Total equity B 686,149 733,905

Cheng Man Tai
BHR

Director

EF

94 EMBRY HOLDINGS LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2012

Cheng Pik Ho Liza
BREE
Director
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2.1

Corporate Information

The Company was incorporated as an exempted company
with limited liability in the Cayman Islands on 29 August 2006
under the Companies Law, Chapter 22 (Law 3 of 1961, as
consolidated and revised) of the Cayman Islands. The
registered office address of the Company is Cricket Square,
Hutchins Drive, P.O. Box 2681, Grand Cayman KY1-1111,
the Cayman Islands and the principal place of business of the
Company is located at 7th Floor, Wyler Centre II, 200 Tai Lin
Pai Road, Kwai Chung, New Territories, Hong Kong.

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding.
Details of the principal activities of the subsidiaries are set out
in note 23 to the financial statements. There were no
significant changes in the nature of the Group’s principal
activities during the year.

The Company is a subsidiary of Harmonious World Limited
(“Harmonious World”), a company incorporated in the British
Virgin Islands (the “BVI”), which is considered by the directors
as the Company’s ultimate holding company.

Basis of Preparation

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance
with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”)
(which include all Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards,
Hong Kong Accounting Standards (“HKASs”) and
Interpretations) issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants (“HKICPA”), accounting principles
generally accepted in Hong Kong and the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance. They
have been prepared under the historical cost convention,
except for investment properties, which have been measured
at fair value. These financial statements are presented in Hong
Kong dollars and all values are rounded to the nearest
thousand (HK$’000) except where otherwise indicated.

2.1

AEEHR
PAN/NE e
xﬁ%%Qzﬁf\j/f( j'l_./\
KIRE RIEET) RS S M AR
RHERATF - ARAMFMMPFER U A
Cricket Square, Hutchins Drive, P.O. Box

ERENAZ TN BRER
FEPI=

2681, Grand Cayman KY1-1111, the
Cayman Islands + AN A & &) & 2 & 23
AT AL FERNEBE200RERT
ZHRTHE o

ARRMEELBARE RN - AWHE
AR EEEHHE R BBREM T
23+ FRALEN T EEHUE Y REA
2 -

K A &) AHarmonious World Limited
([Harmonious World]) # f & 2 & -
Harmonious World A B iz Z B & ([ 1B
EXBEEDEMKY EFERAE
Harmonious World & 78 A &) B fx 448 iR A
= -

2HEE
ZERHEBRRBRBEETLEGFIMAE(EE
S AR ) MANEENFRE LR
(Fiﬁ‘}%ﬂﬂ%ﬁ%ﬁ,ﬁlﬂ) (BEMBZBUG
WELED FEEESFEN(EEGE
Al)) k) %%’A;EQ#J?E'J&E/%
ARG BERERE - RFVBHRERIE
BRRAE RS EREMFZERAFE
B BRABEBI REMBRRIAE
T2 EBEIREEREIT (T
BIT) e
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2.1 Basis of Preparation (continueq)

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include the financial
statements of the Company and its subsidiaries (collectively
referred to as the “Group”) for the year ended 31 December
2012. The financial statements of the subsidiaries are
prepared for the same reporting period as the Company,
using consistent accounting policies. The results of
subsidiaries are consolidated from the date of acquisition,
being the date on which the Group obtains control, and
continue to be consolidated until the date that such control
ceases. All intra-group balances, transactions, unrealised
gains and losses resulting from intra-group transactions and
dividends are eliminated on consolidation in full.

Total comprehensive income within a subsidiary is attributed
to the non-controlling interest even if it results in a deficit
balance.

A change in the ownership interest of a subsidiary, without a
loss of control, is accounted for as an equity transaction.

If the Group loses control over a subsidiary, it derecognises (i)
the assets (including goodwill) and liabilities of the subsidiary,
(i) the carrying amount of any non-controlling interest and (iii)
the cumulative translation differences recorded in equity; and
recognises (i) the fair value of the consideration received, (i)
the fair value of any investment retained and (jii) any resulting
surplus or deficit in consolidated income statement. The
Group’s share of components previously recognised in other
comprehensive income is reclassified to consolidated income
statement or retained profits, as appropriate.
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2.2

Changes in Accounting Policy and
Disclosures

The Group has adopted the following revised HKFRSs for the
first time for the current year’s financial statements.

HKFRS 1 Amendments Amendments to HKFRS 1 First-time Adoption
of Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards — Severe Hyperinflation and

Removal of Fixed Dates for First-time

Adopters

HKFRS 7 Amendments Amendments to HKFRS 7 Financial
Instruments: Disclosures — Transfers of
Financial Assets

HKAS 12 Amendments Amendments to HKAS 12 Income Taxes

— Deferred Tax: Recovery of Underlying
Assets

Other than as further explained below regarding the impact of
amendments to HKAS 12, the adoption of the revised
HKFRSs has had no significant financial effect on these
financial statements.

The HKAS 12 Amendments clarify the determination of
deferred tax for investment property measured at fair value
and introduce a rebuttable presumption that deferred tax on
investment property measured at fair value should be
determined on the basis that its carrying amount will be
recovered through sale. Furthermore, the amendments
incorporate the requirement previously in HK(SIC)-Int 21
Income Taxes — Recovery of Revalued Non-Depreciable
Assets that deferred tax on non-depreciable assets, measured
using the revaluation model in HKAS 16, should always be
measured on a sale basis. Prior to the adoption of the
amendments, deferred tax with respect to the Group’s
investment properties was provided on the basis that the
carrying amount will be recovered through use, and
accordingly the profits tax rate had been applied to the
calculation of deferred tax arising on the revaluation of the
Group’s investment properties. Upon the adoption of HKAS
12 Amendments, deferred tax in respect of the Group’s
investment property in Hong Kong is provided on the
presumption that the carrying amount will be recovered
through sale.

2.2

B HRESHRINE

AEERANFERBRRERXRAUTE
CHPAS LR I

BEMBAEREY  BAMBREENS1RET
F15%MET BARNEE a2
~ BEBBRIAGEL
FOEDEEAH
BEMBAERN  FARBREEANZTHRET
FTHREF] ERIA KE
—BRTHEE
BEEERS] BRGREAE 12587
123k 5] FriEh — B

HEEENKE

BRI XE—FHBERBA G EAE 12
SR KA EREFT BB BREE
A RRA BELEAMBHZE

HFEGHEME12RETEAANRFER
AEZREMEZETCHEANEE KIIA
AHERETE ARV EEAEZREY
KRR - BARKREERE L EM A
Wem 2 REEMERE ° ol ZFEFTHA
NEERB (EBRERES) —REE21
SIS -E T EREEAKEZFRTE -
BRAEE G EAF 165 2 ER[RAG
BZHFEBEZRERE  BALEE
RETE - RERBERTA - AREREME
ZIBERIR T IRA WEEREBERKD
REETARE  HUFEEGHATER
BEMEMEL CELH AR EABNEH
BEGFE - REMBBGALEANE125R1E
FIAR  AEEBBREME ZRENIA
THEEERERERKE 2 FRER T AR -
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2.2 Changes in Accounting Policy and 22 FETHXRESHRBEE @)
Disclosures (continued)
The effects of the above changes to the deferred tax in Pl AEERBIEEYE ZELETIEEE
respect of the Group’s investment property in Hong Kong are = (TN

summarised below:

Consolidated income statement mERER
2012 2011
—E—= —ET——%
HK$°000 HK$000
FET FEr
For the year ended 31 December BE+-_A=+—RHLFE
Decrease in income tax expense FT 45 i B SR > 1,650 969
Increase in profit attributable to owners of RNEGEE A EFIE
the Company 1,650 969
Increase in basic earnings per share BRRERZFE M GEML)
(HK cent) 0.40 0.24
Increase in diluted earmnings per share SRS R AL CFL)
(HK cent) 0.40 0.23
Consolidated statement of financial position FREMBMRE
31 December 31 December 1 January
2012 2011 2011
—E-—CfF —E——fF —E——%F
+=—A=+—-8 +=—A=+—H —H—H
HK$°000 HK$’000 HK$000
FET FAET FEr
Decrease in deferred tax liabilities EER A ERD 4,950 3,300 2,331
Increase in retained profits 1R % F1E N 4,950 3,300 2,331
In Mainland China, the tax consequences of a sale of the RARAN  HEREMERKEHREGR
investment property or of the entity owning the investment BEMEEBIBBTEIBE IR ZE 1B
property may be different. The Group’s business model is that BAEBEBER  EREYECZE
the entity owning the investment property will recover the BoABRFATENHEHEEFERK
value through use and on this basis the presumption of sale EE(E - FtL - A& B4 B IR IR o B A i,
has been rebutted. Consequently, the Group has continued to A YER S BERKREEE EE#ER
recognise deferred taxes on the basis that the values of its RIERIIA o

investment properties in Mainland China are recovered
through use.
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2.3 Issued But Not Yet Effective Hong
Kong Financial Reporting Standards
The Group has not applied the following new and revised
HKFRSs, that have been issued but are not yet effective, in
these financial statements.

HKFRS 1 Amendments

HKFRS 7 Amendments

HKFRS 9

HKFRS 10

HKFRS 11

HKFRS 12

HKFRS 10, HKFRS 11 and

HKFRS 12 Amendments

HKFRS 10, HKFRS 12 and
HKAS 27 (2011)
Amendments

Amendments to HKFRS 1 First-time Adoption
of Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards — Government Loans?

Amendments to HKFRS 7 Financial
Instruments: Disclosures — Offsetting

Financial Assets and Financial Liabilities?

Financial Instruments*

Consolidated Financial Statements?

Joint Arrangements?

Disclosure of Interests in Other Entities?

Amendments to HKFRS 10, HKFRS 11 and

HKFRS 12 — Transition Guidance?

Amendments to HKFRS 10, HKFRS 12 and
HKAS 27 (2011) — Investment Entities®
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2.3 Issued But Not Yet Effective Hong
Kong Financial Reporting Standards

(continued)

HKFRS 13

HKAS 1 Amendments

HKAS 19 (2011)

HKAS 27 (2011)

HKAS 28 (2011)

HKAS 32 Amendments

HK(FRIC)-Int 20

Annual Improvements
2009 — 2011 Cycle

Fair Value Measurement?

Amendments to HKAS 1 Presentation of
Financial Statements — Presentation of
Items of Other Comprehensive Income'

Employee Benefits?

Separate Financial Statements?

Investments in Associates and Joint
Ventures?

Amendments to HKAS 32 Financial
Instruments: Presentation — Offsetting
Financial Assets and Financial Liabilities®

Stripping Costs in the Production Phase of

a Surface Mine?

Amendments to a number of HKFRSs issued
in June 20122

U Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 July 2012

2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January
2013

8 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January
2014

4 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January
2015

1 OO EMBRY HOLDINGS LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2012
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2.3 Issued But Not Yet Effective Hong 23

Kong Financial Reporting Standards
(continued)

Further information about those HKFRSs that are expected to
be applicable to the Group is as follows:

The HKFRS 7 Amendments require an entity to disclose
information about rights to set-off and related arrangements
(e.g., collateral agreements). The disclosures would provide
users with information that is useful in evaluating the effect of
netting arrangements on an entity’s financial position. The new
disclosures are required for all recognised financial instruments
that are set off in accordance with HKAS 32 Financial
Instruments: Presentation. The disclosures also apply to
recognised financial instruments that are subject to an
enforceable master netting arrangement or similar agreement,
irrespective of whether they are set off in accordance with
HKAS 32. The Group expects to adopt the amendments from
1 January 2013.

HKFRS 9 issued in November 2009 is the first part of phase 1
of a comprehensive project to entirely replace HKAS 39
Financial Instruments: Recognition and Measurement. This
phase focuses on the classification and measurement of
financial assets. Instead of classifying financial assets into four
categories, an entity shall classify financial assets as
subsequently measured at either amortised cost or fair value,
on the basis of both the entity’s business model for managing
the financial assets and the contractual cash flow
characteristics of the financial assets. This aims to improve
and simplify the approach for the classification and
measurement of financial assets compared with the
requirements of HKAS 39.
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Issued But Not Yet Effective Hong
Kong Financial Reporting Standards
(continued)

In November 2010, the HKICPA issued additions to HKFRS 9
to address financial liabilities (the “Additions”) and incorporated
in HKFRS 9 the current derecognition principles of financial
instruments of HKAS 39. Most of the Additions were carried
forward unchanged from HKAS 39, while changes were made
to the measurement of financial liabilities designated as at fair
value through profit or loss using the fair value option (“FVO”).
For these FVO liabilities, the amount of change in the fair value
of a liability that is attributable to changes in credit risk must
be presented in other comprehensive income (“OCI”). The
remainder of the change in fair value is presented in the
income statement, unless presentation of the fair value change
in respect of the liability’s credit risk in OCI would create or
enlarge an accounting mismatch in the income statement.
However, loan commitments and financial guarantee contracts
which have been designated under the FVO are scoped out of
the Additions.

HKAS 39 is aimed to be replaced by HKFRS 9 in its entirety.
Before this entire replacement, the guidance in HKAS 39 on
hedge accounting and impairment of financial assets
continues to apply. The Group expects to adopt HKFRS 9
from 1 January 2015. The Group will quantify the effect in
conjunction with other phases, when the final standard
including all phases is issued.

HKFRS 10 establishes a single control model that applies to
all entities including special purpose entities or structured
entities. It includes a new definition of control which is used to
determine which entities are consolidated. The changes
introduced by HKFRS 10 require management of the Group to
exercise significant judgement to determine which entities are
controlled, compared with the requirements in HKAS 27
Consolidated and Separate Financial Statements and HK(SIC)-
Int 12 Consolidation — Special Purpose Entities. HKFRS 10
replaces the portion of HKAS 27 that addresses the
accounting for consolidated financial statements. It also
addresses the issues raised in HK(SIC)-Int 12. Based on the
preliminary analyses performed, HKFRS 10 is not expected to
have any impact on the currently held investments of the
Group.
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2.3 Issued But Not Yet Effective Hong

Kong Financial Reporting Standards
(continued)

HKFRS 12 includes the disclosure requirements for
subsidiaries, joint arrangements, associates and structured
entities previously included in HKAS 27 Consolidated and
Separate Financial Statements, HKAS 31 Interests in Joint
Ventures and HKAS 28 Investments in Associates. It also
introduces a number of new disclosure requirements for these
entities.

In July 2012, the HKICPA issued amendments to HKFRS 10,
HKFRS 11 and HKFRS 12 which clarify the transition guidance
in HKFRS 10 and provide further relief from full retrospective
application of these standards, limiting the requirement to
provide adjusted comparative information to only the
preceding comparative period. The amendments clarify that
retrospective adjustments are only required if the consolidation
conclusion as to which entities are controlled by the Group is
different between HKFRS 10 and HKAS 27 or HK(SIC)-Int 12
at the beginning of the annual period in which HKFRS 10 is
applied for the first time. Furthermore, for disclosures related
to unconsolidated structured entities, the amendments will
remove the requirement to present comparative information
for periods before HKFRS 12 is first applied.

The amendments to HKFRS 10 issued in December 2012
include a definition of an investment entity and provide an
exception to the consolidation requirement for entities that
meet the definition of an investment entity. Investment entities
are required to account for subsidiaries at fair value through
profit or loss in accordance with HKFRS 9 rather than
consolidate them. Consequential amendments were made to
HKFRS 12 and HKAS 27 (2011). The amendments to HKFRS
12 also set out the disclosure requirements for investment
entities. The Group expects that these amendments will not
have any impact on the Group as the Company is not an
investment entity as defined in HKFRS 10.
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2.3 Issued But Not Yet Effective Hong

Kong Financial Reporting Standards
(continued)

Consequential amendments were made to HKAS 27 and
HKAS 28 as a result of the issuance of HKFRS 10, HKFRS 11
and HKFRS 12. The Group expects to adopt HKFRS 10,
HKFRS 11, HKFRS 12, HKAS 27 (2011), HKAS 28 (2011),
and the subsequent amendments to these standards issued
in July and December 2012 from 1 January 2013.

HKFRS 13 provides a precise definition of fair value and a
single source of fair value measurement and disclosure
requirements for use across HKFRSs. The standard does not
change the circumstances in which the Group is required to
use fair value, but provides guidance on how fair value should
be applied where its use is already required or permitted under
other HKFRSs. The Group expects to adopt HKFRS 13
prospectively from 1 January 2013.

The HKAS 1 Amendments change the grouping of items
presented in OCI. ltems that could be reclassified (or recycled)
to the income statement at a future point in time (for example,
net gain on hedge of a net investment, exchange differences
on translation of foreign operations, net movement on cash
flow hedges and net loss or gain on available-for-sale financial
assets) would be presented separately from items which will
never be reclassified (for example, actuarial gains and losses
on defined benefit plans and revaluation of land and buildings).
The amendments will affect presentation only and have no
impact on the financial position or performance. The Group
expects to adopt the amendments from 1 January 2013.

The HKAS 32 Amendments clarify the meaning of “currently
has a legally enforceable right to setoff” for offsetting financial
assets and financial liabilities. The amendments also clarify the
application of the offsetting criteria in HKAS 32 to settlement
systems (such as central clearing house systems) which apply
gross settlement mechanisms that are not simultaneous. The
amendments are not expected to have any impact on the
financial position or performance of the Group upon adoption
on 1 January 2014.
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2.3 Issued But Not Yet Effective Hong

Kong Financial Reporting Standards

(continued)

The Annual Improvements 2009-2011 Cycle issued in June
2012 sets out amendments to a number of HKFRSs. The
Group expects to adopt the amendments from 1 January
2013. There are separate transitional provisions for each
standard. While the adoption of some of the amendments
may result in changes in accounting policies, none of these
amendments are expected to have a significant financial
impact on the Group. Those amendments that are expected
to have a significant impact on the Group’s policies are as
follows:

(a) HKAS 1 Presentation of Financial Statements: Clarifies
the difference between voluntary additional
comparative information and the minimum required
comparative information. Generally, the minimum
required comparative period is the previous period. An
entity must include comparative information in the
related notes to the financial statements when it
voluntarily provides comparative information beyond
the previous period. The additional comparative
information does not need to contain a complete set of
financial statements.

In addition, the amendment clarifies that the opening
statement of financial position as at the beginning of
the preceding period must be presented when an
entity changes its accounting policies; makes
retrospective restatements or makes reclassifications,
and that change has a material effect on the statement
of financial position. However, the related notes to the
opening statement of financial position as at the
beginning of the preceding period are not required to
be presented.

(b) HKAS 32 Financial Instruments: Presentation: Clarifies
that income taxes arising from distributions to equity
holders are accounted for in accordance with HKAS
12 Income Taxes. The amendment removes existing
income tax requirements from HKAS 32 and requires
entities to apply the requirements in HKAS 12 to any
income tax arising from distributions to equity holders.

The Group is in the process of making an assessment of the
impact of these new and revised HKFRSs upon initial
application. The Group is not yet in a position to state whether
they would have a significant impact on the Group’s results of
operations and financial position.
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2.4 Summary of Significant Accounting

24
Policies

Subsidiaries

A subsidiary is an entity whose financial and operating policies

the Company controls, directly or indirectly, so as to obtain

benefits from its activities.

The results of subsidiaries are included in the Company’s
income statement to the extent of dividends received and
receivable. The Company’s investments in subsidiaries are
stated at cost less any impairment losses.

Business combinations and goodwill

Business combinations are accounted for using the acquisition
method. The consideration transferred is measured at the
acquisition date fair value which is the sum of the acquisition
date fair values of assets transferred by the Group, liabilities
assumed by the Group to the former owners of the acquiree
and the equity interests issued by the Group in exchange for
control of the acquiree. For each business combination, the
Group elects whether to measure the non-controlling interests
in the acquiree that are present ownership interests and entitle
their holders to a proportionate share of net assets in the
event of liquidation at fair value or at the proportionate share
of the acquiree’s identifiable net assets. All other components
of non-controlling interests are measured at fair value.
Acquisition-related costs are expensed as incurred.

When the Group acquires a business, it assesses the financial
assets and liabilities assumed for appropriate classification
and designation in accordance with the contractual terms,
economic circumstances and pertinent conditions as at the
acquisition date. This includes the separation of embedded
derivatives in host contracts by the acquiree.

If the business combination is achieved in stages, the
previously held equity interest is remeasured at its acquisition
date fair value and any resulting gain or loss is recognised in
the income statement.
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2.4 Summary of Significant Accounting

Policies (continued)

Business combinations and goodwill (continued)
Any contingent consideration to be transferred by the acquirer
is recognised at fair value at the acquisition date. Contingent
consideration classified as an asset or a liability that is a
financial instrument and within the scope of HKAS 39 is
measured at fair value with changes in fair value either
recognised in the income statement or as a change to other
comprehensive income. If the contingent consideration is not
within the scope of HKAS 39, it is measured in accordance
with the appropriate HKFRS. Contingent consideration that is
classified as equity is not remeasured and subsequent
settlement is accounted for within equity.

Goodwill is initially measured at cost, being the excess of the
aggregate of the consideration transferred, the amount
recognised for non-controlling interests and any fair value of
the Group’s previously held equity interests in the acquiree
over the identifiable net assets acquired and liabilities
assumed. If the sum of this consideration and other items is
lower than the fair value of the net assets acquired, the
difference is, after reassessment, recognised in the income
statement as a gain on bargain purchase.

After initial recognition, goodwill is measured at cost less any
accumulated impairment losses. Goodwiill is tested for
impairment annually or more frequently if events or changes in
circumstances indicate that the carrying value may be
impaired. The Group performs its annual impairment test of
goodwill as at 31 December. For the purpose of impairment
testing, goodwill acquired in a business combination is, from
the acquisition date, allocated to each of the Group’s cash-
generating units, or groups of cash-generating units, that are
expected to benefit from the synergies of the combination,
irrespective of whether other assets or liabilities of the Group
are assigned to those units or groups of units.

Impairment is determined by assessing the recoverable
amount of the cash-generating unit (group of cash-generating
units) to which the goodwill relates. Where the recoverable
amount of the cash-generating unit (group of cash-generating
units) is less than the carrying amount, an impairment loss is
recognised. An impairment loss recognised for goodwill is not
reversed in a subsequent period.
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2.4 Summary of Significant Accounting 2.4
Policies (continued)
Business combinations and goodwill (continued)
Where goodwill has been allocated to a cash-generating unit
(or group of cash-generating units) and part of the operation
within that unit is disposed of, the goodwill associated with the
operation disposed of is included in the carrying amount of the
operation when determining the gain or loss on the disposal.
Goodwill disposed of in these circumstances is measured
based on the relative value of the disposed operation and the
portion of the cash-generating unit retained.

Related parties

A party is considered to be related to the Group if:

(@) the party is a person or a close member of that
person’s family and that person

(i) has control or joint control over the Group;
(ii) has significant influence over the Group; or
(iii) is a member of the key management personnel

of the Group or of a parent of the Group;

or

(b) the party is an entity where any of the following
conditions applies:

(i) the entity and the Group are members of the
same group;
(i) one entity is an associate or joint venture of the

other entity (or of a parent, subsidiary or fellow
subsidiary of the other entity);

(iii) the entity and the Group are joint ventures of
the same third party;
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2.4 Summary of Significant Accounting

Policies (continued)

Related parties (continued)

(b) the party is an entity where any of the following
conditions applies: (continued)

(iv) one entity is a joint venture of a third entity and
the other entity is an associate of the third
entity;

(v) the entity is a post-employment benefit plan for
the benefit of employees of either the Group or
an entity related to the Group;

(Vi) the entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a
person identified in (a); and

(vii) a person identified in (a)(i) has significant
influence over the entity or is a member of the
key management personnel of the entity (or of a
parent of the entity).

Impairment of non-financial assets

Where an indication of impairment exists, or when annual
impairment testing for an asset is required (other than
inventories, financial assets, investment properties and
goodwill), the asset’s recoverable amount is estimated. An
asset’s recoverable amount is the higher of the asset’s or
cash-generating unit’s value in use and its fair value less costs
to sell, and is determined for an individual asset, unless the
asset does not generate cash inflows that are largely
independent of those from other assets or groups of assets, in
which case the recoverable amount is determined for the
cash-generating unit to which the asset belongs.

An impairment loss is recognised only if the carrying amount
of an asset exceeds its recoverable amount. In assessing
value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted
to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects
current market assessments of the time value of money and
the risks specific to the asset. An impairment loss is charged
to the income statement in the period in which it arises, unless
the asset is carried at a revalued amount, in which case the
impairment loss is accounted for in accordance with the
relevant accounting policy for that revalued asset.
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2.4 Summary of Significant Accounting
Policies (continued)
Impairment of non-financial assets (continued)
An assessment is made at the end of each reporting period as
to whether there is an indication that previously recognised
impairment losses may no longer exist or may have
decreased. If such an indication exists, the recoverable
amount is estimated. A previously recognised impairment loss
of an asset other than goodwill and financial assets is reversed
only if there has been a change in the estimates used to
determine the recoverable amount of that asset, but not to an
amount higher than the carrying amount that would have been
determined (net of any depreciation/amortisation) had no
impairment loss been recognised for the asset in prior years.
A reversal of such an impairment loss is credited to the
income statement in the period in which it arises, unless the
asset is carried at a revalued amount, in which case the
reversal of the impairment loss is accounted for in accordance
with the relevant accounting policy for that revalued asset.

Property, plant and equipment and depreciation
Property, plant and equipment, other than construction in
progress, are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation
and any impairment losses.

The cost of an item of property, plant and equipment
comprises its purchase price and any directly attributable
costs of bringing the asset to its working condition and
location for its intended use. Expenditure incurred after items
of property, plant and equipment have been put into
operation, such as repairs and maintenance, is normally
charged to the income statement in the period in which it is
incurred. In situations where the recognition criteria are
satisfied, the expenditure for a major inspection is capitalised
in the carrying amount of the asset as a replacement. Where
significant parts of property, plant and equipment are required
to be replaced at intervals, the Group recognises such parts
as individual assets with specific useful lives and depreciates
them accordingly.
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2.4 Summary of Significant Accounting

Policies (continued)

Property, plant and equipment and depreciation
(continued)

Changes in the values of property, plant and equipment are
dealt with as movements in the asset revaluation reserve. If
the total of this reserve is insufficient to cover a deficit, on an
individual asset basis, the excess of the deficit is charged to
the income statement. Any subsequent revaluation surplus is
credited to the income statement to the extent of the deficit
previously charged. On disposal of a revalued asset, the
relevant portion of the asset revaluation reserve realised in
respect of previous valuations is transferred to retained profits
as a movement in reserves.

Depreciation is calculated on the straight-line basis to write off
the cost of each item of property, plant and equipment to its
residual value over its estimated useful life. The principal
annual rates used for this purpose are as follows:

Leasehold land and buildings ~ Over the lease terms
Leasehold improvements 4.5% to 20%
Plant and machinery 10% to 20%

Furniture, fixtures and 10% to 20%
office equipment
Motor vehicles 20% to 25%

Where parts of an item of property, plant and equipment have
different useful lives, the cost of that item is allocated on a
reasonable basis among the parts and each part is
depreciated separately. Residual values, useful lives and the
depreciation method are reviewed, and adjusted if
appropriate, at least at each financial year end.

An item of property, plant and equipment including any
significant part initially recognised is derecognised upon
disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected
from its use or disposal. Any gain or loss on disposal or
retirement recognised in the income statement in the year the
asset is derecognised is the difference between the net sale
proceeds and the carrying amount of the relevant asset.

24 FESHTHEME )
ME  BENRZEBURITE (&)

mE  BERLE EERBEAEES
B2 EDEE - BERTEEEAE
% EEEET T L BRELE - A5
2 BRI US RS - B2 BRERBT
SN - A S AT 2 B AL BIR -
B EER  AEBEREDRNE
EEERZ 85 DWARDEF - (£
285 -

MERREME  BERREEAE
RERAERENE - UMEKAZHF
SHEMBE WM E - FAERAZEEFEN
™

HELHWEET  ZAS

HEWMEEE 4.5%-20%

5 K 2s 10%-20%

R EER 10%-20%
WAERME

B 20%—25%

HRBEYR - BB LRERE S0 2L
REREANTR - ZBEB 2RATIHZAE
EREZH D <FETHE  MEBEH A
BEEFTENE - FREE ERAFRREN
ENEELENEVRFEFRETR
KRB (AER)

NTERZYE  BFERRBEAEBREET
MEZFINHERHFEHARTISARE
PRk & T SR A B A 25 B T LE AR ©
FIERZAEEZR —FER R R R
RZEERBEZEMNRE REBREE
HEMSFTIRFREARRNEZ % -

RSERERAR w2012 | | |



Notes to F111anc1al State'ments ( CozzUuued Vi

ok 7 i

31 December 2012 : i}' :$+ZHE+—EI

2.4 Summary of Significant Accounting

Policies (continued)

Property, plant and equipment and depreciation
(continued)

Construction in progress represents a building and equipment
under construction, which are stated at cost less any
impairment losses, and are not depreciated. Cost comprises
the direct costs of construction during the period of
construction. Construction in progress is reclassified to the
appropriate category of property, plant and equipment when
completed and ready for use.

Investment properties

Investment properties are interests in land and buildings held
to earn rental income and/or for capital appreciation, rather
than for use in the production or supply of goods or services
or for administrative purposes; or for sale in the ordinary
course of business. If a property occupied by the Group as an
owner-occupied property becomes an investment property,
the Group accounts for such property in accordance with the
policy stated under “Property, plant and equipment and
depreciation” up to the date of change in use, and any
difference at that date between the carrying amount and the
fair value of the property is accounted for as a revaluation in
accordance with the policy stated under “Property, plant and
equipment and depreciation” above.

Gains or losses arising from changes in the fair value of an
investment property are included in the income statement in
the year in which they arise.

Any gains or losses on the retirement or disposal of an
investment property are recognised in the income statement
in the year of the retirement or disposal.

¢
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2.4 Summary of Significant Accounting

Policies (continued)

Investments and other financial assets

Initial recognition and measurement

Financial assets within the scope of HKAS 39 are classified as
financial assets at fair value through profit or loss, loans and
receivables and available-for-sale financial investments, or as
derivatives designated as hedging instruments in an effective
hedge, as appropriate. The Group determines the
classification of its financial assets at initial recognition. When
financial assets are recognised initially, they are measured at
fair value plus transaction costs, except in the case of financial
assets recorded at fair value through profit or loss.

All regular way purchases and sales of financial assets are
recognised on the trade date, that is, the date that the Group
commits to purchase or sell the asset. Regular way purchases
or sales are purchases or sales of financial assets that require
delivery of assets within the period generally established by
regulation or convention in the marketplace.

Subsequent measurement
The subsequent measurement of financial assets depends on
their classification as follows:

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with
fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted in an
active market. After initial measurement, such assets are
subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective
interest rate method less any allowance for impairment.
Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any
discount or premium on acquisition and includes fees or costs
that are an integral part of the effective interest rate. The
effective interest rate amortisation is included in other income
and gains in the income statement. The loss arising from
impairment is recognised in the income statement in finance
costs for loans and in other expenses for receivables.
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2.4 Summary of Significant Accounting

Policies (continued)

Fair value of financial instruments

The fair value of financial instruments that are traded in active
markets is determined by reference to quoted market prices
or dealer price quotations (bid price for long positions and ask
price for short positions), without any deduction for transaction
costs. For financial instruments where there is no active
market, the fair value is determined using appropriate valuation
techniques. Such techniques include using recent arm’s
length market transactions; reference to the current market
value of another instrument which is substantially the same; a
discounted cash flow analysis; and option pricing models.

Derecognition of financial assets

A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a financial
asset or part of a group of similar financial assets) is
derecognised when:

. the rights to receive cash flows from the asset have
expired; or
o the Group has transferred its rights to receive cash

flows from the asset or has assumed an obligation to
pay the received cash flows in full without material
delay to a third party under a “pass-through”
arrangement; and either (a) the Group has transferred
substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, or
(b) the Group has neither transferred nor retained
substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, but
has transferred control of the asset.

When the Group has transferred its rights to receive cash
flows from an asset or has entered into a pass-through
arrangement, it evaluates if and to what extent it has retained
the risks and rewards of ownership of the asset. When it has
neither transferred nor retained substantially all the risks and
rewards of the asset nor transferred control of the asset, the
asset is recognised to the extent of the Group’s continuing
involvement in the asset. In that case, the Group also
recognises an associated liability. The transferred asset and
the associated liability are measured on a basis that reflects
the rights and obligations that the Group has retained.
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2.4 Summary of Significant Accounting

Policies (continued)

Derecognition of financial assets (continued)
Continuing involvement that takes the form of a guarantee
over the transferred asset is measured at the lower of the
original carrying amount of the asset and the maximum
amount of consideration that the Group could be required to
repay.

Impairment of financial assets

The Group assesses at the end of each reporting period
whether there is objective evidence that a financial asset or a
group of financial assets is impaired. A financial asset or a
group of financial assets is deemed to be impaired if, and only
if, there is objective evidence of impairment as a result of one
or more events that occurred after the initial recognition of the
asset (an incurred “loss event”) and that loss event has an
impact on the estimated future cash flows of the financial
asset or the group of financial assets that can be reliably
estimated. Evidence of impairment may include indications
that a debtor or a group of debtors is experiencing significant
financial difficulty, default or delinquency in interest or principal
payments, the probability that they will enter bankruptcy or
other financial reorganisation and observable data indicating
that there is a measurable decrease in the estimated future
cash flows, such as changes in arrears or economic
conditions that correlate with defaults.

Financial assets carried at amortised cost

For financial assets carried at amortised cost, the Group first
assesses individually whether objective evidence of impairment
exists for financial assets that are individually significant, or
collectively for financial assets that are not individually
significant. If the Group determines that no objective evidence
of impairment exists for an individually assessed financial
asset, whether significant or not, it includes the asset in a
group of financial assets with similar credit risk characteristics
and collectively assesses them for impairment. Assets that are
individually assessed for impairment and for which an
impairment loss is, or continues to be, recognised are not
included in a collective assessment of impairment.
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2.4 Summary of Significant Accounting

Policies (continued)

Impairment of financial assets (continued)

Financial assets carried at amortised cost (continued)

If there is objective evidence that an impairment loss has been
incurred, the amount of the loss is measured as the difference
between the asset’s carrying amount and the present value of
estimated future cash flows (excluding future credit losses that
have not yet been incurred). The present value of the
estimated future cash flows is discounted at the financial
asset’s original effective interest rate (i.e., the effective interest
rate computed at initial recognition). If a loan has a variable
interest rate, the discount rate for measuring any impairment
loss is the current effective interest rate.

The carrying amount of the asset is reduced through the use
of an allowance account and the loss is recognised in the
income statement. Interest income continues to be accrued
on the reduced carrying amount and is accrued using the rate
of interest used to discount the future cash flows for the
purpose of measuring the impairment loss. Loans and
receivables together with any associated allowance are written
off when there is no realistic prospect of future recovery and
all collateral has been realised or has been transferred to the
Group.

If, in a subsequent period, the amount of the estimated
impairment loss increases or decreases because of an event
occurring after the impairment was recognised, the previously
recognised impairment loss is increased or reduced by
adjusting the allowance account. If a write-off is later
recovered, the recovery is credited to other expenses in the
income statement.
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2.4 Summary of Significant Accounting

Policies (continued)

Financial liabilities

Initial recognition and measurement

Financial liabilities within the scope of HKAS 39 are classified
as financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss, loans
and borrowings, or as derivatives designated as hedging
instruments in an effective hedge, as appropriate. The Group
determines the classification of its financial liabilities at initial
recognition.

All financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair value and,
in the case of loans and borrowings, net of directly attributable
transaction costs.

Subsequent measurement
The subsequent measurement of financial liabilities depends
on their classification as follows:

Loans and borrowings

After initial recognition, interest-bearing loans and borrowings
are subsequently measured at amortised cost, using the
effective interest rate method unless the effect of discounting
would be immaterial, in which case they are stated at cost.
Gains and losses are recognised in the income statement
when the liabilities are derecognised as well as through the
effective interest rate amortisation process.

Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any
discount or premium on acquisition and fees or costs that are
an integral part of the effective interest rate. The effective
interest rate amortisation is included in finance costs in the
income statement.

Derecognition of financial liabilities
A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under
the liability is discharged or cancelled, or expires.

When an existing financial liability is replaced by another from
the same lender on substantially different terms, or the terms
of an existing liability are substantially modified, such an
exchange or modification is treated as a derecognition of the
original liability and a recognition of a new liability, and the
difference between the respective carrying amounts is
recognised in the income statement.
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2.4 Summary of Significant Accounting

Policies (continued)

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable
value after making due allowances for obsolete or slow
moving items. Cost is determined on the weighted average
basis and, in the case of work in progress and finished goods,
comprises direct materials, direct labour and an appropriate
proportion of overheads. Net realisable value is based on the
estimated selling prices less any estimated costs to be
incurred to completion and disposal.

Leases

Leases that transfer substantially all the rewards and risks of
ownership of assets to the Group, other than legal title, are
accounted for as finance leases. At the inception of a finance
lease, the cost of the leased asset is capitalised at the present
value of the minimum lease payments and recorded together
with the obligation, excluding the interest element, to reflect
the purchase and financing. Assets held under capitalised
finance leases, including prepaid land lease payments under
finance leases, are included in property, plant and equipment,
and depreciated over the shorter of the lease terms and the
estimated useful lives of the assets. The finance costs of such
leases are charged to the income statement so as to provide
a constant periodic rate of charge over the lease terms.

Leases where substantially all the rewards and risks of
ownership of assets remain with the lessor are accounted for
as operating leases. Where the Group is the lessor, assets
leased by the Group under operating leases are included in
non-current assets, and rentals receivable under the operating
leases are credited to the income statement on the
straight-line basis over the lease terms. Where the Group is
the lessee, rentals payable under operating leases are charged
to the income statement on the straight-line basis over the
lease terms.

Prepaid land lease payments under operating leases are
initially stated at cost and subsequently recognised on the
straight-line basis over the lease terms. When the lease
payments cannot be allocated reliably between the land and
buildings elements, the entire lease payments are included in
the cost of the land and buildings as a finance lease in
property, plant and equipment.

1 1 8 EMBRY HOLDINGS LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2012

24 TESTBERBE @)

&
FERKAET SR FEZRIEEARK -
WRABRE P IH IR BB E B E - AR
MEFHEAE  WBERAEEKM
ABEEERYE BERTIEREELMZ
AR o ] & B FER 5 & BRER
fEat e R BB ZRAGE -

HE

1 EEREEORERERIN 2 KED W
MERREEEASEZEES SRE
HE REMELUN HEEEZRE
BERHERERRZREREEAR A&
RER (TEFE) AR AR A KR
BER - ENMCRMEMERBEZEE (BRE
BMEMSE T A EFIREMN) BIIAY
X BEARE LREEHREFHH(G
AAMERFR(ABREERE) B - 25
MEZREXATIREEFHRREELL
FR R AF0RR ©

HHEARREERBE ZB/ABD LR
HEfR 2 HESNAREHE - HAKE
EHEA AIREERELERANEEZ
BEOFAGERBDEE  MELHENZE
WHEMABEREAEHEERRG AR
®o MAKERAHEA - MKERN2IE
NHSAEREZEHERA B BB RN

REHENEN LA EFRNF LKA
FIfR  HRGEHEHRANNEREER - &
& SRR AR SE A LI AR TR AR
ETHRE - RIREEEFAGT AL
MBF 2 RAF - JIEDE - BE K&
ZBEME -



5. LL Not:es to-:-FmanCIal’

B 5 e e () 0
31 December2012—§.--'¢$!+ A= ‘f‘ H ', .'

24 TESTBERBE @)

2.4 Summary of Significant Accounting

Policies (continued)

Cash and cash equivalents

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash flows,
cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand and
demand deposits, and short term highly liquid investments
that are readily convertible into known amounts of cash, are
subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value, and have a

short maturity of generally within three months when acquired,

less bank overdrafts which are repayable on demand and
form an integral part of the Group’s cash management.

For the purpose of the statements of financial position, cash
and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand and at banks,
including term deposits, which are not restricted as to use.

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition,
construction or production of qualifying assets, i.e., assets
that necessarily take a substantial period of time to get ready
for their intended use or sale, are capitalised as part of the
cost of those assets. The capitalisation of such borrowing
costs ceases when the assets are substantially ready for their
intended use or sale. Investment income earned on the
temporary investment of specific borrowings spending their
expenditure on qualifying assets is deducted from the
borrowing costs capitalised. All other borrowing costs are
expensed in the period in which they are incurred. Borrowing
costs consist of interest and other costs that an entity incurs
in connection with the borrowing of funds.

Provisions

A provision is recognised when a present obligation (legal or
constructive) has arisen as a result of a past event and it is
probable that a future outflow of resources will be required to
settle the obligation, provided that a reliable estimate can be
made of the amount of the obligation.

When the effect of discounting is material, the amount
recognised for a provision is the present value at the end of
the reporting period of the future expenditures expected to be
required to settle the obligation. The increase in the
discounted present value amount arising from the passage of
time is included in finance costs in the income statement.
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2.4 Summary of Significant Accounting
Policies (continued)
Income tax

Income tax comprises current and deferred tax. Income tax
relating to items recognised outside the income statement is
recognised either in other comprehensive income or directly in

equity.

Current tax assets and liabilities for the current and prior
periods are measured at the amount expected to be

recovered from or paid to the taxation authorities, based on

tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or
substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period,
taking into consideration interpretations and practices
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prevailing in the countries in which the Group operates.
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Deferred tax is provided, using the liability method, on all
temporary differences at the end of the reporting period
between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their
carrying amounts for financial reporting purposes.
BERBEAERM ARV E R ZE®

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for all taxable temporary

differences, except: R METIERERIN -

. when the deferred tax liability arises from the initial . AEBAEHUINZRZ (X ER
recognition of an asset or liability in a transaction that WER M ES T af S E p%iﬁ i
is not a business combination and, at the time of the FMekEBEE) TULSHER ﬁ& EA=|
transaction, affects neither the accounting profit nor BEFfEL ZELEFBEG
taxable profit or loss; and

o in respect of taxable temporary differences associated o HHNB AR ZREEE 2 ERRE
with investments in subsidiaries, when the timing of the REZEms NERE5E 2 BOR
reversal of the temporary differences can be controlled R Fiedl - BEREZ% T KA

FERIE R AR -

and it is probable that the temporary differences will
not reverse in the foreseeable future.
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2.4 Summary of Significant Accounting

Policies (continued)

Income tax (continued)

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible
temporary differences, the carryforward of unused tax credits
and any unused tax losses. Deferred tax assets are
recognised, to the extent that it is probable that taxable profit
will be available against which the deductible temporary
differences, the carryforward of unused tax credits and
unused tax losses can be utilised, except:

o when the deferred tax asset relating to the deductible
temporary differences arises from the initial recognition
of an asset or liability in a transaction that is not a
business combination and, at the time of the
transaction, affects neither the accounting profit nor
taxable profit or loss; and

o in respect of deductible temporary differences
associated with investments in subsidiaries, deferred
tax assets are only recognised to the extent that it is
probable that the temporary differences will reverse in
the foreseeable future and taxable profit will be
available against which the temporary differences can
be utilised.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the
end of each reporting period and reduced to the extent that it
is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profit will be
available to allow all or part of the deferred tax asset to be
utilised. Unrecognised deferred tax assets are reassessed at
the end of each reporting period and are recognised to the
extent that it has become probable that sufficient taxable profit
will be available to allow all or part of the deferred tax asset to
be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax
rates that are expected to apply to the period when the asset
is realised or the liability is settled, based on tax rates (and tax
laws) that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the
end of the reporting period.

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset if a
legally enforceable right exists to set off current tax assets
against current tax liabilities and the deferred taxes relate to
the same taxable entity and the same taxation authority.
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2.4 Summary of Significant Accounting

Policies (continued)

Revenue recognition

Revenue is recognised when it is probable that the economic
benefits will flow to the Group and when the revenue can be
measured reliably, on the following bases:

(@) from the sale of goods, when the significant risks and
rewards of ownership have been transferred to the
buyer, provided that the Group maintains neither
managerial involvement to the degree usually
associated with ownership, nor effective control over
the goods sold;

(b) rental income, on a time proportion basis over the
lease terms;

(c) interest income, on an accrual basis using the effective
interest rate method by applying the rate that exactly
discounts the estimated future cash receipts over the
expected life of the financial instrument or a shorter
period, when appropriate, to the net carrying amount
of the financial asset; and

(d) dividend income, when the shareholders’ right to
receive payment has been established.

Research and development costs
All research costs are charged to the income statement as
incurred.

Expenditure incurred on projects to develop new products is
capitalised and deferred only when the Group can
demonstrate the technical feasibility of completing the
intangible asset so that it will be available for use or sale, its
intention to complete and its ability to use or sell the asset,
how the asset will generate future economic benefits, the
availability of resources to complete the project and the ability
to measure reliably the expenditure during the development.
Product development expenditure which does not meet these
criteria is expensed when incurred.

)¢
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2.4 Summary of Significant Accounting

Policies (continued)

Government grants

Government grants, including a subsidy for the expenditure
incurred in the construction cost of infrastructure projects, are
recognised at their fair value where there is reasonable
assurance that the grant will be received and all attaching
conditions will be complied with. When the grant relates to an
expense item, it is recognised as income on a systematic
basis over the periods that the costs, which it is intended to
compensate, are expensed. Where the grant relates to an
asset, the fair value is deducted from the carrying amount of
the asset and released to the income statement by way of a
reduced depreciation charge.

Share-based payments

The Company operates a share option scheme for the
purpose of providing incentives and rewards to eligible
participants who contribute to the success of the Group’s
operations. Employees (including directors) of the Group
receive remuneration in the form of share-based payments,
whereby employees render services as consideration for
equity instruments (“equity-settled transactions”).

The cost of equity-settled transactions with employees for
grants after 7 November 2002 is measured by reference to
the fair value at the date at which they are granted. The fair
value is determined by an external valuer using a binomial
model, further details of which are given in note 31 to the
financial statements.

The cost of equity-settled transactions is recognised, together
with a corresponding increase in equity, over the period in
which the performance and/or service conditions are fulfilled.
The cumulative expense recognised for equity-settled
transactions at the end of each reporting period until the
vesting date reflects the extent to which the vesting period has
expired and the Group’s best estimate of the number of equity
instruments that will ultimately vest. The charge or credit to
the income statement for a period represents the movement
in the cumulative expense recognised as at the beginning and
end of that period.
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2.4 Summary of Significant Accounting
Policies (continued)
Share-based payments (continued)
No expense is recognised for awards that do not ultimately
vest, except for equity-settled transactions where vesting is
conditional upon a market or non-vesting condition, which are
treated as vesting irrespective of whether or not the market or
non-vesting condition is satisfied, provided that all other
performance and/or service conditions are satisfied.

Where the terms of an equity-settled award are modified, as a
minimum an expense is recognised as if the terms had not
been modified, if the original terms of the award are met. In
addition, an expense is recognised for any modification that
increases the total fair value of the share-based payments, or
is otherwise beneficial to the employee as measured at the
date of modification.

Where an equity-settled award is cancelled, it is treated as if it
had vested on the date of cancellation, and any expense not
yet recognised for the award is recognised immediately. This
includes any award where non-vesting conditions within the
control of either the Group or the employee are not met.
However, if a new award is substituted for the cancelled
award, and is designated as a replacement award on the date
that it is granted, the cancelled and new awards are treated
as if they were a maodification of the original award, as
described in the previous paragraph.

The dilutive effect of outstanding options is reflected as an
additional share dilution in the computation of earnings per
share.

Other employee benefits

The Group operates a defined contribution Mandatory
Provident Fund retirement benefit scheme (the “MPF Scheme”)
under the Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance for
all of its employees. Contributions are made based on a
percentage of the employees’ basic salaries and are charged
to the income statement as they become payable in
accordance with the rules of the MPF Scheme. The assets of
the MPF Scheme are held separately from those of the Group
in an independently administered fund. The Group’s employer
contributions vest fully with the employees when contributed
into the MPF Scheme.

¢
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2.4 Summary of Significant Accounting

Policies (continued)

Other employee benefits (continued)

The employees of the Group’s subsidiaries which operate in
Mainland China are required to participate in central pension
schemes operated by the local municipal government. These
subsidiaries are required to contribute certain percentages of
their payroll costs to the central pension scheme. The
contributions are charged to the income statement as they
become payable in accordance with the rules of the central
pension scheme.

Foreign currencies

These financial statements are presented in Hong Kong
dollars, which is the Company’s functional and presentation
currency. Each entity in the Group determines its own
functional currency and items included in the financial
statements of each entity are measured using that functional
currency. Foreign currency transactions recorded by the
entities in the Group are initially recorded using their respective
functional currency rates prevailing at the dates of the
transactions. Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in
foreign currencies are translated at the functional currency
rates of exchange ruling at the end of the reporting period.
Differences arising on settlement or translation of monetary
items are recognised in the income statement. Non-monetary
items that are measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign
currency are translated using the exchange rates at the dates
of the initial transactions. Non-monetary items measured at
fair value in a foreign currency are translated using the
exchange rates at the date when the fair value was
determined. The gain or loss arising on translation of a non-
monetary item measured at fair value is treated in line with the
recognition of the gain or loss on change in fair value of the
item (i.e., translation difference on the item whose fair value
gain or loss is recognised in other comprehensive income or
income statement is also recognised in other comprehensive
income or income statement, respectively).
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Summary of Significant Accounting
Policies (continued)

Foreign currencies (continued)

The functional currencies of certain overseas subsidiaries are
currencies other than the Hong Kong dollar. As at the end of
the reporting period, the assets and liabilities of these entities
are translated into the presentation currency of the Company
at the exchange rates prevailing at the end of the reporting
period and their income statements are translated into Hong
Kong dollars at the weighted average exchange rates for the
year. The resulting exchange differences are recognised in
other comprehensive income and accumulated in the
exchange fluctuation reserve. On disposal of a foreign
operation, the component of other comprehensive income
relating to that particular foreign operation is recognised in the
income statement.

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash flows,
the cash flows of overseas subsidiaries are translated into
Hong Kong dollars at the exchange rates prevailing at the
dates of the cash flows. Frequently recurring cash flows of
overseas subsidiaries which arise throughout the year are
translated into Hong Kong dollars at the weighted average
exchange rates for the year.

Significant Accounting Judgements
and Estimates

The preparation of the Group’s financial statements requires
management to make judgements, estimates and
assumptions that affect the reported amounts of revenues,
expenses, assets and liabilities, and their accompanying
disclosures, and the disclosure of contingent liabilities.
Uncertainty about these assumptions and estimates could
result in outcomes that could require a material adjustment to
the carrying amounts of the assets or liabilities affected in the
future.

Judgements

In the process of applying the Group’s accounting policies,
management has made the following judgements, apart from
those involving estimations, which have the most significant
effect on the amounts recognised in the financial statements:
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Significant Accounting Judgements
and Estimates (continueq)

Judgements (continued)

Operating lease commitments — Group as lessor

The Group has entered into commercial property leases on its
investment property portfolio. The Group has determined,
based on an evaluation of the terms and conditions of the
arrangements, that it retains all the significant risks and
rewards of ownership of these properties which are leased out
on operating leases.

Classification between investment properties and
owner-occupied properties

The Group determines whether a property qualifies as an
investment property, and has developed criteria in making that
judgement. Investment property is a property held to earn
rentals or for capital appreciation or both. Therefore, the
Group considers whether a property generates cash flows
largely independently of the other assets held by the Group.
Some properties comprise a portion that is held to earn rentals
or for capital appreciation and another portion that is held for
use in the production or supply of goods or services or for
administrative purposes. If these portions could be sold
separately or leased out separately under a finance lease, the
Group accounts for the portions separately. If the portions
could not be sold separately, the property is an investment
property only if an insignificant portion is held for use in the
production or supply of goods or services or for administrative
purposes. Judgement is made on an individual property basis
to determine whether ancillary services are so significant that
a property does not qualify as an investment property.

Estimation uncertainty

Estimation of fair value of investment properties

As described in note 18 to the financial statements, the
investment properties were revalued at the end of the
reporting period on an open market, existing use basis by
independent professionally qualified valuers. Such valuations
were based on certain assumptions, which are subject to
uncertainty and might materially differ from the actual results.
In making the judgement, the Group considers information
from current prices in an active market for similar properties
and uses assumptions that are mainly based on market
conditions existing at the end of each reporting period.
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3. Significant Accounting Judgements 3. FEETHE KM@
and Estimates (continueq)
Estimation uncertainty (continued) F3t 2 FBBEREZ= (&)
Valuation of share options FEREEZ (18
The fair value of options granted under the share option RIEERESERE 2 EBREAFERA
scheme is determined using the binomial model. The “HEAERET  BARKEAZERTE
significant inputs into the model were the weighted average YEABREBBH I MEFEHRE 17
share price at the grant date, exercise price, risk-free interest B EREEAX . JREX . FBHLIE B
rate, dividend yield, expected volatility, expected life of BEEHAUARESTEHE T 2 RkR -
options, and exit rate of directors and staff. When the actual Th FEEECEREREERE 2 BT
results of the inputs differ from the management’s estimate, it CBlEEHANG 7 BRRER S RiEREE
will have impact on share option expenses and the related H&%{Eﬁ{%tﬁﬁz%&% °
share option reserve of the Company.
4. Segment Information 4. DEEHR
The Group's primary operating segment is the manufacture AEBzETELKESHERTHWE - A
and sale of ladies’ brassieres, panties, swimwear and Bk REXZEERIEE - AR A
sleepwear. Since this is the only operating segment of the NEF 7B —KEDI - WA E2)E—
Group, no further analysis thereof is presented. In determining DN c RENER 7@ ER - Y
the Group’s geographical information, the revenue information wER DR EPREMABER - E3ERT
is based on the locations of the customers, and the total BE(EILERBEERIIN BRIEEEMRT
non-current assets information, other than deferred tax assets, bRy =B
is based on the locations of the assets.
Mainland China Hong Kong Others Total
E AR B Hity aft
2012 2011 2012 2011 2012 2011 2012 2011
—B--§% -—T——% =-B--§f —T—F =-B--f —T——§ —B--F —T——F
HK$'000  HK$000  HK$000  HKS000  HK$'000  HK$000  HK$000  HK$'000
FE FET FET FET FET FET FET FET
Revenue from external IR 2 Wz
customers 1,888,501 1,500,288 100,010 91,189 6,755 13510 1,995,356 1,604,987
Non-current assets FERBEE 771,139 770,063 73,270 63,349 - - 844,409 833,412
Capital expenditure incurred £ RE AR %
during the year 24,460 52,983 1,153 276 - = 25,613 53,259
For the years ended 31 December 2012 and 2011, as no HE_Z——Fk-_FT——F+_A8
revenue from sales to a customer of the Group has individually =+—HBIFE BARAEETERFZ
accounted for over 10% of the Group’s total revenue, no 565 Wz 18 Bl MG AR S B B W = 10% BA =
information about major customers is presented under HKFRS MW ARBBED BN EREERESTHE |
8. FERFPHER -

¢
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Revenue

Revenue, which is also the Group’s turnover, represents the
net invoiced value of goods sold, after allowances for returns
and trade discounts.

Other Income and Gains

5. W=
Wzt BIAREBZEEE  EHNKBRERER
ROMIFBAREHERZEZFE -

6. HMWARW:

Group
AEH
2012 2011
—E-=F —T——%
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FET
Other income Hilr A
Subsidy income* AL U A 26,898 13,405
Gross rental income e W ALRE 6,336 4,241
Bank interest income RITH B WA 2,557 853
Royalty income ERIREU A 324 367
Others Hih 3,039 4,988
39,154 23,854
Gains &
Foreign exchange differences, net EHZER - F5 6,956 22,750
Changes in fair value of investment BEMENTEES (HE18)
properties (note 18) 11,177 10,916
18,133 33,666
57,287 57,520

*

There are no unfulfilled conditions or contingencies relating to
this income.
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7. Other Expenses

7. HMREX

Group
TEE
2012 2011
—E——F —T—%
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FEr
Charitable donation BERN 8,707 6,199
Loss on disposal/write-off of items of HE MEYE - BER
property, plant and equipment REIEE 2 BE 591 6
9,298 6,205
8. Finance Costs 8. ®MEMA
Group
TEE
2012 2011
—E--F T —fF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FET
Total interest on bank loans wholly BRAFABBEE 2 BRIT
repayable within five years BEZF B 3,906 2,242
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9. Profit Before Tax 9. PBR®ADEF
The Group’s profit before tax is arrived at after charging/ REEBZBBENEMNDIG(GEA) -
(crediting):
Group
rEH
2012 2011
—E——F —T—%
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FET
Cost of inventories sold BEEFERAR 375,217 300,615
Depreciation e 38,338 34,285
Amortisation of prepaid land lease payments — FB{< + 378 & R I8 7 1 5 789 770
Minimum lease payments under BENTSELEEO 2
operating leases in respect of: HEEEFHIA :
Land and buildings T RAEF 69,638 63,196
Contingent rents of retail outlets BERRATES
in department stores SRS 492,312 412,634
Employee benefit expenses (excluding EERNAY (TBEES
directors’ and chief executive’s RATHRBEF N — HfaL 10) -
remuneration — note 10):
Wages and salaries TENFS 481,312 446,707
Provision/(write-back of provision) REBRIS © e (BB E)
for long service payments (176) 763
Retirement benefit scheme contributions RGBT IR 41,553 39,082
Equity-settled share option expense VARR 1 =2 1P B AR i A =2 13,103 13,419
535,792 499,971
Auditors’ remuneration Z BTN & 2,700 2,590
Advertising and counter decoration expenses &4 R B R 5= AHF 2 137,985 108,696
Provision/(write-back of provision) for PRETFTEEE
obsolete inventories, net* (B EHEE) - SF58> 26,492 (5,720)
Impairment/(write-back of impairment FEWE B RFORE R ERE
allowance) of trade receivables #m) (179) 448
Research and development expenditure 3T MM 2,090 3,421
Loss on disposal/write-off of items of HE WEME - BE &
property, plant and equipment REEB 2 BE 591 6
Gross and net rental income WA BE T (6,336) (4,241)
Changes in fair value of investment properties 1% & ) % /A (& % &) (11,177) (10,916)
Foreign exchange differences, net EHZER - F5 (6,956) (22,750)
Bank interest income RITFBUA (2,557) (853)
* The provision/(write-back of provision) for obsolete ) ﬁfﬁ B aRfE (BERD)  FECH
inventories, net is included in “Cost of sales” on the face of AEFEWam R [FHELA] A -

the consolidated income statement.

wRERRERAR @202 ||



Noles (o Finaneial Statements, (Continued)

$ 5 e e M e (D)

31 December 2012 =2 ——F+_-H=+—H

10. Directors’ and Chief Executive’s 10. ESRTHAR TN
Remuneration
Directors’ and chief executive’s remuneration for the year, BIEEFBHMAX AR AR (B
disclosed pursuant to the Rules Governing the Listing of FZAHFmBMA(T EHRE) REEDTE
Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the PEICI BN FRNES RITHRARH
“Stock Exchange”) (the “Listing Rules”) and Section 161 of the Bz T -

Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, is as follows:

Group
AEH
2012 2011
—E-—F —T—%
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FHEIT
Fees we 798 792
Other emoluments: HEme -
Salaries, allowances and benefits in kind 4 EEIREMERN 7,079 7,933
Bonuses* TE4L” 6,153 2,330
Equity-settled share option expense LARRRESZ 1 2 B AR 2 1,587 1,764
Retirement benefit scheme contributions RIREFFT B TR 42 42
15,659 12,861
* Executive directors of the Company are entitled to bonus e ARRFHITEFBHEREIEA - ME
payments which are determined as a percentage of the profit A BRI AN EFGHE ST —ES
after tax of the Group. SHEE °
The fair value of these share options, which has been FTREBHANERRARERNERE - H
recognised in the income statement over the vesting period, ANFERBRHBHETE st AKEEHE
was determined as at the date of grant and the amount RO LB A LM EE L TTEAEEFEN
included in the financial statements for the current year is WEEENA o

included in the above directors’ and chief executive’s
remuneration disclosures.

¢
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10. Directors’ and Chief Executive’s 10. EERTHEARTHN 2
Remuneration (continueq)
2012 —E——-F
Salaries, Equity-
allowances settled Retirement
and share benefit
benefits option scheme Total
Fees inkind  Bonuses expenses contributions remuneration
DL
e Xz
BER BRE  BHREA

e EBENAE A X R A
HK$'000  HK$000  HK$000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000
FET FEx FiEx FET FEx FEx

Executive directors: HITEE -
Mr. Cheng Man Tai BHREE - 2,513 2,198 30 14 4,755
Ms. Cheng Pk Ho Liza (note ) E3&&4+ (A1) - 2,411 2,041 1,248 14 5714
Madam Ngok Ming Chu EBKLLT - 2,155 1,914 51 14 4,134
- 7,079 6,153 1,329 42 14,603
Independent non-executive BT
directors: EE:
Mr. Lau Siu Ki BBESLAE 266 - - 86 - 352
Mr. Lee Kwan Hung FHERE 266 - - 86 - 352
Prof. Lee T. S. FREHR 266 - - 86 - 352
798 - - 258 - 1,056
798 7,079 6,153 1,587 42 15,659
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10. Directors’ and Chief Executive’s 10. ESRITHREAREFIN =
Remuneration (continueq)
2011 —E——fF
Salaries, Equity-
allowances settled  Retirement
and share benefit
benefits option scheme Total
Fees in kind Bonuses  expenses  contributions  remuneration
VAR HE
e Xtz
AR EkE  RKER
we B fe4T MY FrEMER ez

HK$000  HK$000  HK$'000  HK$O00  HKE000  HK$'000
THET THET THET THET THET T

Executive directors: HITEE -

Mr. Cheng Man Tai BHRTE - 2,647 840 87 12 3,586

Ms. Cheng Pik Ho Liza (note (i) #5233+ (AraE() = 2,257 774 1,207 12 4,250

Madam Ngok Ming Chu ERH%Z LT = 2,105 716 107 12 2,940

Mr. Hung Hin Kit (note (i) B (Ha () - 924 - = 6 930

- 7,933 2,330 1,401 42 11,706
Independlent non-executive BIFHIT
directors: EE

Mr. Lau Siu Ki ARERE 264 - - 121 - 385

Mr. Lee Kwan Hung FHERE 264 = = 121 = 385

Prof. Lee T. S. FREHE 264 - - 121 - 385
792 - - 363 - 1,185
792 7,933 2,330 1,764 42 12,861

Notes: Bt

0] Ms. Cheng Pik Ho Liza, a director of the Company, is also a i) ARNAEEZBEE LT IMEERARRZ

chief executive officer of the Company. 1TH#BE -
(i) Mr. Hung Hin Kit resigned as a director of the Company with (ii) EBEREECDHARRBIES 2B - &
effect from 1 July 2011, ZE——FtA—HABER -
There were no arrangements under which a director or the BB A EE EITRA R R WER
chief executive waived or agreed to waive any remuneration BRMERE Nz ZHE -

during the year.

1 34 EMBRY HOLDINGS LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2012



L Notes to F111anc1al Statemen’ts £ Coutuuze(l)

o5 R M RE (A
31 December 2012 5——'5F+—FJ =i aeE

11. Five Highest Paid Individuals 11. EEHZEHAL
The five highest paid employees during the year included three FRARAEZESHFALTEE=Z2EFF(_Z

(2011: three) directors, details of whose remuneration are set
out in note 10 to the financial statements above. Details of the
remuneration for the year of the remaining two (2011: two)
highest paid employees who are neither directors nor chief
executive of the Company are as follows:

——%:=%) EHFMHABC R EXHB

BRMEI08H ML - FREHKMB(ZF

——$'W%)#$“ﬂ%$ﬁﬁ&%ﬁz
=SHREZHMFABNOT

Group

rEE
2012 2011
—E——F —T—%
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FET
Salaries, allowances and benefits in kind 4  RAEREMAE 2,383 2,853
Bonuses TE4T 1,496 214
Equity-settled share option expense D/\H%E SRR R 827 774
Retirement benefit scheme contributions RNE AT B R 56 12
4,762 3,853

HENEN A T AR 2 R E F RIRTTER AR AL
RaFEEAZBMT

The number of non-director and non-chief executive, highest
paid employees whose remuneration fell within the following
bands is as follows:

Number of employees

EEAH
2012 2011
e -
Nil to HK$1,000,000 Z 2 1,000,000 7T - -
HK$1,000,001 to HK$1,500,000 1,000,001 % 7T % 1,500,000 % 7T - 1
HK$1,500,001 to HK$2,000,000 1,500,001 7T 2 2,000,000 8 7T - =
HK$2,000,001 to HK$2,500,000 2,000,001 77T 2 2,500,000 7% 7T 1
HK$2,500,001 to HK$3,000,000 2,500,001 7 7T 2 3,000,000/ 7T -
2 2
The fair value of these share options, which has been ARBGEHAT NS RERNERE H
recognised in the income statement over the vesting period, ANEERRLBHETE  sTARFEER

BROSHEHA LM IFEE FIFTRAE
EeFEEMERERRERN -

was determined as at the date of grant and the amount
included in the financial statements for the current year is
included in the above non-director and non-chief executive,
highest paid employees’ remuneration disclosures.
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Income Tax

Hong Kong profits tax has been provided at the rate of 16.5%
(2011: 16.5%) on the estimated assessable profits arising in
Hong Kong during the year.

Pursuant to the Enterprise Income Tax Law of the People’s
Republic of China (“PRC”) being effective on 1 January 2008
(the “New PRC Tax Law”), the PRC income tax rate is unified
to 25% for all enterprises. Under an implementation guidance
note of the New PRC Tax Law, enterprises established before
the publication of the New PRC Tax Law were entitled to
preferential treatments of a reduced corporate income tax rate
(the “CIT rate”) granted by the relevant tax authorities. The
new CIT rate would be gradually increased from the
preferential rate to 25% within five years after the effective
date of the New PRC Tax Law on 1 January 2008. Enterprises
that are currently entitled to exemptions or reductions from the

12.

PiEEE
BEFEBRIIBEBEFANGBAEEBEEZ
JER B R M E165%( T — — F:
16.5%) 2 Tt R AEH 4 o

RENR-ZFFTN\E-A-—BRAKERZF
EARLME (7B ) dEAAEHE
TEMBHA] - PEMSHREEERA
BRER—/25% - REFHBEMAEHE
ZEHES - RAMmIHPBEASHERK
V2 ERARFAREBREEEE TR
CEABHE((REMERER) ZBERF
B MEEMEREAR_FTENEFE—A
—BHPEAFREEN A RARAFAZ
R B R IEINZE 25% R HT T E
P15 B804 4 R A1 B 7 #R A R] = A R 2y
BHRREREH R EEATHEZH I

standard income tax rate for a fixed term prior to the New FB BERZETHRERAL -

PRC Tax Law became effective continue to enjoy such

treatment until the fixed term expires.

In addition, taxes on profits assessable elsewhere have been Jtté?l\ C HAthih FFERRBORF 2 BB B A

calculated at the rates of tax prevailing in the countries in
which the Group operates.

BEEERHARZ BRI ETE -

Group
AEE
2012 2011
—B-—F —T——%F
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET F#E
(Restated)
(E%1))
Group: REHE -
Current — Hong Kong BNER: e — &5
Charge for the year FABIE 584 518
Overprovision in prior years BEFE 2B (12) (349)
Current — Mainland China BVERAR 18 — A B A
Charge for the year FRBIA 75,178 69,271
Underprovision in prior years BAFEVIRERE - 1
Deferred (note 29) IRIE (Ff7E29) 1,302 1,544
Total tax charge for the year FEZBHMEIS 77,052 70,985

€
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12. Income Tax (continued) 12.

A reconciliation of the tax expense applicable to profit before
tax at the statutory rates for the regions in which the Company
and the majority of its subsidiaries are domiciled to the tax

e

AT REASHHBEA T ME
SEE R R B AT FI S 8 Y BIARM S
B BRI 2 BB X M B

expense at the effective tax rates is as follows: T
Group
AEH
2012 2011
—E—_—F —E——F
HK$’000 HK$°000
FET FHEIT
(Restated)
(&%)
Profit before tax B A5 B A 260,614 231,268
Tax at the applicable rates to profits EBEBERBERAN R

in the countries concerned MR E 2 FiE 66,079 58,537
Lower tax rate for specific provinces PRI KBER A D 2 BIERL &

in Mainland China - (543)
Lower tax rate due to tax holiday EREEERm N2 E (1,843) (3,304)
Overprovision in prior years BEEE 7 BRERME (12) (348)
Income not subject to tax BARB WA (3,035) (3,605)
Expenses not deductible for tax TR 2 8,654 6,238
Effect of withholding tax at 5% and 10% HAER 2 RRHE AR A

on the distributable profits of the Group’s 3K 5 T B 5% & 10%

PRC subsidiaries SEEIL - 3,397 10,986
Tax losses not recognised RERMIBERE 3,812 3,024
Tax charge at the Group’s effective rate BAREBZERHERAEZ

BB H 77,052 70,985
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13. Related Party Transactions 13. EBREALRS
(2)  Inaddition to the transactions detailed elsewhere in (a) BZEVBRREMIBHAAZR
these financial statements, the Group had the following S9N REBRERNEARREALT
material transactions with related parties during the EITZEARSUOT
year:
2012 2011
—B-=F =—F—F
Notes HK$°000 HK$'000
Hax FET FEIT
Continuing transactions HERXS
Purchases of furniture and MEENFEEEN R
decoration services for JE 2 R RS AR TS
counters and shops as well as R EEAREA
different types of moulds from
related companies 0] 14,839 19,378

Rental expenses for a property B ARINEREZ

charged by a related company e (ii) 2,800 2,733

Rental expenses for a ARARESFWRMEEL

warehouse charged by HEMX
a director of the Company (i) 159 144

Notes: Kt -

0] The purchases of furniture and decoration services 0] RAARB—REENTZ FIEH
for counters and shops as well as different types of ZBEARBERMRIEHZ
moulds from related companies controlled by a son REMREERBA RS ERE
of a director of the Company were made according B {5k R A 55 [ 98 <L A PR P AT
to the terms similar to those offered by the Group’s hﬁ’—i ZEFEE R 2T —=
independent suppliers. The balances owed to related FH+ZA=+—HBXHH@ER
companies as at 31 December 2012 were A) 2 #825,906,000/87T ( =&
HK$5,906,000 (2011: HK$6,537,000) and were ——4% : 6,537,000/ 7T ) JyE
unsecured, interest-free and repayable in accordance EH 2ERFTER—REER
with normal trading terms. The amounts have been HEE ZERBERBER
included in other payables and accruals as at the end M#&EE B I EE M EMRIE R
of the reporting period. FERTFRIA o

(i) The rental expenses charged by a related company, (ii) ARAREERESIMEBRT
which was controlled by a director of the Company FriEsl o BERRIWR 2 HE
and two sons of a director of the Company, were FAX T2 EERZTRET °

determined with reference to the then prevailing
market conditions.

(il The rental expenses were determined with reference (i) eI DH2EERZ2MAE
to the then prevailing market conditions. E e
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13. Related Party Transactions (continueq) 13. BEEALIRSZ @
(@) (continued) @ (&)
The above continuing transactions constitute BT ETRANE4AZE - U LEFE
continuing connected transactions as defined in T EBRIBERETS

Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

The directors are of the opinion that the above BEERA LR GRRAAEERE
transactions were conducted in the ordinary course of HEIBIR LT o

business of the Group.

(b) Compensation of key management b) AEBETEEEASZHMH
personnel of the Group

2012 2011
—E-—F —E——F
HK$°000 HK$’000
FET FEIT
Short term employee benefits EHE B EA 18,134 16,063
Post-employment benefits BEER 22 F 283 284
Equity-settled share option expense LARR #E =2 AF 2 B AR i A =2 3,350 3,384
Total compensation paid to SNTFEEEBEAB 2B
key management personnel 21,767 19,731
Further details of directors’ and chief executive’s BERITHRAEG O FISE N
remuneration are included in note 10 to the financial IFIFE10 -
statements.
14. Profit Attributable to Owners of the 14. ZRAQFEE ARG EH
Company
The consolidated profit attributable to owners of the Company BE—T——F+-A=1+—BILEEXR
for the year ended 31 December 2012 includes a loss of NEEEANEBLHEE RN BREER
HK$16,369,000 (2011: net loss of HK$15,139,000) which has 16,369,000/ ;t( — & — — F: BH#E
been dealt with in the financial statements of the Company 15,139,000/ 7T) * & Em A E RA A R B
(note 32(b)). BIE AR (H15E32(0)) ©
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15. Dividends 15. RE
2012 2011
—E--F —T——%
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHET FAET
Dividends paid during the year FREMFRE
Final and special in respect of the HE-_ZT——F+=ZA=1+—H
financial year ended 31 December 2011 IEI B ERARERIIRE
— HK7.0 cents and HK2.0 cents, — D RIREREER7.08 0L &
respectively, per ordinary share 208 ZE——5F : &
(2011: final and special dividends of —_BE-FTF+-_HA=+—H
HK5.0 cents and HK3.0 cents, respectively,  IFBFEFE AR HI M A4S BIAR &
per ordinary share in respect of — PRl REREBARS.0%8(L
the financial year ended 31 December 2010) 2 3.0781l) 37,240 32,803
Interim — HK4.0 cents (2011: FEARR S — ERRE @A 4.0 (L
HK3.0 cents) per ordinary share —ZT——F : 3.080) 16,575 12,305
53,815 45,108
Proposed final and special dividends BIRRARSHIRE
Final and special — HK7.0 cents REF BRI B — DR A
(2011: HK7.0 cents) and HK2.0 cents R E AR 7.0
(2011: HK2.0 cents), respectively, —T——F 708 R
per ordinary share 2. Olﬁé-SﬂJJ( T——F : 2,07l) 37,499 37,025
The proposed final and special dividends for the year are F R ERIR AR B R 4RI AR BB A AN A B IR R
subject to the approval of the Company’s shareholders at the REFERERE RS I E o ZZEBER
forthcoming annual general meeting. These financial X R MR FE RER R ERIIE A -
statements do not reflect the final and special dividends
payable.
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16. Earnings Per Share Attributable to 16. X B BEEANELERER
Owners of the Company
The calculations of the basic and diluted earnings per share SRARREERF T THSURETE -

are based on the following data:

Group
£:
2012 2011
—E—-F —ZE——%
HK$’000 HK$000
FET FHEIT
(Restated)
(&%)
Earnings P |
Earnings for the purpose of basic and M EGRERNRESAT
diluted earnings per share (profit for the year /& B #2 BH| (KRATHEAE A
attributable to owners of the Company) FARAEMEMN)(ZE——F :
(2011: restated to reflect the effect of B A RMERAE ST
adopting HKAS 12 Amendments as HERIFE12571E5]
detailed in note 2.2) (FBERMEE22)) 183,562 160,283
‘000 ‘000
Number of ordinary shares ZEBREE
Weighted average number of MEATEERERRBF A
ordinary shares for the purpose of B #) 2 Limaz hniE
basic earnings per share 158 413,601 409,423
Weighted average number of ordinary shares R:&RERNR B TERE
assumed to have been issued at B AR TE 2 B AR M T AR (E AT
no consideration on deemed exercise 2 E AR INET
of all options outstanding during the year 1,947 5,343
Weighted average number of A EEREERT R
ordinary shares for the purpose of ERzoprd= =l gl
diluted earnings per share F5 8 415,548 414,766
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17. Property, Plant and Equipment 17. Y% - MENZE
Group REE
Furniture,
Leasehold fixtures

landand Leasehold  Plantand  and office Motor Construction
buildings improvements  machinery  equipment vehicles in progress Total
G %E
BEL  AENE BER  REAE
kT k8 B #E RE  HEBIE @
HK$'000  HKS'000  HK$000  HKS'000  HK$000  HKS'000  HK$000
FiEr TiEr THr ThEr TEr T FiEr

31 December 2012 —E-“E+-B=t-H
Cost: A
At 1 January 2012 RZZ--£-f-H 507,264 3,690 76,542 138,743 13,425 1,701 741,365
Additions RE - - 1,901 12,008 1,586 10,118 25,613
Disposals/write-off e /i - - (2,289) (5,360) (1,744) - (9,393)
Transfers ey 2,683 - 739 1,046 - (4,468) -
Transfer to investment properties BB ZRENE (fzt)
frote) (32,784) - - - - - (3278
Exchange realignment R 5,757 - 955 1,567 124 2 8,423
At 31 December 2012 R-ZZ-—F+-A
S=f 482,920 3,690 77,848 148,004 13,391 73N 733,224
Accumulated depreciation:; Z:HNE:
At1 January 2012 W-E2--f-F-H 46,130 3,690 45,548 94,2682 10,455 - 200,105
Provided during the year ENEE 11,022 - 4,920 21,742 1,354 - 38,338
Disposals/writs-off HE /i - - (2,132) (4,861) (1,737) - (8,730)
Transfer to investment properties  EEZHENE
fnote) (W) (1,074) - - - - - (10m
Exchange realignment ERRE 4712 - 575 1,021 82 - 2,150
At 31 December 2012 W-E-—f+-R
=1+-A 56,550 3,690 48,211 112,184 10,154 - 230,789
Net book value: REFE -
At 31 December 2012 W-E-—F+-FR
E=TH 426,370 - 29,637 35,820 3,237 731 502,435
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17. Property, Plant and Equipment contives) 17. Y% - BMERHRE @)

Group REE
Fumiture,
Leasehold fixtures
landand  Leasehold ~ Plantand  and office Motor  Construction

buildings  improvements  machinery  equipment vehicles  in progress Total
i - KB
HETH HEWE BER RBAE

kT % He & "B ERIRE @t

HK8000  HK§000  HKE000  HKE000  HK$'000  HKS000  HK$'000
TET  TET TET TET TET  TET  TET

31 December 2011 “2——FtZA=t-H
Cost: A
At 1 January 2011 RZF-——%-f-A 449,813 3,690 9269 122,847 15,360 257 687,23
Adaltions (note 39) RE (Wi33) 14,857 = 4635 11,760 315 6,895 38,462
Disposals/write-off HE /M = - - (5,474) (2,629) = (8,103
Transfers g 26,707 = 14 5,384 - (3210 =
Exchange realignment BiAE 15,887 - 2,624 4,206 379 654 23,770
At 31 December 2011 RZE——F+Zf
=+-8 507,264 3,690 76542 138743 13425 1701 741365
Accumulated depreciation: EHEEE
At January 2011 R=F-——%-f-H 34,904 3,690 40,117 78,126 11476 - 168313
Provided during the year EnkE 10,008 - 3,878 18,993 1316 = 34,285
Disposals/write-off e /i - - - (5,460) (2,608) = (8,069)
Exchange realignment ERHRE 1,128 - 1553 2,623 271 - 5,575
At 31 Decernber 2011 RZE——F+ZA
= 46,130 3,690 45548 94,282 10,455 - 200105
Net book value: REFE:
At 31 December 2011 RIE——F1ZA
=1-A 461,134 = 30,994 44,461 2,970 1701 541260
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17. Property, Plant and Equipment continveq) 17. Y% - BMERHE &)

The Group's leasehold land and buildings at cost included AREFRBIATHEFRZE AR AK
above are held under the following lease terms: IR 2 E T RIETF ¢
Group
rEE
2012 2011
—E--F —E——F
HK$’000 HK$000
FET FEIT
Medium term leases in Hong Kong REE 2 R EIFRL 28,605 28,605
Short term leases outside Hong Kong BEABEINZ BEHEL 15,123 14,938
Medium term leases outside Hong Kong BRI R EATEL 435,911 460,480
Long term leases outside Hong Kong BBEIN RAEL 3,281 3,241
482,920 507,264
At 31 December 2012, the Group is still in the progress of R-ZT——F+-_A=+—H  A&EE)
obtaining the building ownership certificate for one of the ERBESERERNEER —EIEFHY
buildings in Mainland China with a net book value of XA EE 2 FERTFEL 10,568,000
approximately HK$10,568,000 (2011: HK$10,425,000). BT (ZF——% : 10,425,000/87T) °
Note:  During the year ended 31 December 2012, the Group rented Wit BE-_FT——F+-_A=+—8LHF
out certain of its occupied properties to outsiders for rental B AEBERIINIALTHBAEETYWE
income. At the date of change in use, these properties AWHBBESKRA - RERRIEEE
became investment properties. Upon the transfer from A ZEMERBIREYE - AW -
property, plant and equipment to investment properties, these BERZIBERZREMER - ZED
properties were revalued at HK$32,773,000 with a revaluation ¥ RS /A32,773,000%8 T - MEMER
surplus of HK$1,063,000 credited to the asset revaluation #:1,063,000 B it AKEEMFEHE ©
reserve.
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18. Investment Properties 18. BREWHE

Group

rEE
2012 2011
—E——F —T—%
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHET FET
Carrying amount at 1 January R—A—HZEEE 249,805 217,224
Additions (note 33) WNE (K/3£33) - 14,797
Changes in fair value (notes 6 and 9) NFEZE (MiF6Rk9) 11,177 10,916

Transfer from owner-occupied properties HEEET(EAYE

(note 17) (Hfa17) 32,773 -
Exchange realignment P H 2,566 6,868
Carrying amount at 31 December R+-—A=+—BZKAE 296,321 249,805

The Group’s investment properties are situated at 6th Floor,
Wyler Centre I, 200 Tai Lin Pai Road, Kwai Chung, New
Territories, Hong Kong and certain floors of the building
located at No. 508, Kunming Road, Yangpu District, Shanghai
City, the PRC and were revalued on 31 December 2012 by
DTZ Debenham Tie Leung Limited, a firm of independent
professionally qualified valuers, at HK$52,000,000 and
RMB197,900,000 (approximately HK$244,321,000),
respectively, on an open market, existing use basis. The
Group’s investment properties are held under medium term
leases.

The investment properties are leased to third parties under
operating leases, further summary details of which are
included in note 34(a) to the financial statements.

REB ZHEMED BIMNN BB ALE
REBHE 200 E M L 26 ERP R £
BTHISHEREERKS08EZAES TEE -
RZEBE——F+_A=+—8 ZWED
¥HBYEESERGEMITRBERTE
RARINELAHAMISZREERARRATE
{4 /452,000,00078 7T & A R # 197,900,000
TC(#9244,321,00087C) - XEE 2R E
YIE TR BB AR -

BREMEALEHERTFE=07 - HF1E
NPT A M FE34(0)
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19. Prepaid Land Lease Payments 19. FA{S LA EFIE
Group
AEH
2012 2011
—E——F —T—%
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FHEIT
Cost: B
At 1 January n—HA—H 37,506 36,183
Additions NE 4,705 -
Exchange realignment ME 5, B 462 1,323
At 31 December R+—A=+—8 42,673 37,506
Amortisation: B
At 1 January ®—H—H 1,205 411
Recognised during the year FAER 789 770
Exchange realignment BEE 57, 7 & 15 24
At 31 December nt+—_A=+—8~ 2,009 1,205
Carrying amount at 31 December R+=ZRA=+—HZEEE 40,664 36,301
Current portion included in prepayments, SFAFERFIE e REAELR
deposits and other receivables (note 22) OB 2 BVEREL 1 (Mfat22) (880) (780)
Non-current portion JEBNHAER (9 39,784 35,621
The leasehold lands situated in Mainland China are held under B E T 1A A o B K e AR 15 o BAFE
medium term leases. A -
Subsequent to the end of the reporting period, the Group had HEHKRE  REEBDRSENTHRAE
obtained the land use right certificate in respect of prepaid ZmEzrMEREE HEEEEA
land lease payments of a net carrying amount of 4,705,000 BT (ZF——F : ) °

HK$4,705,000 (201 1: Nil).
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20. Inventories 20. B8
Group
rEH

2012 2011

—B-——-F %

HK$’000 HK$’000

FET FET

Raw materials E Atk 28,611 40,527

Work in progress T2 27,357 32,880

Finished goods 2K T 466,204 527,886

522,172 601,293

21. Trade Receivables 21. BIWE S RN
The Group’s trading terms with its customers are mainly on AEBFENFEEHRRABRTPETE
credit, except for wholesalers, where payment in advance is E o ME—REERUEFELLTK - EE
normally required. The credit period is generally for a period of H—MAe—EA XTEREPZEEHAM
one month, extending up to three months for major EE=ER - AEBZHEBHRIZERK 2
customers. The Group seeks to maintain strict control over its FEW IR - LURREERR - @ H 46 e
outstanding receivables by the sales department to minimise BREEE T AR o SR AT R A
credit risk. Overdue balances are reviewed regularly by senior SECEKREBSEFRIRZ T 2B P B
management. In view of the aforementioned and the fact that BEEPASREZ HUEEEREESRZ
the Group’s trade receivables relate to a large number of BB o ANEE W EmBEEEWE 5 RN S
diversified customers, there is no significant concentration of REEMERMSEMEEINREE o &
credit risk. The Group does not hold any collateral or other B BERRIETFTE

credit enhancements over its trade receivable balances. Trade
receivables are non-interest-bearing.
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21. Trade Receivables (continued)

An aged analysis of the Group’s trade receivables as at the
end of the reporting period, based on the invoice date, is as

21. EWEZERR®
AEERBEHHLEER Y ERESER
REREAHERATMT

follows:

Group

rEHE
2012 2011
—E—-F —ZE——%
HK$’000 HK$000
FET FHEIT
Within 90 days 90HA 77,514 60,867
91 to 180 days 91&180H 2,384 1,808
181 to 360 days 181 £ 360 H 383 606
Over 360 days 360 HIA k£ 136 92
80,417 63,373
Less: Impairment allowance i B (519) (698)
79,898 62,675

At 31 December 2012, trade receivables of HK$519,000
(2011: HK$698,000) were individually determined to be
impaired. The individually impaired trade receivables relate to
customers that were in financial difficulties and only a portion

of the receivables is expected to be recovered.

provision for impairment of trade receivables are as follows:

R-Z——F+-A=+—H ~&E#E
NETERTARENEREZERAR
519,000/ 7T( = T — — £ : 698,000 #
TT) © {86 (L I 5 A SR B L 3R B A R
HNEFP AR FRHRATKRE #B 0 FE WA
Ko BEE SRR BERBESHIT

Movements in

Group
rEE
2012 2011
—E--F —E——F
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FET
At 1 January ®n—A—H 698 250
Impairment losses recognised/(written back)  JFi(EE B R, (B E) (f139)
(note 9) (179) 448
At 31 December ®n+=-—A=+—H 519 698
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21.

Trade Receivables (continued) 21.

An aged analysis of the trade receivables that are not
considered to be impaired is as follows:

FEWE SRR &)
BB RRE 2 FEUR R 5 B 3R0E B 9 77 40
WT:

Group
rEE
2012 2011
—E-—F —T——%F
HK$’000 HK$000
FET FEIT
Neither past due nor impaired KB EAIARE 77,514 60,867
1 to 3 months past due EEi1EA=3EA 2,384 1,808
79,898 62,675

Trade receivables that were neither past due nor impaired
relate to a large number of diversified customers for whom
there was no recent history of default.

Trade receivables that were past due but not impaired relate
to a number of independent customers that have a good track
record with the Group. Based on past experience, the
directors of the Company are of the opinion that no provision
for impairment is necessary in respect of these balances as
there has not been a significant change in credit quality and
the balances are still considered fully recoverable.

ARBRTTRBEZ BKRE S ERTIEXE
MY BN ZREFAR -

EBHBERREZEKRESERTIES R
EAEEBFRTTECHRCBIEFA
B RBAGELSR  ARNEEERTEN
REAZE BEMGHRIDEESTEH
e RARESRRBARLSTERIE
BB A
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22. Prepayments, Deposits and Other 22, EANRE -REREMERK
Receivables FIE
Group Company
bS] N
2012 2011 2012 2011
“g--%f =—T——% <ZB--f <—T——F
Note HK$°000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$'000
fist FET FAET FET FET
Prepaid land lease payments BN T HREHIE 19 880 780 - -
Deposit paid and related direct cost YR8 LR 3t F FEE (F
for the land use rights ReREHERER
in Shandong 2,600 2,568 - -
Deposits for acquisition of items of ~ YeHEME - BiE R REER
property, plant and equipment Bi&RE 3,269 4,258 - -
Prepayments JEANE] 9,915 9,373 43 237
Deposits and other receivables Be REMERFE 33,813 46,488 - -
50,477 63,467 43 237
Current portion included in FABARE - ReREM
prepayments, deposits and FEMFRIR 2 BNERER
other receivables (44,608) (56,641) (43) (237)
Non-current portion FERIEIER 1 5,869 6,826 - =
None of the financial assets included in the above balances is Lt e EEMESESRE - 5
either past due or impaired. The financial assets included in AL EBRNERMEEARIOAAB RN
the above balances relate to receivables for which there was FEURFRIE o

no recent history of default.
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23. Investments in Subsidiaries 23. RMB AR 2=
Company
PN

2012 2011

—E--F —T—%

HK$’000 HK$’000

FET FET

Unlisted investments, at cost JEETIRE - WA 381,448 381,448

Due from subsidiaries Y ENEIE /S 350,468 395,730
Due to subsidiaries FEfH B R R FUA (42,246) (37,266)

689,670 739,912
The balances with subsidiaries are unsecured, interest-free MBARESRAEER 2ELEHBA
and not expected to be settled within the next twelve months RIS B A S B s AR K1 218 A AELR -

from the end of the reporting period.

Particulars of the principal subsidiaries are as follows: TEMBRRINFBNT -
Place of
incorporation/ Issued and Percentage of
registration and fully paid share/ equity attributable
Name operations registered capital to the Company Principal activities
BRTR
MR HBER®D
% A RSE Y EfER AAREEESEALL TEEH
2012 2011
—E--F —T——%F

Embry Asia Limited Hong Kong HK$100 100 100 Investment holding
ZRFEMERARA ] 1007 7T REER
Embry (Changzhou) Garments Ltd. PRC/ RMB136,200,000* 100 100 Manufacture and trading of

(“Embry CZ)** Mainland China A E# 136,200,000 7T * ladies’ brassieres, panties,
2R (BM) REFR AR HRE R E AR swimwear and sleepwear

(TRFFEEMN]) SEREERMENE -

WA - KK REER

Embry (China) Garments Ltd. PRC/ HK$11,000,000 100 100 Manufacture and trading of

(“Embry SZ)** Mainland China 11,000,000 % 7T ladies’ brassieres, panties,
ZHIS (FE)REBRAR B/ B KR swimwear and sleepwear

(TZ=FFRYIL) SEREERMRE -

MAB KR R R

RRSERERAR 82012 ||
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23.

Investments in Subsidiaries (continued)
Particulars of the principal subsidiaries are as follows:

23. AMBAT 2R &)
TEHBATMEBOT : (8)

(continued)
Place of
incorporation/ Issued and Percentage of
registration and fully paid share/ equity attributable
Name operations registered capital to the Company Principal activities
2ETR
MR, #BERRHB
g RS EfES ARRELEEEDLL TEEK
2012 2011
—E--F T4
Embry (H.K.) Limited Hong Kong Ordinary 100 100 Trading of ladies’ brassieres,
(“Embry HK?”) B HK$45,000 panties, swimwear and
ZRF (BB)BRAT *Non-voting sleepwear
(T=HFFEE]) deferred BELUME - A -
HK$4,500,000 KR EER
45,0007
FER SRR
4,500,00077T
Embry (Macau) Fashion Company Macau MOP100,000 100 100 Trading of ladies " brassieres,
Limited (Embry (Macau) ! 100,000;2F9 % panties, swimwear and
Pronto A Vestir, Limitada) sleepwear
EELIRE - A
KK R R
Embry (Shandong) Garments PRC/ US$12,000,000% 100 100 Manufacture and trading of
Limited (“Embry SD”)** Mainland China 12,000,000 % T # ladies’ brassieres, panties,
ZRF (LR REBRRAR BB KRE swimwear and slespwear
(TZFF IR~ SLERBERMNE -
MAE - KR R EER
Embry (Shanghai) Company PRC/ HK$238,000,000 100 100 Design, research and
Limited (“Embry SH”)** Mainland China 238,000,000/ 7T development and trading
ZFIF (L) BRAT B/ B K RE of ladies’ brassieres,
([&=F5 gl panties, swimwear and
sleepwear
Rit R RER
BEZIERE -
WA - KK REEX
Embry Garments Limited BVI US$1 100 100 Investment holding
REBRUHE 1%7T REER
Embry Group Limited (“EGL") BVI Us$472 100 100 Investment holding
REBREREHE 472%TT REZR

1 52 EMBRY HOLDINGS LIMITED
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23. Investments in Subsidiaries (continueq) 23. RIB AR 2= %)
Particulars of the principal subsidiaries are as follows: FEMBRARIMFFBOT : (&)
(continued)

Place of
incorporation/ Issued and Percentage of
registration and fully paid share/ equity attributable
Name operations registered capital to the Company Principal activities
2ETR
AR #MERS,
g SR AR e B EMEAR ARRELEEEDLL TEEK
2012 2011
—E--F T4

Embry International Limited BVI US$1 100 100 Investment holding

ZHRFBRERAF RBRUHE e REER

Gallin Investments Limited Hong Kong HKS$2 100 100 Investment holding

HERBERDA ) 28T REER

Prime Force Advertising Limited Hong Kong HK$20 100 100 Property investment

B 20/%7T MERE

Whistleblower Limited BVI US$1 100 100 Holding of trademarks

REREUHE T FHEEIE

* The non-voting deferred shares carry no rights to dividends & 4 4 22 A5 o GIE IR Sl 4 Y 7 A I B IR B
(other than for any financial year during which the net profit of ( ﬁA LHF I & B A (IR B A AL T B B
Embry HK available for dividend exceeds 1,000,000,000,000 /& 7T A9 (o] 81 B, 4F /&
HK$1,000,000,000,000), no rights to vote at general BN~ R A & |17 J )R E A8
meetings and no rights to receive any surplus in return of 1 BR B 500,000,000,000,000% 7T iR [6]
capital in a winding-up in respect of the first BRI (F o] B fp o
HK$500,000,000,000,000.

> Embry CZ, Embry SZ, Embry SD and Embry SH are registered X LHIFEIMN ~ ZFIE R ZFF 1 FE
as wholly-foreign-owned enterprises under the PRC law. R FFE FFGREFR EEG T AES

SNEFE -

w The registered capital of Embry CZ was increased from # ZHIEEMBTHMERNH AR K
RMB73,200,000 to RMB136,200,000 during the year and 73,200,000 7T iﬁf' = A E #136,200,000
was fully paid up as at 31 December 2012. I EREE —FEf+—_H=++—

Eit?&%?{%‘ﬁ ©

L The registered capital of Embry SD was increased from ## LFIFE L B A K /10,000,000 %
US$10,000,000 to US$18,000,000 during the year and JCIEZ= 18,000,000  EREBE—ZF
US$12,000,000 was paid up as at 31 December 2012. ——HFEF+ - A=+ —HIFHN
Subsequent to the end of the reporting period, the registered 12,000,000 7T © IEHIFE - Z M
capital was fully paid up to US$18,000,000. AN ERE4/EZ 18,000,000 3T °

FRERRERAT 2012 |0



23.

24,

Investments in Subsidiaries (continueq) 23. RMTB AR 2R #)
Except for EGL, all of the above subsidiaries are indirectly held BREGLYN » Lt P A M B R R R AR A
by the Company. BEREE -
The above table lists the subsidiaries of the Company which, FREVARATIHB AT JHESR B A
in the opinion of the directors, principally affected the results EEXEEEEFENBRAE @ BEF
for the year or formed a substantial portion of the net assets of BEALEZHBAR - EFRAMEE
the Group. To give details of other subsidiaries would, in the B AT Z B — 5 EIIJ‘-%%\ Bt
opinion of the directors, result in particulars of excessive BRTTE °
length.
Cash and Cash Equivalents 24. HERHEEZEBY
Group Company
REE PN
2012 2011 2012 2011
—E-—F —T——F B —T——%F
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$000
FET FHET FET FET
Cash and bank balances e RIRITH 379,092 179,607 2,024 792
Time deposit with original RIBARREIAE A
maturity of more than three LW =18 Az E 8
months when acquired TR 3,704 - - =
382,796 179,607 2,024 792

At the end of the reporting period, the cash and bank
balances of the Group denominated in Renminbi (‘RMB”)
amounted to HK$278,439,000 (2011: HK$111,338,000).
RMB is not freely convertible into other currencies; however,
under Mainland China’s Foreign Exchange Control Regulations
and Administration of Settlement, Sale and Payment of
Foreign Exchange Regulations, the Group is permitted to
exchange RMB for other currencies through banks authorised
to conduct foreign exchange business.

Cash at banks earns interest at floating rates based on daily
bank deposit rates. Short term time deposits are normally
made for varying periods of between approximately one week
and three months on average depending on the immediate
cash requirements of the Group, and earn interest at the
respective short term time deposit rates. The bank balances
are deposited with creditworthy banks with no recent history
of default.

1 Q4 EMBRY HOLDINGS LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2012

AEBRFEHREEBAARESEZ
B4 MIR1TAE£2/5278,439,000/8 L (=&

——4F : 111,338,000 T) - ARBRET
ATEAEBRAEMER - IR EPBIRRE

ZONEBIRIGP] - LA RASIE - EERSE
BEEBE - ANREEEEBERELETI
EXZEBIRIBARBLABBEME
m o

RITEFREFARTERNNREE 2F
BHEGE - RHEHNFRBE LM
HW—EHE=EATE BFAKEER
ZBREFRME  WIRBEBZEHEHREF
HHF KGR - RITAERT RN T AL &2
KBS BRFIRIT -



Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)

S 85 W MR . (A

31 December 2012 —E- =& +_-_H=+—H

25. Trade and Bills Payables 25. ERESRIAREMERE
An aged analysis of the Group’s trade and bills payables as at AEBERREHREEER 2 EMNEFBRR
the end of the reporting period, based on the invoice date, is FMEMZRBERZHHZRE TTAT :
as follows:
Group
rEHE
2012 2011
—E—-F —ZE——%
HK$’000 HK$000
FET FHEIT
Within 90 days e l= 37,252 31,594
91 to 180 days 912180 H 1,409 10,906
181 to 360 days 181 £ 360H 255 1,521
Over 360 days 360 HIA £ 103 66
39,019 44,087
The trade payables are non-interest-bearing and are normally BB SERERU TS - —fNR30E0H
settled on 30 to 90 days terms. WNEETE ©

FRERRERAT 82012 |0
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26. Interest-bearing Bank Borrowings 26. sTERITHENR
Group
r5E
2012 2011
=2-=F =
Effective Effective
interest interest
rate Maturity HK$’000 rate Maturity — HK$'000
BRFI= BRI
(%) E8A FTEx (%) 2R FHET
BRI BERT
A#FE+1.08F FEFE+1.08%2
BRI BRIRIT
Current (L F¥iFE+2.25 2475 +2.50
Bank loans BITER HIBOR+1.08 to 2013 HIBOR+1.08 to 2012
— unsecured fEE IR HIBOR+2.25 —Z—=% 56,750 HIBOR+250 —T—=%F 48,000
BHBEBIT BART
E#FE+1.08%F FI%EFE+1.08%
BT BBHRIT
Non-current  JEENHR FI¥FE+2.25  2014-2016 FEFE+2.25  2013-2016
Bank loans iR77E3  HIBOR+1.08tc —ZE—MEZE HIBOR+1.08tc —T—=4Z%
— unsecured K HIBOR+2.25 —Z—XR& 121,750 HIBOR+2.25  —Z—X% 163,500
Group
AEE
2012 2011
—g--% -z =&
HK$°000 HK$'000
FHET FET
Analysed into: DT
Bank loans repayable: AT HIEEE 2 RITE K ¢
Within one year —FR 56,750 48,000
In the second year FHF 56,750 53,000
In the third to fifth years, inclusive FoEFERF (BEERFE) 65,000 110,500
178,500 211,500
Less: Amount repayable within one year W R —FARNEELTS A
and classified as current portion BVEfER D #) 2 58 (56,750) (48,000)
Amount classified as non-current portion SRR R D B BR 121,750 163,500

The above bank loans are denominated in Hong Kong dollars.

The bank loans are supported by corporate guarantees given
by the Company, bear interest at rates ranging from 1.08% to
2.25% above the Hong Kong Interbank Offered Rate
(“HIBOR”) per annum.

~
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27. Other Payables and Accruals 27. HtENRIEREGRIE
Group Company
AEH RNF]
2012 2011 2012 2011

—EB--F —T——4% ZEB--Ff —T——%F
HK$’000 HK$'000  HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FET FET FH#ET

Other payables H e 5RIE 92,838 84,769 - -
Accruals FEst 38 105,134 87,505 5,588 7,036
197,972 172,274 5,588 7,036

Current portion included in T AE A RIE R

other payables and accruals ~ fEzTZ/IBHIBNEAEL (9 (175,009) (149,591) (5,588) (7,036)
Non-current portion JERNER =R 22,963 22,683 - =
Other payables of the Group at 31 December 2012 included a AREBR -_ZT——F+-_A=+—HB2H
subsidy of RMB18,600,000 (approximately HK$22,963,000) ENRESEMPFRILEEEEmAR
(2011: RMB18,600,000, approximately HK$22,683,000) BRWEREBAEER LERE —_HEE
received from the People’s Government of Jinan, Shandong TWLERE—HRE ) MEEEARNEERE
Province, the PRC, for the construction cost of basic SRR 2 AL A A R 18,600,000 7T (£
infrastructure to be incurred by the Group (“Shandong Factory 22,963,000 L) (ZFE——F : AR
Phase Il development”). 18,600,000 7T * #22,683,000/87T) °
The amounts totalling HK$5,906,000 (2011: HK$6,537,000) 7N £ [B) 5 H b FE A~ 3R IE BT L FE B9 5,906,000
included in other payables of the Group were due to related BT (ZZE——4F : 6,537,000/87T) B
companies as at 31 December 2012. These balances were E——_F+ - A=1+—HENBEE AT
unsecured, interest-free and repayable in accordance with B ZEEBRAEEER . AR NER—
normal trading terms (note 13). BEEIGKER (MIFE13)
Other payables are non-interest-bearing. HEMRIE AT A -

FRSRRERAT F82012 |
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28. Deferred Liabilities 28. EiLEAEE
Deferred liabilities represent the estimated provision in respect BB EEEEREHHAEREBERR
of long service payments which may become payable in the RS 2 Gt EE - REIRESFIEAER
future under the Hong Kong Employment Ordinance to EEBEBEIIZEENAEBR 2EEM
employees in proportion to their periods of services with the mES 1T -

Group up to the end of the reporting period.

Group

rEE
2012 2011
—B-—F —T——%F
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FET
At 1 January n—A—AH 4,234 3,471

Provision/(write-back of provision) for the FE2BE/(BERE)

year (note 9) (H1a£9) (176) 763
Payments during the year FEZAR (21) -
At 31 December R+-_A=+—H 4,037 4,234
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29. Deferred Tax 20, EIEFIE
The movements in deferred tax liabilities and assets during FRELEHBEEEREEZSHNT ¢
the year are as follows:

Group REE
Withholding
Depreciation taxes on
allowance in undistributed Temporary  Withholding
excess of Unrealised profits on difference taxes on
Revaluation related profit of PRC  of provision interest
of properties  depreciation inventories  subsidiaries  and accruals income Total
hE
FERZE HELAR BER
fetatil FER KRR Eit5E FSHA
NEEH il FERR ZENE  <EREE ZEH @it
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FEL FET FET FEL FEL FEL FEL
At 1 January 2011 RZE-—E-f-H 2,331 1,194 (10,499) 16,835 (702) 494 9,657
Effect of changes inaccounting policy ~ EHEEME 2 Y& (Hi222)
fote 2.2) (2:331) = = = = = (2:331)
At1 January 2011 (restated) R=F—%-f-A
(&31) - 1,194 (10,499) 16,835 (702) 494 7,326
Deferred tax chargect/credited) to ERERERNR/ (B8
the income statement QBRI (Kt 12)
during the year (note 12) 1,261 106 (4,514) 10,986 (7,772) 1477 1,544
Exchange realignment B A% 15 - - 1,340 (103) 7 1,089
At 31 December 2011 (restated) RZE-—4+-A=1-H
(&3]) 1,276 1,300 (15,009) 29,161 (8,577) 2,008 10,159
At 1 January 2012 W-E--%-f-H 4,576 1,300 (15,009) 29,161 (8,577) 2,008 13,459
Effect of changes inaccounting policy @3 BEME 7 H & (H#22)
(note 2.2) (3,300) - - - - - (3,300)
At 1 January 2012 (restated) RZE-Z-f-H
(E51) 1,276 1,300 (15,009) 29,161 (8577) 2,008 10,159
Deferred tax debited to equity FREERTR
during the year ZEREHR 266 - - - - - 266
Deferred tax charged/credited) to ERENERNR/ (B8
the income statement ZERBE (M 12)
during the year (note 12) 294 9 2,351 3,397 (6,171) 1,332 1,302
Payments during the year ERTL - - - (4,888) - (3,195) (8,083)
Exchange realignment A% 16 - - 142 (106) 25 7
At 31 December 2012 R=F-—&+-A=1-H 1,852 1,399 (12,658) 27,812 (14,854) 170 3,721

wRERRERAT Fmo02 |0



29. Deferred Tax (ontinued) 29, IRAETITE ()
The following is an analysis of the deferred tax balances of the UTARNEBRPEERM S ZIELFIE
Group for financial reporting purposes: DT
31 December 31 December 1 January
2012 2011 2011
— g% —F—%
+=ZA=+—-8 TZ-A=+—H —HA—H
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FEIT FEIT
(Restated) (Restated)
(&%) (&%)
Deferred tax assets recognised in RERE B ISAR R
the consolidated statement of RIELEFIR
financial position BE (27,512) (23,586) (11,197)
Deferred tax liabilities recognised in 4R & B FEAR LR
the consolidated statement of RIELEFIIE
financial position afE 31,233 33,745 18,523
3,721 10,159 7,326

The Group has tax losses arising in Hong Kong of
approximately HK$69,166,000 (2011: HK$46,063,000) that
are available indefinitely for offsetting against future taxable
profits of the companies in which the losses arose. Deferred
tax assets have not been recognised in respect of these
losses as they have arisen in the Company and subsidiaries
that have been loss-making for some time and it is not
considered probable that taxable profits will be available
against which the tax losses can be utilised.

Pursuant to the PRC Corporate Income Tax Law, a 10%
withholding tax is levied on dividends declared to foreign
investors from the foreign investment enterprises established
in the PRC. The requirement is effective from 1 January 2008
and applies to earnings after 31 December 2007. A lower
withholding tax rate may be applied if there is a tax treaty
between Mainland China and jurisdiction of the foreign
investors. For the Group, the applicable rates are 5% and
10%. The Group is therefore liable for withholding taxes on
dividends distributed by those subsidiaries established in the
PRC in respect of earnings generated from 1 January 2008.

There are no income tax consequences attaching to the
payment of dividends by the Company to its shareholders.
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30. Share Capital 30. B
2012 2011
—E-C—F —F—%F
HK$°000 HK$’000
FET FET
Authorised: ERE
1,000,000,000 ordinary shares of 1,000,000,000 %
HK$0.01 each FREE0.01 B TH @R 10,000 10,000
Issued and fully paid: BEETRAR
416,661,000 (2011: 411,324,000) 416,661,000 f% (= ZF ——4F :
ordinary shares of HK$0.01 each 411,324,000 %) AR EE
0.01 B8 &k 4,166 4,113
A summary of the transactions during the year with reference FERNE FRANTDEBETRASEH A
to the above movements in the Company’s issued share TEBEMT -
capital is as follows:
Number of Nominal
ordinary value of
shares of ordinary
HK$0.01 each shares
SREE
0.01 B TH
ZERHE ZEREE
Notes HK$’000
Btex FEIT
Authorised: EE
As at 31 December 2011 and RZE——F+_A=+—8BK
31 December 2012 —E——F+=ZA=+—H 1,000,000,000 10,000
Issued: BT
As at 1 January 2011 RZE—F—H—H 406,698,500 4,067
Share options exercised BEATE B (a) 4,625,500 46
As at 31 December 2011 R-_ZE——F+=-RA=+—H 411,324,000 4,113
Share options exercised BT g (b) 5,337,000 53
As at 31 December 2012 WZE——F+-_A=+—H 416,661,000 4,166

wrxeRERAn Fmo0r | 0]



Noles (o Finaneial Statements, (Continued)

$ 5 e e M e (D)

31 December 2012 =2 ——F+_-H=+—H

30. Share Capital (continued)

Notes:

(@)

During the reporting period ended 31 December 2011, the
subscription rights attaching to 1,650,500 and 2,975,000
share options were exercised at the subscription prices of
HK$1.81 and HK$1.45 per share, respectively (note 31),
resulting in the issue of 4,625,500 shares of HK$0.01 each at
a total cash consideration of approximately HK$7,301,000, of
which approximately HK$46,000 was credited to share capital
and the balance of HK$7,255,000 was credited to the share
premium account. An amount of HK$5,102,000 had been
transferred from the share option reserve to the share
premium account when the options were exercised.

During the reporting period ended 31 December 2012, the
subscription rights attaching to 5,337,000 share options were
exercised at the subscription price of HK$1.45 per share (note
31), resulting in the issue of 5,337,000 shares of HK$0.01
each at a total cash consideration of approximately
HK$7,738,000, of which approximately HK$53,000 was
credited to share capital and the balance of HK$7,685,000
was credited to the share premium account. An amount of
HK$2,889,000 has been transferred from the share option
reserve to the share premium account when the options were
exercised.

¢
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30. KA (%)

Wt

(@)

BE-_ZT2——F+-_fF=+—HIL®R
SHIRE S RIERBES KKK 1.81
& 7T & 1.457% 7T 17 ££1,650,5001% K&
2,975,000 153 B B 4 2 P Bt SR BE 4 (P9 5
31) - BRUALIR SR EL 7,301,000
JL 817 4,625,500 I% AR FI 1 0.01 7% 7T
2 - HA#)46,00078 LAt AR -
M 7,255,000 7% 7t 2 & R 5t AR 1D 3% (B
iR o EIEARIEEITER © 5,102,000
HEREREERERMDEER -

BE_Z——F+-_A=+—HLHKE
HR - RRBEESREG1.458LITE
5,337,00017 ¥ A% 4 2 AT IS 5 A8 428 (Y =
31) + BEUAMBIR & REH 7,738,000
JT 3% 175,337,000 1% & A% E {E0.01 78 7T
2B - E AR #953,00058 7TEF ARRA
17,685,000 7T 2 & g2 5T AR D& (B
iR o B BRI  2,889,0008 T
BB TR IRER -
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Share Option Scheme

The Company has adopted a share option scheme on 18
December 2006 (the “Share Option Scheme”) for the purpose
of providing incentives and rewards to eligible participants
who contribute to the success of the Group.

Share Option Scheme

Eligible participants of the Share Option Scheme include, (i)
any employee (whether full time or part time, including
directors but excluding any non-executive director) of the
Company, its subsidiaries or invested entity; (i) any non-
executive directors (including independent non-executive
directors) of the Company, its subsidiaries or invested entity;
(iiiy any supplier or customer of the Group or any invested
entity; (iv) any person or entity that provides research,
development or other technological support to the Group or
any invested entity; (v) any shareholder of any member of the
Group or any invested entity or any holder of any securities
issued by any member of the Group or any invested entity; (vi)
any advisor (professional or otherwise) or consultant to any
area of business or business development of the Group or any
invested entity; (vii) any other group or classes of participants
who have contributed or may contribute by way of joint
venture, business alliance or other business arrangement to
the development and growth of the Group; and (viii) any
company wholly-owned by one or more eligible participants
as referred in to (i) to (vii) above. The Share Option Scheme
became effective on 18 December 2006 and, unless otherwise
cancelled or amended, will remain in force for a period of ten
years to 17 December 2016.

The maximum number of shares to be issued upon the
exercise of all outstanding options granted and yet to be
exercised under the Share Option Scheme and any other
share option scheme of the Group must not in aggregate
exceed 30% of the shares of the Company in issue at any
time. The maximum number of shares issuable under share
options to each eligible participant in the Share Option
Scheme within any 12-month period, is limited to 1% of the
shares of the Company in issue at any time. Any further grant
of share options in excess of this limit is subject to
shareholders’ approval in a general meeting. Share options
granted to a director, chief executive or substantial
shareholder of the Company, or to any of their associates, are
subject to approval in advance by the independent non-
executive directors of the Company.

31.

Bl

ARAR-BEAET-A+\BROE
B &) (AR 81)) - BHARED
R ERA A E 2 0E RESD R

$H -

B REST 2
BTSN G ERSHEREN AR
HETB AR ATIRE AR 2B sk Tk
BEE (RIEEE  BTEEEAERTE
B (i)AAA - HWBARIHMRERR]
REREMITE R (BB IENITES)
(i) NEBEEMK B ARSI E A RIME
LR R ¢ (v) T AARNE BT
Frig & AR - AR
BHEAXAR: WAEEEAKERF]
ST E A B B ) AR B sk AN 58 B R AR X
BRRIHATIRE R RIFTEITEMEHFNR
BA VIAEE S EAFTIRE R BIEEM
¥BHENEBERNFESHMAAA
kBRI  (vi) BAS ST REEE S B X
GRS HMER LM AEERN TR K
BRIEHBERMEMEMERNSEE &
(viili) BB _E 7 58 (i) &= (vil) B FT il B — B 0 % 55
AER2EEZERBNEMAR - B
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31. Share Option Scheme (continueqd) 31.

Share Option Scheme (continued)

In addition, any share options granted to a substantial
shareholder or an independent non-executive director of the
Company, or to any of their associates, in excess of 0.1% of
the shares of the Company in issue at any time and with an
aggregate value (based on the closing price of the Company’s
shares at the date of the grant) in excess of HK$5 million,
within any 12-month period, are subject to shareholders’
approval in advance in a general meeting.

The offer of a grant of share options may be accepted within
21 days from the date of offer, upon payment of a nominal
consideration of HK$1 in total by the grantee. The exercise
period of the share options granted is determinable by the
directors, which period may commence from the date of the
offer of the share options, and ends on a date which is not
later than ten years from the date of the offer of the share
options or the expiry date of the Share Option Scheme, if
earlier.

The exercise price of the share options is determinable by the
directors, but shall not be less than the highest of (i) the
closing price of the Company’s shares as quoted on the Stock
Exchange’s daily quotations sheet on the date of the offer of
the share options; (i) the average closing price of the
Company’s shares as quoted on the Stock Exchange’s daily
quotations sheet for the five trading days immediately
proceeding the date of offer; and (i) the nominal value of the
Company’s shares.

Share options do not confer rights on the holders to dividends
or to vote at shareholders’ meetings.
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31. Share Option Scheme (continueq) 31. BEBRESTE ()
Share Option Scheme (continued) BEPRFEET 2 (&)
Set out below are the outstanding share options under the LNTEIR—E——F+_A=+—H#
Share Option Scheme as at 31 December 2012: FRHERTEIT M AR TR BB AR AE -
Number of share options
BREHE
Cancelled Exercise
At Granted orlapsed Exercised At 31 price of
Name or 1 January during during during December Date of grant of Exercise period of share
category of participant 2012  theyear  theyear the year 2012 share options share options options
HK$
per share
R-B-ZF FREH R-B-ZF BIRE
SHRERERER -A-B FREH REA¥ FREFHK +t=A=t-B BRERL A BRETES fEfE
GRET
Executive directors
UITES
Mr. Cheng Man Tai 400,000 - - (400,000) - 5 November 2008 5 November 2009 to 1.45
4 November 2012*
BEREE “FT\F+-ARA ZTTAEt+-AEAZE
—T-—F+-AmB*
35,000 - - - 35,000 18 May 2011 18 May 2012 to 5.24
17 May 2016™
—Z——%5A+N\B Z—E-—FRAT+/\BE
ZE-RFRATtR"™
Ms. Cheng Pik Ho Liza 400,000 - - (400,000) - 5 November 2008 5 November 2009 to 1.45
4 November 2012*
BEEa+ —ZT\E+-ARA —ZTHhE+-ARAZE
“E-—E+—-AmA*
1,460,000 - - - 1,460,000 18 May 2011 18 May 2012 to 5.24
17 May 2016
“Z—%8A+/\R —F—-FRA1+/\RE
ZE-RERATEAE™
Madam Ngok Ming Chu 400,000 - - (400,000) - 5 November 2008 5 November 2009 to 1.45
4 November 2012*
R —ZT\f+-AEB Z—ETAE+-AEBZE
—E-—F+—-AmA*
60,000 - - - 60,000 18 May 2011 18 May 2012 to 5.24
17 May 2016
—“E——f#FA+/\R —EB-——£RA+/N\BE
—Z-R"FRAt+tE*™
Independent non-executive
directors
BUFHTES
Mr. Lau Siu Ki 280,000 - - (280,000) - 5 November 2008 5 November 2009 to 1.45
4 November 2012*
HRELE —FT\F+-ARA ZTTASt+-ARAZE
“Z-—£+-AMmA"
100,000 - - - 100,000 18 May 2011 18 May 2012 to 5.24
17 May 2016™
—T——%RA+/\R —F——FRA+/N\BE
“E—RFRATtER*
Mr. Lee Kwan Hung 481,000 - - (481,000) - 5 November 2008 5 November 2009 to 1.45
4 November 2012*
FHELE —FZ\f+-ARB =—ZINE+-AREZE
“E-—E+—-AmA*
100,000 - - - 100,000 18 May 2011 18 May 2012 to 5.24
17 May 2016

“E——FRA+NR ZE-—£RATNEE
“E-RERATLE”
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31. Share Option Scheme (continued) 31. BRESTE»)
Share Option Scheme (continued) EERRfEET 2 (&)
Set out below are the outstanding share options under the UTIEHIR —_ZE——F+_A=+—HE
Share Option Scheme as at 31 December 2012: (continued) PEREST 2T 15 51{ TIEREARAE - (B)
Number of share options
BRESA
Cancelled Exercise
At  Granted orlapsed Exercised At 31 price of
Name or 1 January during during during December Date of grant of Exercise period of share
category of participant 2012  theyear  theyear the year 2012 share options share options option;
HK(
per share
R=B-=f EREH R=B-=f BRE
SREZRER —-A—-B ERARH RER FERETHE +=A=t-8 BRERLA S IR 1@
SRET
Independent non-executive
directors
BUEQTES
Prof. Lee T. S. 380,000 - - (380,000) - 5 November 2008 5 November 2009 to 1.45
4 November 2012*
FREHE —“ZFF/\&+-ARA —ETHNE+-AEAZE
—F——%+-AmAB*
100,000 - - - 100,000 18 May 2011 18 May 2012 to 5.24
17 May 2016
—“£——f#FA+/\R —EB-——£RA+/N\BE
—T-RERAtEAE"
Other employees
HitEE
In aggregate 2,996,000 - - (2,996,000) - 5 November 2008 5 November 2009 to 1.45
4 November 2012*
it “ZE\F+—AFEA —EEAE+-—ARAE
—E-—F+-AmA*
17,780,000 - (1,173,000) - 16,607,000 18 May 2011 18 May 2012 to 5.24
17 May 2016
“F——4%7A+/\B —E-—£RA+N\BE
“E-R"FRATtRA*
24972,000 - (11730000 (5337,0000 18,462,000
Notes to the reconciliation of share options under the Share FRERETE T HARITENBRELYER
Option Scheme outstanding during the year: B RE -
* The share options (“the 2008 Options”) are vested to the * ERE(ZZEZNFEREDEATH
grantees in the following manner: NEBTEBKA :
- 30% of such options were vested on 5 November = ZEBRENOKER=ZZT
2009 with an exercise period from 5 November 2009 NF+—AREBERE - ﬁﬁ%
to 4 November 2012; AE-TThF+—AREBZE
"—_¢+ AmA
= 30% of such options were vested on 5 November = ZERBBRENONER T —
2010 with an exercise period from 5 November 2010 TF+—ARAHEE E ﬁ = 5R
to 4 November 2012; and R-ZT—TF+-AREHAEZ
T——F+—AOmB: Rk
- the remaining 40% of such options were vested on 5 = ZEBRENBRTI0%ER =
November 2011 with an exercise period from 5 T——F+—RAEABE " 17
November 2011 to 4 November 2012. FHAE-_ZT——F+—AHAH

E-T—"F+—AMA -

1 66 EMBRY HOLDINGS LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2012



Notes to FlnanCIal Statements { Coutmue(l)

E?H'%i&i’él‘ﬁnf(

31 December2012 E——’EF"I' A= 'f‘ =]

31. Share Option Scheme (continueq)

Share Option Scheme (continued)
Notes to the reconciliation of share options under the Share
Option Scheme outstanding during the year: (continued)

* The share options (“the 2011 Options”) are vested to the
grantees in the following manner:

= 30% of such options were vested on 18 May 2012
with an exercise period from 18 May 2012 to 17 May
2016;

- 30% of such options will be vested on 18 May 2013
with an exercise period from 18 May 2013 to 17 May
2016; and

= the remaining 40% of such options will be vested on
18 May 2014 with an exercise period from 18 May
2014 to 17 May 2016.

For the reporting period ended 31 December 2011, 20,355,000 share
options were granted and their fair value was estimated at
approximately HK$4 1,952,000 (approximately HK$2.06 each). The
Company recognised a share option expense of HK$14,690,000
(2011: HK$15,183,000) during the year.

The fair value of the 2011 Options was estimated as at the
date of grant, using a binomial model, taking into account the
terms and conditions upon which the options were granted.
The following table lists the inputs to the model used:

Dividend yield (%) 1.5
Expected volatility (%) 52
Risk-free interest rate (%) 1.64
Expected life of options (years) 5
Exit rate — director (%) 0
Exit rate — staff except director (%) 14

Weighted average share price (HK$ per share) 5.24

The expected volatility reflects the assumption that the
historical volatility is indicative of future trends, which may also
not necessarily be the actual outcome. The exit rate is based
on the historical data on staff/director turnover rates.

No other feature of the options granted was incorporated into
the measurement of fair value.

31.
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31. Share Option Scheme (continueq) 31.

The following share options were outstanding under the Share
Option Scheme during the year:

BRETE 2
AT AR R B RS BIIE T 4R 7B
B AR -

2012 2011
—E——fF —=——%F
Weighted Weighted
average average
exercise Number exercise Number
price  of options price of options
HKS$ HK$
per share per share
InfEFEH niEFH
TEE BREHE T(E  BEREHE
FRET BRRET
At 1 January ®n—H—H 443 24,972,000 1.51 10,483,000
Granted during the year FRE - - 524 20,355,000
Exercised during the year ~ FRTT{E 1.45 (5,337,000) 1.58  (4,625,500)
Cancelled or lapsed FAFHIRK
during the year 5.24  (1,173,000) 3.65 (1,240,500)
At 31 December R+ZHA=+—H 5.24 18,462,000 4.43 24,972,000

The weighted average share price at the date of exercise for
share options exercised during the reporting period was
HK$3.94 per share (2011: HK$5.28 per share).

The 5,337,000 share options exercised during the year
resulted in the issue of 5,337,000 ordinary shares of the
Company and new share capital of HK$53,000 and share
premium account of HK$7,685,000 (before issue expenses),
as further detailed in notes 30 and 32(b) to the financial
statements.

At the end of the reporting period, the Company had
18,462,000 share options outstanding under the Share Option
Scheme. The exercise in full of the share options would, under
the present capital structure of the Company, result in the
issue of 18,462,000 additional ordinary shares of the
Company and additional share capital of approximately
HK$185,000 and share premium account of approximately
HK$96,556,000 (before issue expenses).

Subsequent to the end of the reporting period and at the date
of approval of these financial statements, the Company had
18,462,000 share options outstanding under the Share Option
Scheme, which represented approximately 4.43% of the
issued share capital of the Company as at that date.
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32. Reserves

(@)

Group

The amounts of the Group’s reserves and the
movements therein for the current and prior years are
presented in the consolidated statement of changes in
equity of the financial statements.

The contributed surplus of the Group represents (i) the
excess of the nominal value of the shares of the
subsidiaries acquired pursuant to the reorganisation of
certain members of the Group which took place on 31
December 1992, over the nominal value of EGL’s
shares issued in exchange therefor; (i) the premium
arising from the shares issued by EGL for settlement of
the amount due to the ultimate holding company of
HK$15,841,000; (iii) the premium arising from the
acquisition of Embry HK from the non-controlling
interests of HK$5,000,000; and (iv) the excess of the
nominal value of the share capital of the subsidiaries
acquired pursuant to the group reorganisation, over
the nominal value of the share capital of the Company
issued in exchange therefor and the then existing
10,000,000 shares of HK$0.01 each credited as fully
paid at par.

In accordance with the relevant regulations applicable
in the PRC, subsidiaries of the Company established in
the PRC are required to transfer a certain percentage
of their profits after tax, if any, to the enterprise
expansion and statutory reserve funds, which are
non-distributable, before profit distributions to
shareholders. The amounts of the transfers are subject
to the approval of the board of directors of these
subsidiaries.

The Group applied the transitional provision of HKFRS
3 which permits goodwill in respect of acquisitions
which occurred prior to 1 January 2001, to remain
eliminated against the consolidated reserves. The
amount of goodwill remaining in consolidated reserves,
arising from the acquisition of subsidiaries prior to 1
January 2001, was stated at cost, which amounted to
HK$3,168,000 (2011: HK$3,168,000) as at 31
December 2012.
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32. Reserves (continued)

32. f#E =)
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(o) Company (b) AT
Retained
Share Share profits/
premium  Contributed option (accumulated
account surplus reserve losses) Total
REER/
R BER EfES BRERE (2HER) @t
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
st FE FE FAT FAT TAT
At 1 January 2011 W=Z——F—-Hf—-H 346,713 381,248 7,556 32,084 767,601
Loss for the year FEBE - = = (15,139) (15,139)
Total comprehensive EREEL LSS
expense for the year - - - (15,139) (15,139)
Issue of shares Blkin 30(8) 12,357 = (5,102) = 7,255
Equity-settled share option MRS 2
arrangements BRERY 31 = = 15,183 = 15,183
Share options lapsed BRELH - = (221) 291 =
2010 final and special dividends ~ Z &R ff
declared and paid “EI-FERS
RERIRE 15 - - - (32,803) (32,803)
2011 interim dividend E——FHRE 15 = = = (12,308) (12,305)
At 31 December 2011 RZE——F
and 1 January 2012 +-A=1+-H
RZB-ZF
—A-H 359,070 381,248 17,416 (27,942) 729,792
Loss for the year FEER - - - (16,369) (16,369)
Total comprehensive FREER HEE
expense for the year - - - (16,369) (16,369)
Issue of shares BIRG 30(b) 10,574 - (2,889) - 7,685
Equity-settled share option ERX
arrangements ERERS 31 - - 14,690 - 14,690
Share options lapsed BIREL - - (458) 458 -
2011 final and special dividends & R E %
declared and paid —F——FKH
RERIRE 15 - - - (37,240) (37,240)
2012 interim dividend ZE2-CEHRE 15 - - - (16,575) (16,575)
At 31 December 2012 RZE——fF
+-A=1+-H 369,644 381,248 28,759 (97,668) 681,983
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32. Reserves (continued)

33.

(b) Company (continued)
The contributed surplus of the Company represents
the excess of the then net assets of the subsidiaries
acquired by the Company pursuant to the group
reorganisation, over the nominal value of the share
capital of the Company issued in exchange therefor
and the then existing 10,000,000 shares of HK$0.01
each credited as fully paid at par. Under the
Companies Law of the Cayman Islands, the
contributed surplus may be distributed to the
shareholders of the Company, provided that
immediately following the date on which the dividend is
proposed to be distributed, the Company will be in a
position to pay off its debts as and when they fall due
in the ordinary course of business.

The share option reserve comprises the fair value of
share options granted which are yet to be exercised,
as further explained in the accounting policy for share-
based payments in note 2.4 to the financial
statements. The amount will either be transferred to
the share premium account when the related options
are exercised, or be transferred to retained profits
should the related options expire, be forfeited or
lapsed.

Note to the Consolidated Statement of
Cash Flows

Major non-cash transaction

During the reporting period ended 31 December 2011, the
Group had paid an amount of RMB111,566,000
(approximately HK$131,951,000) for a property in Shanghai,
which included the settlement of other payables for the
acquisition of the property of RMB86,953,000 (approximately
HK$102,297,000), the additional building cost of
HK$14,857,000 and investment property of HK$14,797,000.

32.

33.
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34. Operating Lease Arrangements 34. REHNZH
(@ As lessor @ MHFEAREHEA
The Group leases its investment properties (note 18) AREBREBELKEHRAOTHHEALE
under operating lease arrangements, with leases Y (FIE18)  MAOUNTF—ER
negotiated for terms ranging from one to six years. FEEAEITRER o
At the end of the reporting period, the Group had total NI RES  RIEAEE S
future minimum lease receivables under non- PRI 2 N REZEERLY - K
cancellable operating leases with its tenants falling due EER AT BB Z KRR KIEEWHE
as follows: ReEFEMA
Group
rEH
2012 2011
—E——F —ET——%
HK$’000 HK$000
FET FE&T
Within one year —FR 5,295 6,172
In the second to fifth years, inclusive F_EZERF (BREEREWMT) 1,128 6,317
6,423 12,489

In addition, the operating lease rentals for the use of
certain floor areas of the Group’s building located in
Shanghai are contingent rent based on sales of the
shops pursuant to the terms and conditions as set out
in the respective agreements. As the future sales of
these shops could not be accurately determined, the
relevant contingent rent has not been included above.
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34. Operating Lease Arrangements (continued)

(b)

As lessee

The Group leases certain of its shops, counters,
warehouses and office properties under operating
lease arrangements with leases negotiated for terms
ranging from one to eight years.

At the end of the reporting period, the Group had total
future minimum lease payments under non-cancellable
operating leases falling due as follows:

34.
(b)

REHNOZH®)

EREE A
AEERBEEHNOTHERET
B RERPAEME -
MO —E N\ FFEEITRER o

R EHRERE  REAEEZ
TrAIBHE LAY - AEERIAT
BEIZ RARZIEEMNESAFRNT

Group
TEE
2012 2011
—E——F —ET——%
HK$°000 HK$’000
FAT FET
Within one year —FR 90,861 86,377
In the second to fifth years, inclusive F_EERF (BREEREWMT) 38,767 41,812
129,628 128,189

In addition, the Group has entered into agreements
with department stores to enable the Group to set up
its retail outlets therein. The operating lease rentals for
the use of their floor areas in department stores are
based on the higher of a fixed rental or contingent rent
based on sales of the retail outlets pursuant to the
terms and conditions as set out in the respective
agreements. As the future sales of these retail outlets
could not be accurately determined, the relevant
contingent rent has not been included above and only
the minimum lease commitments have been included
in the above table.

The Company had no operating lease arrangement at the end
of the reporting period.
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35. Commitments 35. #&ifE
At the end of the reporting period, the Group had the following RIREHRLEER  AEBZAENT :
commitments:
2012 2011
—E--F —E——F
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHET FETL
Contracted for capital commitments HERPEEEHEZ
in respect of its wholly-owned - AR F OF - VE S
investment in the PRC 46,560 -
Contracted for commitments in respect BEYE BEERREZ
of the acquisition of property, EHES
plant and equipment 30,016 10,079
Authorised, but not contracted for LATRIER 2 &8 #h&
commitments in respect of BARETHIHFSE
— investment in Shandong Factory — LEBE BB ERE
Phase Il development 100,571 121,844
— investment in Changzhou Factory — BNBEERKRE
development 43,931 -
144,502 121,844
The Company had no significant commitment at the end of AT RIS A S AW\ E AR -

the reporting period.
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36. Financial Instruments by Category 36. ERSMzE/MIA
The carrying amounts of each of the categories of financial RBEHRAE RS TANEEE
instruments as at the end of the reporting period are as R
follows:
Financial assets SREE
Loans and receivables B R EY A
Group
AEE
2012 2011
—E——F —T—%
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FHEIT
Trade receivables FEWE 5 R K 79,898 62,675
Financial assets included in prepayments, Y AEMNTE 2SR
deposits and other receivables HEmERRIE s emEE 5,474 4,159
Cash and cash equivalents B RIRSEEBY 382,796 179,607
468,168 246,441
Financial liabilities THes
Financial liabilities at amortised cost B AGTE B E
Group
REE
2012 2011
—B-—F —T——%F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FET
Interest-bearing bank borrowings STERITER 178,500 211,500
Trade and bills payables JEf B SRR R IERRIE 39,019 44,087
Financial liabilities included in other payables 62357 Lt i (< 5008 |
and accruals EErRIEzZEHMAE 101,831 91,124
319,350 346,711
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36. Financial Instruments by Category 36. RERSHMZ2EMI A @
(continued)
Financial assets TREE
Loans and receivables B R EY A
Company
RATF
2012 2011
—E——F —ET——%
HK$’000 HK$’000
FAT FET
Due from subsidiaries FEUL I B~ B FRIR 350,468 395,730
Cash and cash equivalents ReRREEEY 2,024 792
352,492 396,522
Financial liabilities cRAE
Financial liabilities at amortised cost HHER A2 A E
Company
P NN
2012 2011
—E——F —T—%
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FET
Due to subsidiaries FEfITHI B A R 42,246 37,266
Financial liabilities included in other payables 635 H E fth fE (< 5008 &
and accruals EstzEz A 493 868
42,739 38,134
The fair values of the financial assets and financial liabilities xR zeMEERSRE EREHim
mentioned above approximate to their carrying amounts due LA EEREEES °

to the maturities of these instruments.
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37.

38.

Contingent Liabilities 37.

In addition to the contingent liabilities disclosed elsewhere in
these financial statements, the Group also had the following
contingent liabilities as at 31 December 2012 and 31
December 2011:

A subsidiary of the Company was enquired by certain
government bodies regarding the compliance of relevant
foreign exchange rules in the PRC in relation to the remittance
and use of funds in the course of purchase of the Embry
Tower in Shanghai in 2009 and 2010. In the opinion of the
directors, based on the legal advice from the Group’s legal
counsels, since the enquiry process is not yet concluded,
whether or not the relevant company will be subject to any
punishment and, if so, the amount of the ultimate liabilities (if
any) cannot be measured with sufficient reliability, no provision
has been made at this time.

Financial Risk Management Objectives
and Policies

The Group’s principal financial instruments, comprise cash,
short term deposits and interest-bearing bank borrowings.
The main purpose of these financial instruments is to raise
finance for the Group’s operations. The Group has various
other financial assets and liabilities such as trade receivables
and trade payables, which arise directly from its operations.

The main risks arising from the Group’s financial instruments
are interest rate risk, foreign currency risk, credit risk and
liquidity risk. The directors review and agree policies for
managing each of these risks and they are summarised below.

Interest rate risk

Cash flow interest rate risk is the risk that the future cash flows
of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in
market interest rates. The Group is exposed to both fair value
and cash flow interest rate risks. The Group’s exposure to
market risk for changes in interest rates relates primarily to the
Group’s bank borrowings with a floating interest rate.

At present, the Group does not intend to seek to hedge its
exposure to interest rate fluctuations. However, the Group will
constantly review the economic situation and its interest rate
risk profile, and will consider appropriate hedging measures in
future as may be necessary.

38.

HAREE
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38. Financial Risk Management Objectives 38.

and Policies (continueq)

Interest rate risk (continued)

As at 31 December 2012, the post-tax profit of the Group
would have been decreased/increased by approximately
HK$893,000 (2011: HK$1,058,000) if the interest rate has
been increased/decreased by 50 basis points with all other
variables held constant.

Foreign currency risk

The Group carries on its sales and purchases transactions
mainly in Hong Kong dollars and RMB. The Group does not
use derivative financial instruments to protect against the
volatility associated with foreign currency transactions and
other financial assets and liabilities created in the ordinary
course of the business. However, as the Group’s net profit is
reported in Hong Kong dollars, there will be a translation gain
as a result of the RMB appreciation, and vice versa. The
majority of the Group’s operating assets are located in
Mainland China and are denominated in RMB.

The following table demonstrates the sensitivity at the end of
the reporting period to a reasonably possible change in the
RMB exchange rate, with all other variables held constant, of
the Group’s profit after tax and equity (due to changes in the
fair value of monetary assets and liabilities).

HEEREEEERBE®

R s (%)

AR EF TREB0ES - MATAHME
ERIFTIE F:g—_iﬂ'_ﬂ_ﬂ'—
B AEERFESF BRI NG
893,000 E(—ié__ﬁ : 1,058,000 78
JT) °

FINGE | Beg
AEFBZTEUBTRARBETEER
S AEBUBUTAESB T EREHA
BEBBEZIINEXFREMEREE K
BEMMSZEE - A ARAEEZ
MHRIABTTEY - AR FHE R 2R EE
Hles - RZIAR - REBRBMHEEE
EHM AR BIARREE - WIAAREHIR -

TRITRBESHEEE - EHA LM

TEEFEHTEHERT - AREHS
Bit i FI R 5 AR ER TR HRA
BRE Y SRS (A SEAER A BN A
TEED) -

Increase/

Increase/ (decrease)
(decrease) in profit after
in RMB rate tax and equity
AR BREFL &R F
ERLEH - RREEM

(T#) (A2
% HK$000
FET

2012 —s_—&
If Hong Kong dollar weakens against RMB W THAREEE 5 23,987
If Hong Kong dollar strengthens against RMB HAETTHE AREFE (5) (23,987)
2011 —E——F
If Hong Kong dollar weakens against RMB i T L ARKEE 5 25,032
If Hong Kong dollar strengthens against RMB BT AREAE (5) (25,032)
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38.

Financial Risk Management Objectives
and Policies (continueq)

Credit risk

The Group trades only with recognised and creditworthy
customers. It is the Group’s policy that all customers who
wish to trade on credit terms are subject to credit verification
procedures. In addition, receivable balances are monitored on
an ongoing basis and on an individual basis. Each of the
customers has been attached with a trading limit and any
excess of the limit must be approved by the general manager
of the operation unit. Under the tight control of the credit term
and detailed assessment of the creditworthiness of individual
customers, the Group’s exposure to bad debts is maintained
as minimal.

The credit risk of the Group’s other financial assets, which
comprise cash and cash equivalents and other receivables,
arises from default of the counterparty, with a maximum
exposure equal to the carrying amounts of these instruments.

Further quantitative data in respect of the Group’s exposure to
credit risk arising from trade receivables are disclosed in note
21 to the financial statements.

Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk is the risk of non-availability of funds to meet all
contractual financial commitments as they fall due. The
Group’s objective is to maintain a prudent financial policy, to
monitor liquidity ratios against risk limits and to maintain a
contingency plan for funding to ensure that the Group
maintains sufficient cash to meet its liquidity requirement.

The Group continued to enjoy a strong financial position with
cash and cash equivalents amounting to HK$382,796,000 as
at 31 December 2012 (2011: HK$179,607,000).

The Group financed its operations and investment activities by
internally generated cash flows and bank borrowings.

38.
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38. Financial Risk Management Objectives 38. BB EMEEBEZREE @)
and Policies (continueq)

Liquidity risk (continued) REESEM (&)
The maturity profile of the Group’s financial liabilities as at the RBEELEER  REBIRBEAS KR
end of the reporting period, based on the contractual BNPGTEZemAaERHENT

undiscounted payments, was as follows:

Group rEE
Within
On demand 1 year 1-5 years Total
RER —£R —FhHE e

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FAT FAT FET FAT

2012 —B-—f
Interest-bearing bank borrowings 5+ BSR1TIER - 59,874 125,201 185,075
Trade and bills payables ENE SRR RENERE 33,973 5,046 - 39,019
Other payables and accruals H e R IE R BT 3R IE - 101,831 - 101,831
33,973 166,751 125,201 325,925
2011 —E——fF
Interest-bearing bank borrowings 5B ERT1TIE K - 51,311 168,883 220,194
Trade and bills payables BRESERFRENERE 38,658 5,429 = 44,087
Other payables and accruals HAth FEAS3RIB R FE 500 - 91,124 - 91,124
38,658 147,864 168,883 355,405
As at 31 December 2012, the Company provided guarantees RZEB—ZF+ZHA=+—H  TRFAIH
to banks in connection with banking facilities of E M E A F#9310,000,0008 L (= F——
HK$310,000,000 (2011: HK$310,000,000) granted to certain £ : 310,000,000 70 ) $R1T 12 B M 4R1TIR
of its subsidiaries, of which approximately HK$265,000,000 HyER - B2 8 4265,000,0008 7T
(2011: HK$260,000,000) was utilised. (ZZ——% : 260,000,000 7T) °
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38. Financial Risk Management Objectives 38.

and Policies (continueq)

Capital management

The Group manages its capital to ensure that the Group will
be able to continue as a going concern while maximising the
return to the owners through the optimisation of the debt and
equity balance where appropriate. No change was made in
the objectives, policies or processes for managing capital
during the years ended 31 December 2012 and 2011.

The capital structure of the Group consists of net debt which
includes bank borrowings and equity attributable to owners of
the Company. Equity attributable to owners of the Company
comprises issued share capital, reserves and retained profits
as disclosed in the consolidated statement of changes in
equity.

The Company monitors capital using a gearing ratio, which is
total bank borrowings divided by the equity attributable to
owners of the Company. The gearing ratios as at the end of
the reporting periods were as follows:

HEEREEEERBE®

BERER
AEEEBREERAABRIEEERE
B RARTEHEREBABLCEBRERLS
#H(ER) BEAANEREERK - B
HE T —FRrR-_FE—F+=A
—+t—RALFE BEEAZER  BXE
IR EEE) o

oy

AEEEAGBERERFRETEER
TTRERRARREE NEEBE - AR F]
BREARBIGRERRGEEREH KRR
BHE BTN - #FERREEN -

ARREBEER G RRE (BIERTTER
REBERARNRRERARGRE) EEE
Ko NREMREEABULENT ¢

2012 2011

—E-—F —T——fF

Group REH HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET FET

(Restated)

(E31))

Interest-bearing bank borrowings sTERITER 178,500 211,500

Equity attributable to owners of the
Company

BEAMFLE

Gearing ratio

ZANSIE 2PN AL

1,437,236 1,273,226

12.4% 16.6%
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39.

40.

41.

=L E): L

Event after the Reporting Period
Subsequent to the end of the reporting period, on 20 February
2013, the Group entered into a construction contract with an
independent third party (the “Contractor”), pursuant to which
the Contractor is to provide certain construction services to
the Group for Shandong Factory Phase Il development at the
consideration of RMB83,000,000 (equivalent to approximately
HK$103,750,000). Further details of this construction contract
were disclosed in the Company’s announcement dated 20
February 2013.

Comparative Amounts

As further explained in note 2.2 to the financial statements,
due to the adoption of revised HKFRSs during the current
year, the accounting treatment and presentation of certain
items and balances in the financial statements have been
revised to comply with the new requirements. Accordingly,
certain prior year adjustments have been made and a third
consolidated statement of financial position as at 1 January
2011 has been presented. Certain comparative amounts have
been reclassified and restated to conform with the current
year’s presentation.

Approval of the Financial Statements
The financial statements were approved and authorised for
issue by the board of directors on 25 March 2013.

¢
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